Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) Ay . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Fllntsh"-e
COUNTY COUNCIL

To: CliIr Clive Carver (Chairman)

, . , CSING
Councillors: Marion Bateman, Peter Curtis,
Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, 2 October 2015
Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, Richard Lloyd,
Vicky Perfect, David Roney, lan Smith, Tracy Waters 01352 702331

Nigel Steele-Mortimer, Carolyn Thomas and

tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk
Arnold Woolley Y @ 9

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,
MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 8TH OCTOBER, 2015 at 10.00 AM to consider
the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

3  MINUTES (Pages 3 - 12)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10"
September 2015.

4 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (Pages 13 - 72)
Report of Chief Executive enclosed.




REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 4) AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2015/16 (MONTH 4)(Pages 73 - 134)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION Q 1 (Pages 135 - 160)
Report of Chief Officer (People and Resources) enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 161 - 166)
Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.




28.

29.

Agenda ltem 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
10 SEPTEMBER 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room,
County Hall, Mold on Thursday, 10 September 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Clive Carver (Chairman)
Councillors: Peter Curtis, Andy Dunbobbin, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson,
Richard Jones, Brian Lloyd, David Roney, Carolyn Thomas and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTES: Councillors: David Cox (for Vicky Perfect) and Paul
Cunningham (for lan Smith)

APOLOGIES: Councillors Marion Bateman, Richard Lloyd and Nigel Steele-
Mortimer, and the Chief Officer (Governance)

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Aaron Shotton, Leader and Cabinet Member for
Finance; Councillor Billy Mullin, Cabinet Member for Corporate Management;
Chief Executive and Corporate Finance Manager

Team Leader - Community Safety, Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator,
Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator and Substance Misuse Officer with Chief
Inspector Sharon McCairn of North Wales Police (for minute number 30)

Policy & Performance Manager (for minute numbers 31 & 34)
Electoral Services Manager (for minute number 35)

IN ATTENDANCE: Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 13 July 2015 had
been circulated with the agenda.

Matters Arising

Minute number 18: Matters arising - the Member Engagement Manager
agreed to pursue the list of officer contact numbers (including mobile numbers)
for circulation to the Committee.

Minute number 19: Medium Term Financial Strategy - the Member
Engagement Manager would request an updated figure in response to
Councillor Andy Dunbobbin’s question on the emerging pressure for software
maintenance for Information Technology, and circulate to the Committee.

-1-
Page 3



30.

Minute number 20: Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 - a written
response on the projected shortfall in income from the gas engines at Brookhill
and Standard Landfill Sites would be circulated by email to the Committee.
RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

CORPORATE COMMUNITY SAFETY PLAN ANNUAL UPDATE REPORT

The Team Leader - Community Safety delivered a presentation on the
activities and progress of the Flintshire Community Safety Partnership (CSP)
during 2014/15. The range of funding sources utilised to support the CSP
included an element from the Police & Crime Commissioner’s budget however
this amount was reducing year on year. There had been a change in
governance arrangements following the CSP merger with the Local Service
Board, however the statutory requirements of the CSP continued to be
discharged. Information was shared on the various groups and sub-groups
which supported the CSP, including the Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Tasking
group which met monthly.

The Team Leader described Flintshire as a very safe county in general,
with relatively low levels of crime and disorder. A 2.7% increase in overall crime
in 2014/15 was not viewed as significant, given the total number of offences,
and was primarily attributed to an increase in the reporting of historical sexual
offences. The activities of the CSP had helped to contribute towards the
continuing reduction in ASB levels. Amongst the main achievements in
2014/15 was the ‘White Ribbon’ accreditation - the first Authority in North Wales
to receive this - which demonstrated the commitment to tackling domestic
abuse. The presentation outlined the benefits of interacting with the North
Wales Safer Communities Board (SCB) which provided a framework to
operative more effectively and maximise resources, and where Flintshire was
represented by the Chief Executive. The regional priorities of the SCB were
detailed in the Plan for 2014-17 and local priorities for 2015/16 were highlighted
in the presentation having been identified through a strategic assessment
process and informed by intelligence from the various partners, eg Police,
Probation, Health etc.

Councillor Paul Cunningham praised the ASB group for their role in
helping to resolve a particular issue. The Team Leader highlighted the progress
made by that group and spoke about the proactive approach taken in relation
to the trigger process.

The Chairman referred to the classification of crimes and asked if the
reduction in ASB offences had meant an increase in other types of crime. Chief
Inspector McCairn spoke about the increase in reports of sexual offences,
mainly received via Social Services, and changes to the recording process
which placed North Wales in a strong position. She went on to say that ASB
was not recorded as crime, however there were aspects of crime which

-0
Page 4



31.

overlapped ASB and this ongoing trend would be covered by the ASB group.
When asked about crime in some larger cities across the border, the Team
Leader replied that levels were much higher than in North Wales and frequently
involved certain types of crime not seen in this area.

Councillor Robin Guest commented on the good work done by the CSP
but questioned the overlap between regional and local priorities. The Team
Leader explained that the presentation slides contained an abridged version of
the key areas and that the priorities set by the SCB would complement and
inform priorities of the CSP with a focus on locality such as tackling crime,
reducing ASB and supporting vulnerable victims of crime. In response to
comments on mismatched wording used in the template of the report, she
agreed to ensure that this was corrected before the report was finalised.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas felt that more powers given to Police
Community Support Officers (PCSOs), such as dealing with speeding offences,
would enable them to be even more effective in the community. Chief Inspector
McCairn spoke about the challenges in granting extended powers and advised
that although there were no plans to increase powers on PCSOs, they were
able to team up with Police Officers to deal with speeding offences.

Councillor Peter Curtis welcomed the report, in particular the focus to
tackle domestic abuse, but felt that racial hatred/abuse was also an emerging
important issue. He cited a recent example from within his own ward. Chief
Inspector McCairn said that this type of crime was a priority for the Police and
was often under-reported. She also referred to the likelihood of further budget
cuts which had so far not impacted on front-line services.

In response to Councillor Guest’'s comments, the Chief Executive said
that the recent County Council presentation by the Police & Crime
Commissioner had highlighted the fit between local and regional priorities. He
spoke about the follow-up work in local planning and said that the partnership
remained strong despite the challenges and demands in dealing with some very
complex issues. He provided details on tackling child sexual exploitation,
alongside the specialist Police unit, and the need to increase dedicated Social
Worker support to possible victims and share learning on raising awareness to
identify and intervene where necessary.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee recognises the strong regional and local alignment of
priorities and is assured of the planning and achievement by the local
Community Safety Partnership.

LOCAL SERVICE BOARD (LSB) AND STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS
PERFORMANCE - END OF YEAR REPORT 2014/15

The Chief Executive introduced an update on the performance of each
of the strategic partnerships and the end of year assessments for the progress
of the Local Service Board (LSB) priorities. The three current LSB priorities had

-3-
Page 5



32.

a good sub-structure in place and reported overall good progress against
milestones, activities and confidence in achieving outcomes. There were
concerns about financial support for the requirements of the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, on which guidance was awaited,
however governance arrangements were not expected to change.

Amongst the achievements, the Policy & Performance Manager
highlighted a significant reduction in the percentage of Jobseeker Allowance
claims by 18-24 year olds. She also advised that the various workstreams
under the ‘People enjoy good health, wellbeing and independence’ priority
would be monitored by the Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Following comments from Councillor Robin Guest, the Chief Executive
explained that one body would continue to be responsible for the delivery of
outcomes for community safety however there was still a statutory duty to report
on performance and strategic delivery at the LSB.

On the appendix to the end of year report, Councillor Richard Jones
pointed out that reference to Flying Start had been removed from the published
version of the Improvement Plan. The Policy & Performance Manager referred
to the list of amendments to the Improvement Plan later on the agenda and
agreed to look into this query and respond separately to the Committee.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Committee is assured of the level of progress made during
2014/15 in the achievement of the single Integrated Plan priorities; and

(b)  That the Committee supports the future requirements of the Well-being
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the preparation being
undertaken.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

Councillor Aaron Shotton advised that following publication of Part 1 of
the 2015-18 Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in the Summer, an
update was scheduled for the next Cabinet meeting to table the Part 2 report
currently being prepared on plans to tackle the unprecedented gap of £20.8m
for 2016/17. A more detailed report would be shared at the Committee’s next
meeting in October including discussion on financial relief required from Welsh
Government (WG). As discussed at the Member workshops, the results of the
Comprehensive Spending Review and work by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) were awaited to demonstrate to WG the
effects of reduced funding and changes needed to the national funding formula.

The Chief Executive explained that the Cabinet report summarised the
high-level strategy with an overview of the content of the Part 2 report to be
shared at the meeting. A draft version had been shared with Group Leaders
and Chairs, and consideration was being given to including an item on MTFS

-4 -
Page 6



33.

at the Council meeting in September to maximise public awareness of the
significant financial challenges. Some information had also been shared with
the local press to show transparency and generate support for more funding
and greater flexibility. The Chief Executive spoke about the need for further
discussion on the budget consultation process and the Council’s principal role
in instigating plans for a national case for funding.

In response to a question from the Chairman regarding an email seeking
support for refugees, Councillor Shotton explained that the public statement
previously issued had openly shared the Council’s stance on the issue. The
first element was to reasonably assess what was achievable in terms of
capacity to meet needs, if called upon, and may require more detailed
discussion on preparations at full Council.

The Chief Executive reported on the establishment of a working group
involving Welfare Rights and Housing colleagues to consider how support could
be given, however any impact on Flintshire resources was expected to be low.

RESOLVED:

That the Leader and Chief Executive be thanked for the update on the Medium
Term Financial Strategy.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING (MONTH 3)

The Chairman welcomed the new format of report which prioritised the
Executive Summary and Recommendations.

The Corporate Finance Manager presented the first detailed Revenue
Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 3) for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) which was due to be submitted to Cabinet on
15 September.

For the Council Fund, the first early projection was an overall
underspend of £212K. Paragraph 1.04 advised of a projected £573K
underspend within Social Care, although £338k of this related to the
Independent Living Fund as the amount included in the budget was no longer
required following confirmation of the grant. It was recommended that £300k
was transferred to be held centrally pending future details on the grant.

The Corporate Finance Manager advised of the position in relation to the
programme of efficiencies which he said were being tracked through various
programme boards. Appendix 2 provided details on the latest position with
regards to the achievement of each of the efficiencies and it was reported that
at this stage, £10.876m of the £12.874m included in the budget were expected
to be achieved, which equated to 84%.

On unearmarked reserves, the balance of contingency reserves at
31 March 2015 was projected to be £4.958m, however this would be reduced

-5-
Page 7



34.

by £210K to meet the costs of the Speed Limit Review as approved by Cabinet
in June.

On the HRA, the net in-year expenditure was projected to be £70K more
than the budget forecast.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas raised queries on the efficiencies made from
Post Office payments and the first phase of the switchboard changes. She also
raised concerns about the overspend position in Streetscene and the possible
impact of outsourcing services. The Corporate Finance Manager stated that
the impact of the efficiencies not expected to be achieved were already
assumed in the projections and as such had been offset by compensatory
savings. The Chief Executive explained that the eight programme boards
(involving Cabinet Members for their respective portfolios) met monthly to
oversee any changes and track the budget, which helped to inform this update
report. He said that slippage on efficiency targets could not always be predicted
and was taken into account, with the expectation for other efficiencies to be
identified.

Following remarks from Councillor Richard Jones on the projected
achievement of efficiencies, the Chief Executive said that this was only the
latest prediction and that whilst some were achievable in-year, others may not
be. He suggested that it could be helpful for future update reports to give
analysis on the impact for the next financial year. He confirmed that work was
continuing to achieve the remaining 16% of efficiencies whilst also identifying
other efficiencies to compensate that gap.

Councillor Thomas said that realistic budgets were needed and asked
that her concerns about the overspend in Streetscene be referred to Cabinet.
The Chief Executive reiterated his comments about the role of the programme
boards in overseeing changes and would request an informal report on the
changes to Streetscene to be circulated to the Committee.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee is assured by the reporting on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring (Month 3); and

(b) That the Committee’s concerns at the level of overspend in Streetscene
be specifically drawn to the attention of the Cabinet.

QUARTER 1 - IMPROVEMENT PLAN MONITORING REPORT

The Policy & Performance Manager presented an update on progress
towards the delivery of the impacts set out in the 2015/16 Improvement Plan,
focussing on the areas of under-performance relevant to the Committee during
the first quarter of 2015/16. She referred to the new format of the sub-priority
reports following implementation of the new electronic performance
management system CAMMS which was proving to be more efficient. This new
format reflected information in previous reports together with additional details

-6 -
Page 8



35.

such as the percentage completeness of actions and clear Red/Amber/Green
(RAG) status.

On the efficient and effective support of front-line services, a progress
update on the implementation of the People Strategy had been circulated to
Members prior to the meeting. As mentioned at the Member workshop, a
‘Helpful Hints’ guide was circulated to the Committee to help in scrutinising
performance reports.

Councillor Andy Dunbobbin referred to the low number of customers who
had responded to a survey via a mobile device to say they had successfully
navigated the website. He suggested that the website homepage could provide
an opportunity to download the Flintshire app to encourage its use. The Chief
Executive agreed to pass on this suggestion.

Councillor Richard Jones felt that an exception-based report was not
sufficient and highlighted a number of discrepancies with the Improvement Plan
published on the website. The Policy & Performance Manager agreed to liaise
with Councillor Jones to ensure that all the changes had been correctly logged.

Councillor Jones felt that the Committee should receive monitoring
reports on the entire Improvement Plan at various stages. The Policy &
Performance Manager agreed that these could be shared at half-yearly stages.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee is assured by the Quarter 1 Improvement Plan Monitoring
Report, subject to an analysis of the variations between versions being carried
out and half-yearly progress reports on the whole of the Improvement Plan
being made to the Committee.

FUNCTIONS OF THE ELECTIONS TEAM AND INDIVIDUAL ELECTORAL
REGISTRATION

The Chief Executive introduced a report on the functions of the Elections
team, in response to a request from Councillor Robin Guest. He provided an
overview of the arrangements and key personnel used in the efficient running
of elections in Flintshire which had built up a good track record. The Chief
Executive spoke about the differing roles and responsibilities on elections, and
advised that he had been appointed as the Regional Returning Officer for the
North Wales region in next year’'s Assembly elections.

The Electoral Services Manager provided an update on progress in the
implementation of individual electoral registration (IER). She provided
information on work undertaken by the team to date in encouraging households
to register and obtaining the additional information as required by the
legislation. Work on the annual canvass had so far resulted in a good return
rate of 66% of households submitting their information mainly by post, with
reminders issued to the remaining households. A change to the process meant

-7 -
Page 9



36.

that those unconfirmed under IER at the end of the year would need to be
removed from the register.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas said that reminders sent by post were more
likely to be returned the same way, and suggested that social media could be
an alternative method of publicising registration. The Electoral Services
Manager explained that the legislation required a paper form to be issued but
that other means of reply were signposted.

The Chief Executive said that a refresh was needed to update some
practices in electoral registration law, and that the Council was using a range
of creative ways to encourage and remind householders about their
responsibility to register.

In response to comments from Councillor Peter Curtis on the potential
for more younger people to vote electronically if this was introduced, the Chief
Executive spoke about the high turnout from the Housing Ballot where a good
minority had cast votes online with the vast majority replying by post.

Councillor Aaron Shotton said that everyone had a role in encouraging
individuals to register to prevent exclusion from the political process.

The Chairman commented on the potential for unregistered households
to experience difficulties in obtaining certain services such as internet
connections. Councillor Richard Jones felt that such restrictions should be
highlighted to individuals. The Electoral Services Manager said that monthly
updates on the rolling register were made available.

Following a query from Councillor David Roney, the Electoral Services
Manager provided explanation on the data-matching exercise to assist in the
transfer to IER and the challenges in obtaining National Insurance numbers.

The Chairman thanked the Electoral Services Manager and her team for
their work.

RESOLVED:

That the work of the Elections team and the attempts to encourage greater
individual electoral registration be endorsed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to enable the
Committee to consider the Forward Work Programme. He agreed to
incorporate the suggestion made by Councillor Richard Jones earlier in the
meeting on the Improvement Plan.

Members discussed preparations for the next meeting where the Police
& Crime Commissioner was scheduled to attend to consult on the Crime &
Policing Plan for 2016/17. The Chief Executive advised that he had asked

-8-
Page 10



37.

Mr. Roddick to provide brief responses to the questions which had remained
unanswered after the County Council meeting in July 2015.

The Committee agreed to the suggestion made by the Member
Engagement Manager that he liaise with the Chairman and officers to schedule
further items at future meetings.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the Forward Work Programme, as submitted, be approved, with
progress on the whole Improvement Plan being added as a half-yearly
item; and

(b)  That the Member Engagement Manager, in consultation with the Chair
and Vice-Chair and officers, be authorised to vary the Forward Work
Programme between meetings.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press or public in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.30am and ended at 12.50pm)

Chairman

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

Sir y Fflint
"5!&!3!3!3.?@

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING
Date of Meeting Thursday 8™ October, 2015

Report Subject Medium Term Financial Strategy

Portfolio Holder Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance

Report Author Chief Executive

Type of Report Strategic

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report introduces Part Il of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for
the three year period 2015-2018 for the Council Fund. The strategy was reported
to Council on 24 September and was approved by majority vote.

Part | of the Strategy, which forecast the resources which are likely to be available
to the Council for this three year period, and the pressures on those resources that
we can foresee and calculate, was published earlier this summer.

Part 1l sets out how the Council could manage a significant reduction in resources
—in a period of major reductions in national funding for local government — whilst
seeking to protect local public services and retaining its position as a well
governed and high performing local authority in Wales.

Part Il titled Meeting the Financial Challenge opens by sizing the financial
challenge facing the Council, some £52.8m of budget reductions required over
three years, and then explores how Flintshire is funded and performs compared to
the rest of the local government sector in Wales. The funding strategy to meet this
unprecedented

financial challenge is then set out in three parts:-

Funding Strategy Part 1: Service
Funding Strategy Part 2: Corporate Financial Stewardship
Funding Strategy Part 3: Working with Welsh Government

Given that the Council already has in place a plan for meeting the £18.3M gap in
resources in 2015-16, the strategy concentrates on how to meet the gap in 2016-
17 (£20.8M) and again in 2017-18 (£13.7m)

A

Page 13



RECOMMENDATIONS

1

To note that the following resolutions were passed by Council on 24
September:

a) The second and concluding part of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) tilted Meeting the Financial Challenge is
adopted (on recommendation of the Cabinet) for consultation
and development as the first step towards setting balanced
budgets for 2016-17 and 2017-18;

b) The specific proposals set out by Cabinet for service reform,
corporate financing options, and national support and relief, are
subject to detailed consultation and development; and

c) There is early engagement with Welsh Government, with cross-
council support and with the support and involvement of the
Welsh Local Government Association as our representative
body, on the case for national support and relief as set out in
Meeting the Financial Challenge.

2 To review and comment on the strategy, and the implementation of the
above resolutions of Council
3 To advise on alternatives to the contents of the strategy as a contingent
should it not succeed
REPORT DETAILS
1.00 | EXPLAINING THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY
1.01 | Councils are required to publish a Medium Term Financial Strategy
(MTFS) as part of good governance. The dual purpose of an MTFS is to
forecast the financial resources available to a Council for a given period,
and to set out plans for how best to deploy those resources to meet its
priorities, duties and obligations.
1.02 | The latest version of the MTFS of the Council is being published in two

parts - Part 1. Forecasting the Challenge and Part 2: Meeting the
Challenge. The MTFS is being published for the three year period 2015/16
to 2017/18 which will take Flintshire to the end of the first year of the new
Council which will be elected in May 2017. This new style MTFS will be
revised and republished twice per year. Firstly, in January/February, as
part of the annual budget setting process, and then in September/October
as part of setting the context for the following budget year. The MTFS
covers the Council Fund and excludes the stand-alone Housing Revenue
Account (HRA) which is a ‘ring-fenced’ account. A separate MTFS style
summary of the HRA is being produced.

Page 14




1.03

Part 1: Forecasting the Challenge has already been published and
reported to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny. It is
attached as Appendix 1.

1.04

Part 2. Meeting the Challenge was presented to Council on 24 September.
This report summarises its contents.

1.05

The strategy was fully discussed by full Council as a principal agenda item
at its recent meeting. The strategy was approved by majority during a
recorded vote. A verbal summary of the Council meeting will be given at
the meeting (pending publication of the minutes). The slide presentation
used at full Council is appended.

1.06

The Part 1 of the Strategy forecasts a cumulative real reduction in
resources available to the Council of £52.8M over the three year period.
As Part 1 summarises “our resources are being reduced year on year,
through big reductions in the grants we depend on from Government. We
then also have to meet cost pressures, such as inflation, with less money
at our disposal. Inflation, rises in demand for critical services, such as
social care, and the cost of legal obligations placed upon us, such as
pension’s reform, all place a strain on our reducing budget.” In the ‘annual
settlement’ where Government decides how much funding to set aside for
local government, provision was once made for inflation and other
pressures with councils being funded to meet them. This is no longer the
case with councils now facing this double pressure of an actual reduction
in its annual grant on the one side, and no financial protection for the extra
things they have to fund on the other. This is why the annual targets for
budget reductions are so high. For Flintshire the target for 2015/16 is
£18.3M, for 2016/17 20.8M, and for 2017/18 £13.7M. This is how the
cumulative target for £52.8M breaks down over the three years based on
our latest predictions.

1.07

The Council plans to meet the first £18.3M through a programme of
service reforms, efficiencies, budget reductions and income growth. This
programme was adopted as part of setting the 2015/16 annual budget.
Despite the Council having a high success rate in achieving its annual
efficiency targets year on year it cannot be guaranteed that the Council will
achieve this challenging total in full. Any ‘failure rate’ in the achievement of
targets could mean that we have to find further efficiencies in future years
to make up the difference.

1.08

Part Il of the Strategy is built up in five chapters:-

e Chapter 1: Sizing the Challenge where the forecast for the three
year period from Part | of the Strategy is again set out

e Chapter 2: Flintshire: An Efficient and Innovative Council which
summarises the Council’s track record of being innovative and cost-
effective in managing the decline in public funding thus far

e Chapter 3: Flintshire: A Low Funded Council where the case is
made that Flintshire, as a low funded council under the national
funding formula for local government, is particularly at risk under the
UK Government’s national programme of public sector funding
reductions and fiscal constraint

Page 15




e Chapter 4: Our Three Part Funding Strategy of:

o Funding Strategy Part 1: Service Reform which sets out our
continued programme of service reforms as the first part of a
tripartite strategy to manage and save money

o Funding Strategy Part 2: Corporate Financial Stewardship
which sets out our proposals for financing options for the
whole Council as the second part of a tripartite strategy to
manage and save money; and

o Funding Strategy Part 3: Working with Welsh Government
which sets out our case to Welsh Government for financial
support and relief as the third part of a tripartite strategy to
manage and save money

e Chapter 5: Conclusions and Way Forward where everything is
pulled together

1.09

In Meeting the Challenge we set out for 2016/17 estimated efficiencies and
income growth within services, through service reform proposals, of £7M
and a further £56M+ through corporate financing proposals. We then go to
set out a number of funding proposals and reforms for Welsh Government
of around £7M. The three parts of the funding strategy combined would
take us to a total of approaching £20M for the next financial year. The
strategy is a basis for future budget options through to 2017/18. There are
risks to this strategy. Nothing can be assumed under the third part of the
strategy and the willingness and ability of Welsh Government to assist.
What is clear from the Council’s funding position, and our space to identify
further savings beyond those already being reported, is that if Welsh
Government does not provide support with flexibilities and some relief then
the Council will have to turn to options for much deeper funding cuts which
neither it nor the public will find acceptable.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

The Medium Term Financial Strategy involved planning the use of the
financial resources of the Council for a three year period. The implications
and risks are therefore significant. The report and the appendices are self-
explanatory in presenting the risks to the Council of the major annual
reductions in Government funding it is facing. The three part Funding
Strategy is in itself a set of proposed solutions.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

Members of the Council have been invited to two Workshops in July where
the financial forecast and the developing strategy have been shared and
explored. Group Leaders and Overview and Scrutiny Chairs have also been
engaged over a period of time by the Leader. Part 1 of the Strategy has
been formally reported to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny for comment and adoption. Chief Officers, the Finance Team, and
many service managers and teams have been involved in developing the
business plans and corporate finance options which are featured in Part Il of
the Strategy. The strategy was formally presented to County Council on 24
September.

Page 16




4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | The national reductions in funding for local government poses the greatest
risk to the governance, performance and sustainability of the Council since
the previous reorganisation in the mid-1990s. This risk can be mitigated
through a twofold approach. Firstly, the Council continuing to streamline and
innovate. Secondly, by working with Welsh Government to seek some
support and relief from budget reductions based on a reasoned case. This
twofold approach is set out in Part Il of the Strategy Meeting the Financial
Challenge.

4.02 | The risks posed to the plans to change and innovate within specific services
are managed through assessing the risks and impacts of change as part of
framing options and making decisions. The Programme Boards set up to
oversee the implementation of the Chief Officer portfolio business plans
manage these risks in close detail, with reports being made to Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny at key stages of decision-taking and, later,
performance reporting and evaluation.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix 1: Published Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015-2018 Part 1:
Forecasting the Challenge.

5.02 | Appendix 2: Published Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015-2018 Part 2:
Meeting the Financial Challenge.

5.03 | Appendix 3: Powerpoint slide presentation used at County Council 24
September 2015.

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Various working papers and national reference documents held by the
Corporate Finance Officer and Chief Executive.

Contact Officer: Colin Everett
Chief Executive
Telephone: 01352 702101
Email: chief.executive@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS): a written strategy which gives
a forecast of the financial resources which will be available to a Council for
a given period, and sets out plans for how best to deploy those resources
to meet its priorities, duties and obligations.

7.02 | Council Fund: the majority of the Council’s revenue expenditure covering

all services except Council Housing for which there is a stand-alone and
ring-fenced account called the Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

Page 17



mailto:chief.executive@flintshire.gov.uk

7.03

Housing Revenue Account (HRA): the Housing Revenue Account is
‘ring-fenced”. This means that local authority housing finance is kept
separate from other council accounts.

7.04

Annual Settlement: the amount of its funds the Welsh Government will
allocate annually to local government as a whole, as part of its total
budget, and to individual councils one by one. The amount of Revenue
Support Grant (see below) each council will receive is based on a complex
distribution formula for awarding Aggregate External Finance (AEF). The
formula is underpinned by assessments of local need based, for example,
of population size and demographics and levels of social deprivation.

7.05

Aggregate External Finance (AEF): the total amount of support the
Welsh Government provides to councils each year. The total is made up
of Revenue Support Grant (see below), a share of the national ‘pool’ of
National Non-Domestic Rates (see below) and a number of specific grants
where funds are provided for councils to spend on specified services to
achieve pre-set outcomes for example in education or waste collection.

7.06

Local Government Funding Formula: the system through which the
annual funding needs of each council is assessed at a national level, and
from which each council’'s annual AEF (see above) is derived. The
formula is very complex. In summary, using information such as statistics
on local population change and deprivation, the formula sets a guide for
each council’s funding needs called the Standard Spending Assessment
(SSA).

7.07

Standard Spending Assessment (SSA): Standard Spending
Assessments are notional calculations of what each Council needs to
spend to provide a standard level of service.

7.08

Revenue Support Grant: the annual amount of money the Council
receives from Welsh Government to fund what it does alongside the
Council Tax and other income the Council raises locally. Councils can
decide how to use this grant across services although their freedom to
allocate according to local choice can be limited by guidelines set by
Government.

7.09

National Non-Domestic Rates: the business equivalent of the Council
Tax where companies pay a property based tax for local services. Each
council as the local collection authority collects the tax from companies,
pays it into a national ‘pool’, and then receives a share back as part of its
Annual Settlement (see above).

Page 18




Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Part 1 - September 2015
Forecasting the Challenge

B 0152018

Sir'y Flint
. Flintshire



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

INntroduction

This Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is comprised of two parts. The first part the
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecasts the resources the Council is likely to
have over the next three years. In Part 2 of the MTFS Meeting the Financial Challenge
the Council sets out plans and solutions for managing with reducing resources over this
three year period.

Our resources are being reduced, year on year, through big reductions in the grants
we depend on from Government. We then also have to meet cost pressures, such as
inflation, with less money at our disposal. Inflation, rises in demand for critical services,
such as social care, and the cost of legal obligations placed on us, such as pensions
reform, all place a strain on our reducing budget.

A summary of the forecasting position for 20156/16 - 2017/18 is set out below.

Table 1 - Summary of forecasting position 2015 - 2018

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18  Total

Expenditure £m £m £m £m
National Pressures 0.9 0.4 0.3 1.6
Local Pressures 6.2 2.5 1.2 9.9
Inflation 4.1 4.1 4.3 12.5
Workforce Pressures 2.5 9.4 3.7 15.6
Income

Reduction in Revenue Support Grant (3.5%) 6.6 6.5 6.3 19.4
Council Tax Increase (3%) (2.0) (2.1) (2.1) (6.2)
Projected Gap 18.3 20.8 13.7 52.8

Page 20



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018 Part 1

Contents

Forecasting for the Future:

1. National Pressures 4
2. Local Pressures 6
3. Inflation 8
4. Workforce 10
5. Income 13
6. Total Impacts 15
Tables

Table 1 - Summary of forecasting position 2015 - 2018 2
Table 2 - Specific Non Workforce National Pressures B
Table 3 - Specific Non Workforce Local Pressures 7
Table 4 - Historical Budgeted Inflation 9
Table 5 - Inflation Forecast 9
Table 6 - Pay Awards Impact 10
Table 7 - Single Status Impact 11
Table 8 - Cost of Pensions to the Council as the Employer 12

Page 21



1. National

Pressures

These are financial pressures which are driven nationally and are beyond the control of

the Council. They may come about from policy directions or new legislation from either

UK Government or Welsh Government, where powers are increasingly devolved. These

pressures are expected to be met by councils without extra funds being set aside by

Government.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) was
introduced in 2013/14 by Welsh Government
to provide financial assistance to help some
residents pay their Council Tax. CTRS replaced
the previous Council Tax benefit system. Welsh
Government funding for the scheme does not
increase year on year and therefore the annual
increase in Council Tax ‘benefits’ payments we
pay out is a pressure on the Council’s budget.
Over the medium term, this will cost the Council
an estimated £0.952m.

Discretionary Housing Payments

Changes to the Government’s Welfare Reform
Programme have had a financial impact on some
households. Discretionary Housing Payments
(DHP) offer temporary support to people in
difficulty. Over the last three years the Council
has ‘topped up’ the DHP funds provided by
Welsh Government to help the most vulnerable.
In 2014/15 this cost the Council £0.053m. In
2015/16 there will be a reduction of £0.067m in
the amount of funding the Council receives for
DHP. The Council will be under pressure to make
up any difference.

Impacts of Legislation and Case Law

New legislation such as the Social Services Bill,
and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Case Law
(DoLS), can affect the way services are to be
provided and people’s rights. Councils have to
manage the financial impact of changes in the
law as part of their budget often without any
additional support from Government. Within the
2015/16 budget a pressure of £0.290m has had
to be met for DolLS.

Independent Living Fund

The Independent Living Fund (ILF) provides
financial support to disabled people with
significant care needs to help them live
independently at home or in the community.
The UK Government announced that the fund
will close from June 2015 with the responsibility
for financial support to be transferred to local
authorities. The cost pressure for Flintshire
County Council is estimated to be £0.338m in
2015/16 with an additonal pressure of £0.112m
in 2016/17. Welsh Government have recently
said that there may be some financial support
to help Councils with the transition. At this stage
we do not know what help we will receive, if any.

Reductions in Specific Grants

The Council relies on numerous specific grants
which the Welsh Government allocate to directly
fund services such as Education and Waste
Management.

In recent financial years there have been some big
reductions in these grants. The Council sometimes
has to make up the difference for services to

ge zzontinue.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018 Part 1
Table 2 - Specific Non Workforce National Pressures
£m
0.50
CTRS
0.40 ILF
[ pos
_ 030
&
ke
0.20
0.10

2015/16
Pressure

Late notification of specific grant allocations by Welsh
Government make financial planning challenging.

The risks to services from reductions in specific
grants include:

e Sustainable Waste Management Grant -
previous reductions in this grant had created
a cumulative cost pressure of £0.308m by
2014/15. A further reduction in the grant for
2015/16 has been confirmed at £0.100m giving
a total reduction to date of £0.408m.

e Supporting People Grant - there has been a
sustained reduction in this grant since 2009/10
of £1.6m.

e Education Improvement Grant - Big changes
to the education grant system from April 2015
have resulted in 11 grants being amalgamated
into a single grant called Education Improvement
Grant. The effect of these changesin 2015/16 is
areduction of 9.85% or £0.509m. From 2016/17
Welsh Government are planning to introduce
a funding formula for this grant. The impacts
of this next phase of change are unknown.

e Post 16 Education Grant - This grant was
reduced in 2015/16 by 2.5% or £0.149m.
Intelligence from Welsh Government suggests
a further 5% cut in 2016/17.

2016/17

2017/18

The total impact of just the grant reductions shown
above comes to £2.7m. Future grant reductions
are unconfirmed at this stage and subject to
change.

Workforce Costs

There are significant new workforce costs from
national changes to Local Government and
Teacher Pensions Schemes. These are covered in
Section 4 - Workforce.

The total impact of known national pressures is £1.6m

Page 23

5



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

2. Local

Pressures

Local pressures come about from demands for services and other local circumstances.
They are not funded by Government grant with the cost falling on the Council.

Current Local Pressures

Social Services:
Transition to Adulthood

Each year a number of clients are expected to
have ongoing social care needs as they transfer
from children’s services and become adults. The
cost of care packages for each client is based on
a careful assessment of their future care needs. In
2015/16 and 2016/17 the number of young clients
transferring to Adult Social Care will be 16 and 14
respectively. This has led to a budget pressure of
£1.239m in 2015/16, £0.923m in 2016/17 and
£0.640m in 2017/18. We have a duty to meet their
needs.

Extra Care

There will be annual revenue costs from the running
of the new Extra Care Scheme in Flint which will
become operational in 2017.

School Modernisation

This pressure is an estimate of the service ‘exit’
costs of teaching and other employees leaving our
service as we change school provision and open
the new Post 16 hub at Coleg Cambria, Deeside.

elopncmT .I ‘
8 ﬁ & ﬂ Teamwovk < L%

N->T1=-0O -0

74
Amlqss Mm/\MO‘eMevd' . \o

Landfill Tax

An increase in the rate per tonne we pay to take
waste to landfill is an additional pressure. There
is a statutory requirement to dispose of our
waste. The Council is diverting as much waste as
possible from landfill through increasing recycling
and other forms of disposal.

Making Workforce Efficiencies

As part of the budget for 2015/16, a pressure
was included to cover our changing savings
targets for reducing the workforce set as part of
the 2014/15 budget. Future workforce efficiencies
are now being built into our business planning
process. There are also cost pressures through
releasing employees through redundancy and
early retirement.,

Prudential Borrowing

The Council has built up borrowing over the years
to fund capital schemes. A review of our Central
Loans and Investment Account will reprofile
our borrowing. This ongoing review may create
efficiencies or pressures. The Council is planning
to increase its borrowing to pay for new capital
schemes such as improving school buildings.

Internal Insurance Fund

The Council provides insurance cover for the
risks it faces through a combination of purchased
external insurance and self-insurance through
our internal insurance fund. The adequacy of the
internal fund has been assessed by our insurance
brokers. There is a need to increase the funds to
meet our risks.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Part 1

Table 3 - Specific Non Workforce Local Pressures

£m

2.00

1.50

1.00

2015/16 2016/17

Information Technology

Thereisanew recurring pressure from our Microsoft
Enterprise Licence agreement at an annual cost
of £0.350m per annum from 2016/17. A further
emerging pressure for software maintenance is
for the iTrent (Human Resources) system from
2016/17.

Workforce Costs

There are significant new workforce costs from the
introduction of the Local Single Status Agreement
and the actuarial review of the Clwyd Pension
Fund. These are covered in Section 4 - Workforce.

Emerging Local Pressures

Municipal Mutual Insurance

Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI) was the main
insurer of the public sector prior to it closing its
insurance business in 1992. A scheme is in place
for any liabilities still outstanding from historic
insurance with MMI. Any increase in claims arising
from that period could impact on the levy to be
paid by the Council.

Ll b

[l Transition to Adulthood
Insurance
B Rental Income
I school Modernisation
B Landfill Tax
Prudential Borrowing
Extra Care Revenue
[ Unachieved Workforce
efficiency
ICT Licences &
Maintenance
2017/18

September 2015

Contaminated Land Strategy

The Council has a responsibility to ensure there is
no public risk from former landfill sites. There is a
need for the Council to assess if there is any need
for remedial work on these sites.

Waste Management

The Council is exposed to risks including
fluctuations in recycling income from sales of
waste recyclates in the open market.

Economy

The Council is exposed to the risk of decreases
in the income it relies on from fees and charges
in services such as leisure and planning. These
fluctuations can depend on the health of the
economy.

The total impact of major local pressures is £9.9m

Page 25

7



Part 1

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 -

2018

3. Inflation

Inflation is the rate at which the prices for goods and services are expected to rise.

The inflation costs a council has to meet are not the same as those that households face.
Even at times of low Retail Price Index (RPI) inflation councils can have big inflationary
pressures. Flintshire County Council builds inflation into its annual budgets based on

the latest market intelligence. Overall, income budgets include a 3% increase to meet
inflation. This is based on recent trends in inflation. Within the annual funding ‘settlement’
the Council receives from Welsh Government no provision is made for inflation. This means
that the Council has to find a way of meeting the costs of annual inflation from within its

reducing resources.

Types of Inflation
Pay

Provision for nationally agreed pay awards is
based on the latest information from our national
negotiating bodies. Over the last three years pay
inflation has been assumed at 1%, and included
in the budget at this level until confirmation of
each annual agreements has been received.

mwv -

Prices

The current forecast for price inflation includes
a 2% increase over all expenditure budgets,
apart from what we call Non Standard Inflation.
Budgets which are not exposed to normal price
inflation, such as Benefits, are excluded.

Over the last three years, service managers have
had to absorb price inflation within their budgets,
without any increase. Extra provision has only
been made where there is an exceptional case. In
2015/16 this extra provision totalled £0.421m for
exceptions such as increases in care fees where
we commission residential care home places.

Non Standard Inflation

Non Standard Inflation provision is set aside to
support services which are exposed to higher than
normal annual inflationary pressures in buying fuel,
energy and food supplies.

In recent years these rates of inflation have been
volatile, for example, in the energy sector due to
rising oil prices. More provision for inflation has
been made in these areas in the last two financial

Page 26

8



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Part 1

Table 4 - Historical Budgeted Inflation

Inflation figures
in£m
8 —

7_

6_

Total

| TR

-I 1 1 1 1 1 1 J

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Trend of inflation built into annual budgets.

years, (energy at 8%, fuel at 11.2% and food at
5.8%).

As part of the 2015/16 budget strategy the need to
set aside any provision for Non Standard Inflation
was reviewed. Specific market intelligence on
energy (from Crown Commercial Services, UES
Energy) shows that overall prices for gas and
electricity were predicted to stay stable in 2015/16.

Market intelligence within the food markets (from
Tuco Ltd, Procurement Partner) shows that some
food groups may be subject to an increase of
between 0.5% and 3%. Inflation on food was
considered to be the area of greatest risk in
2015/16. Therefore an allocation of £0.064m was
held within the budget.

The inflation risks and costs of energy, fuel and
food are subject to many economic and other
factors beyond our control. Market intelligence

Table 5 - Forecast within MTFS

Inflation figures
in £m
8 —

7_

6_

—

Total
D
[

1
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

*Includes Schools for forecasting purposes
*Rates of inflation are subject to review and consideration
of Market Intelligence as part of next phase

Rates of inflation change over time and are under constant
review by the Council.

will be used with quarterly updates to help make
this as accurate a forecast as possible.

Inflation on Income

In recent years income budgets have included a
3% increase to reflect the need to raise prices in
line with costs. See Section 5 - Income.

The total amount of inflation forecast is £12.5m

Page 27

9



4, \Worktorce

By far the biggest cost of managing a Council of our size is the cost of employing our
workforce. Flintshire both employs people to provide services direct to communities and
to customers, and commissions or contracts out other services. Where we commission
or contract the Council is not the employer. We also employ people to provide essential
internal support services such as Finance and Human Resources.

The costs of employing our workforce are rising due to a combination of national and
local pressures including annual pay rises, pensions reform, and the Single Status

Agreement.

Flintshire employs around 7,140 people in 8,206
roles. The total annual ‘wage bill’ in 2014/15 was in
the region of £178m. The ‘wage bill’ is made up of
salaries, employer pension contributions, employer
national insurance contributions, and allowances
and expenses.

The costs of employing people are rising. The costs
pressures can be grouped as:-

‘cost of living’ pay rises
low pay protection costs
local pay settlements
pensions

‘Costs of Living’ Pay Rises

Workers expect to receive an annual pay rise for
their earnings to keep pace with inflation. These are
commonly known as ‘cost of living’ pay awards and
are negotiated nationally between representatives of
the local government employers and the trade unions.

~age 2

Following a period of imposed pay ‘freezes’, annual
pay awards are again being granted by agreement.
Annual pay awards are running at between 1-2% for
most local government workers.

The cumulative impact of national pay awards for
2015/16-2017/18 is shown in Table 6.

Table 6 - Pay Awards Impact

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m £m
1.804 1.690 1.707 5.201

Low Pay Protection Costs

Workers are protected from being low paid through the
setting of a national minimum wage. The lowest levels of
pay in local government are above the national minimum
wage. The minimum wage is £6.50 per hour rising to
£6.70 per hour on 1 October 2015. Flintshire’s lowest
hourly pay rate is currently £7.189 per hour. Whilst there
are no immediate pay pressures here for the Council as
it meets its legal obligations, this might change over time.

There is pressure from Trade Unions, some political
parties and lobby groups for employers to adopt the
Living Wage. The Living Wage is argued to be a more
realistic amount for people to live on and is set at a higher
rate than the Minimum Wage at £6.50 per hour. Whilst
Flintshire has gone some way to preventing low pay and
has implemented a pay structure where the lowest pay
grade ‘tops out’ near to the Living Wage, we have not
as an employer set it as a minimum. If we were to do
so this would present a new cost pressure. Just under
1,300 employees (including relief workers) are currently
gaid beneath the Living Wage.



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Part 1

Local Pay Settlements

Local authorities have obligations to ensure that they pay
all employees fairly with equality of treatment for women
and men. These obligations come from important
national agreements and the equal pay legislation.
Reviewing local pay arrangements to ensure that there
is equality of treatment is a complex and time-consuming
exercise. Like many other local authorities Flintshire has
now reached a Single Status Agreement to achieve this.
Under our Agreement we have introduced a new pay and
grading model. Single Status Agreements have in every
single case around the country added cost to the ‘wage
bill’. Whilst some employees will gain on pay, some will
stay the same, and some will lose on pay, a significant
majority will have to gain or stay the same to successfully
achieve agreement through negotiations between
employer and trade unions and then through a workforce
ballot. Therefore, there will be a total increase in pay costs
across the board under these types of Agreements.

Some years ago the Welsh Government made extra
provision in the base financial settlement for local
government to support the costs of introducing Single
Status Agreements in the knowledge that they would
inflate workforce costs. Whilst providing this support was
a visionary step towards ending unequal pay between
women and men, the provision set aside was not enough
to meet the inflationary impact in full. Councils have
to make up the shortfall themselves.

Flintshire’s Single Status Agreement was introduced
in 2014. The inflationary impacts for the first two years
have been ‘buffered’ or cancelled out through the use
of financial reserves. The Agreement will impact on the
budget from June 2016. The annual cost of the wage bill
will rise for several years as some employees who have
entered a new pay grade work their way up through the
annual pay increments until they reach the top of their
grade. At this point the wage bill will ‘peak’.

The impacts of the Single Status Agreement are shown
in table 7 below. The impacts shown are net of the annual

Table 7 - Single Status Impact

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m £m
0.000 3.774 1.726 5.500

- i

provision with the national financial settlement of £4.3m.
The forecasted impacts reported to Council in October
2013, when adopting the Single Status Agreement,
were greater; they have been significantly reduced
through the ongoing programme of reducing the scale
of the workforce through voluntary redundancies and
retirements.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Local government employees (other than teachers,
police and firefighters) are entitled to be members of the
local government pension scheme. The pension scheme
is a funded one where both employers and employees
contribute to the costs of building their ‘pension pot’ for
their eventual retirement. The monies are invested into the
Clwyd Pension Fund for capital gain and income to pay
pension liabilities both now and into the future.

Public service pension schemes are being reformed to
help financial sustainability. For the local government
pension scheme the new CARE (Career Average)
scheme replaced the final salary scheme from 1st April
2014. At a national level the Government have reviewed
how the pension provision is shared more fairly between
employees and scheme employers, if costs continue
to increase. This may result in a change to employee
contributions or scheme benefits in the future.

The employer contribution for the Council is set by
the Fund Actuary every three years. The last actuarial
valuation date was 31 March 2013 which provided both
future service cost contributions and deficit payments for

/15, 2015/16 and 2016/17. The future Flintshire rate
Page 2



Part 1 Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

is a percentage of pensionable pay and will
vary. At the last actuarial valuation the employer
contribution rate was set as 12.2% (2014/15),
13.2% (2015/16) and 13.9% (2016/17),

At the last Actuarial Valuation the Council had
a pension deficit of £197m. The Council has a
deficit recovery plan of 19 years and the agreed
payments are £9.185m (2014/15), £9.490m
(2015/16) and £9.985m (2016/17).

The pension contributions to be made to the
Clwyd Pension Fund by Flintshire as an employer
were in the region of £10.2m.

For the third and final year of this MTFS it is more
difficult to estimate pension costs. Despite strong
asset returns on investments of +16% in 2014/15,
the funding level of the Fund has fallen by 5%.
The Council’s deficit has therefore increased. This
is due to lower than estimated long term interest
rates. The Actuary of the Clwyd Pension Fund
will undertake a funding review this year which
may assist all employers in the Fund with their
future financial plans, ahead of the next Actuarial
Valuation.

Pensions Performance: the most recent actuarial
review in 2013/14 reset employer contributions
for the period 2014/15 - 2016/17. The inflationary
impacts are shown in table 8 below.

Pensions Reform: a number of recent pensions
reforms are causing inflationary pressure. Under
a change called the Single Pension Scheme local
government pension schemes will no longer qualify

for a rebate for national insurance contributions
made towards the additional State Pension known
as the Second Pension. This change will increase
National Insurance employer contributions by
3.4% from April 2016. The inflationary impacts
are shown in table 8 below. Employee national
insurance contributions will also increase.

Under a change called Automatic Enrolment,
access to pension provision in a qualifying pension
scheme had to be made available to all new
employees from 1 October 2012. For all existing
employees who had previously deferred entry or
opted out of the Clwyd Pension Fund, a transitional
period to October 2017 applies. At this time, any
remaining employees would be automatically
enrolled into the Clwyd Pension Fund. This will be
at a cost to the Council. It is not expected that all
employees with deferred Fund entry will choose to
stay in the Pension Fund at 2017, but a proportion
will. The predicted inflationary impacts are also
shown in table 8 below.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is a central
government controlled Public Service Pension
Scheme that, unlike the LGPS, is unfunded. The
contributions are set by Central Government.
Under pensions reform the employer contributions
for teachers’ pensions are to be increased from
2016. The inflationary impacts are also shown in
table 8 below.

Table 8 - Cost of Pensions to the Council as the Employer

Pressure 2015/16
£m
Actuarial Review 1.747
Single Pension Scheme 0
Auto Enrolment 0
Teachers’ Pension Increase 0
Total 1.747

2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m
1.504 1.300 4.551
2.787 0 2.787
0 0.625 0.625
1.364 0 1.364
5.655 1.925 9.327

The total amount of workforce pressures is £15.6m (excluding inflation)

Page 30



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Part 1

5. Income

The Council is funded from two main sources - the Revenue Support Grant and Council
Tax. The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) awarded by Welsh Government makes up 65%
of the total income of the Council with Council Tax contributing 22%. The remainder

is made up from specific government grants and income from fees and charges.

RSG is reducing year on year. UK Government fiscal plans show a continuation of
reductions in the medium term. Setting Council Tax is a continual challenge in the
current financial situation. Other income generating opportunities can be constrained
by Welsh Government controls and economic factors. It can be difficult to balance
increased charges to recover costs, with affordability and collectability from clients and

customers.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

The Council received a reductioninits RSG of 3.4%
in 2015/16 equal to £6.6m. Welsh Government
has not given any firm indication of the level of RSG
funding for future years. Continuing reductions are
expected and we are assuming reductions in RSG
of 3.5% per year for the next two years in this
strategy.

Over the medium term of this forecast this could
mean a total £19.4m reduction in RSG funding.

Section 1 - National Pressures highlights the

significant reductions in specific grants which
are added to the reduction in RSG in arriving at a
complete forecast for this three year period.

Council Tax and Business Rates

The Council collects the Council Tax from local
residents and the ‘Business Rates’ from local
businesses.

The level of Council Tax is set annually and is paid
by local residents to help finance the Council’'s
overall budget (£60m in 2015/16).

The Council collects the local ‘business rates’ on
behalf of Welsh Government. This is then paid
into a national pool and redistributed to councils
as part of the annual financial settlement. The
Council expects to collect in the region of £63m
in 2015/16. Of the collected amount the Council
only retains £51m with the rest going into the
national funding system.

As part of the budget for 2015/16 the Council
agreed to set the increase on Council Tax at
3.75%. This is at a higher level than the 3% set in
previous budget years. This extra rise was needed
due to the challenging financial position faced by
the Council as set out in this strategy.

The level of Council Tax for future years will be
a democratic decision of the Council. For the
purposes of this plan an annual increase of 3%
has been built in for 2016/17 and for 2017/18.
This would provide an additional £2.1m of income
per year. In setting the Council Tax the Council has
to balance the financial needs of the organisation
to maintain its services with the affordability of

Paqe @)l,lncil Tax for local residents.

13



Part 1

Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018

Fees and Charges

In 2014/15 the Council generated £25m from
fees and charges. The Council is developing
a more wide ranging Income Strategy to help
increase overall income to cope with the financial
challenges it is facing. This work builds on earlier
work to develop a single and consistent fees and
charges policy with transparency in the setting of
its fees and charges.

Existing fees and charges are, wherever possible,
increased annually by 3% to meet the costs of
inflation. However there are restrictions on the
levels of income councils can charge for some
services e.g. homecare services.

The budget strategy for 2015/16 was based on
fundamental three year business plan reviews
across all Council service portfolios. Within these
plans were proposals for increasing income
including:-

e maximisation of external funding

e increase in joint funding from Health

e Public Protection fee increases to reflect
cost

e review of car parking charges

e increased charging for some services

These reviews led to an increase in budgeted
income across portfolios of £2.3m in 2015/16.

For 2016/17 and 2017/18, the Council will need
to develop its income policy and identify new
opportunities for income to help bridge the gap
from the reduction in national funding.

Income Dependency

The Council is dependent on being able to
generate income to fund some of its core services.
For example, Leisure Services relies on £6m from
income, mainly from its customers, whilst Facilities
Services (Cleaning and Catering) relies on £3m
from external income. In Catering the strategy for
fees and charges needs to consider the impact of
charging to avoid turning customers away.

Constraints on Charging Policy

In recent vyears, Welsh Government have
introduced measures such as the First Steps
Improvement Package which introduced a then
cap of £50 per week on the amount that Local
Authorities could charge for Domiciliary Care.
This led to a loss of income to Flintshire County
Council of £0.426m in 2011/12 and has limited
the Council’'s ability to increase income for future
years.

Reviews of these national constraints are needed
to give councils the freedom to recover more
income to subsidise some of the services it
provides.

The impact of reductions in Revenue Support Grant is £19.4m offset by increase in

Council Tax income of £6.2m

Page 32

14



Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015 - 2018 Part 1

0. lotal Impacts

The total impact of known national pressures is £1.6m
The total impact of major local pressures is £9.9m
The total amount of inflation forecast is £12.5m

The total amount of workforce pressures is £15.6m (excluding inflation)

The impact of reductions in Revenue Support Grant is £19.4m offset by increase in
Council Tax income of £6.2m

Total impact is £ 52.8m

Page 33

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Medium Term
Financial Strategy

Part 2 - September 2015
Meeting the Financial Challenge

2015 - 2018

Sir y Fflint
( Hlintshire



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2 Meeting the Financial Challenge

INntroduction

The second part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out how the Council
plans to meet the challenge of the financial forecast set out in the first part of the
strategy.

In the first part of the MTFS we illustrated a forecast for the resources the Council will
have available for the three year period 2015/16-2017/18. This forecast is based on the
latest and most reliable available intelligence.

This second part of the MTFS builds on the work of recent years for the Council to be a
modern, cost-efficient and high performing organisation providing resilient local public
services which can be sustained in future years in the face of considerable funding
pressures.

List of Tables

Chapter 1
Table 1 - Forecast for 2015/16-2017/18

Chapter 2
Table 2 - Council Annual Efficiency Targets 2008/09-2015/16

Chapter 4a
Table 3 - Business Plan Efficiency Targets 2015/16-2017/18

Chapter 4b
Table 4 - Corporate Finance Efficiency Proposals 2015/16

Chapter 4¢c
Table 5 - Funding Pressures for National Support and Relief

Page 36



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2 Meeting the Financial Challenge

Contents

Meeting the Financial Challenge:

1. Sizing the Challenge 4
2. Flintshire: An Efficient and Innovative Council 0
3. Flintshire: A Low Funded Council 8
4. Flintshire: Our Strategy 11

4a. Funding Strategy Part 1: Service Reform 12

4b. Funding Strategy Part 2: Corporate Financial Stewardship 15
4c. Funding Strategy Part 3: Working with Welsh Government 18

5. Conclusions and Way Forward 22

Page 37



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

1. Sizing the Challenge

Councils are highly dependent on annual grant funding from Government to resource
the local services we provide to local communities. As set out in Part 1 of the Strategy
Forecasting the Challenge our resources are being reduced, year on year, through big
reductions in these grants. The Council also has to meet cost pressures such as inflation
and the demands of local people for services, with less money at our disposal. We forecast
a ‘gap’ of £52.8m in the resources of the Council over the three year period 2015/16-
2017/18. A forecast is simply a type of prediction. Whilst based on the latest and most
reliable available intelligence a forecast cannot be guaranteed to work out as assumed,
and the actual funding position for the Council could become better or worse over time.

Part 1 of the Strategy Forecasting the Challenge
forecasts a cumulative and real impact reduction
in resources available to the Council of £52.8m
over the three year period. As Part 1 says “our
resources are being reduced year on year, through
big reductions in the grants we depend on from
Government. We also then have to meet cost
pressures, such as inflation, with less money at
our disposal. Inflation, rises in demand for critical
services, and the cost of legal obligations placed
upon us, such as pensions reform, all place a
strain on our reducing budget”.

In the ‘annual settlement’ where Government
decides how much funding to set aside for
local government, provision was once made for
inflation and other pressures with councils being
funded to meet them. This is no longer the case
with councils now facing a double pressure of
an actual reduction in their annual grant on the

one side, and no financial protection for the extra
things they have to fund on the other.

This is why the annual targets for budget
reductions, or funding ‘gaps’ to be bridged, come
out so high.

For Flintshire the annual ‘gaps’ as set out in Table
1 are £18.3m for 2015/16, £20.8m for 2016/17
and £13.7m for 2017/18.

A cumulative funding gap of over £560m against a
net budget of around £250m is challenge enough
for any council. The challenge is made both more
complicated and more daunting by two factors
- the unpredictability of specific levels of funding
for local government, and the number of years for
which the public sector will have to endure repeat
and compounding reductions in Government
grant.

The unpredictability comes from the absence of
a medium term Government plan which sets out,
with a reasonable level of certainty, the resources
which will be allocated for local government
and, in turn, to each individual council. In A
Shared Commitment: Local Government and the
Spending Review published in June 2015 the Local
Government Association (LGA) calls for adequate
and fair funding for the public services. The LGA
and the Welsh Local Government Association
(WLGA) have long been pressing for medium
term financial settlements which would allow

aqe 3gounoils to plan ahead. Likewise, the Independent



Table 1 - Summary of forecasting position 2015 - 2018

Expenditure

National Pressures
Local Pressures
Inflation

Workforce Pressures

Income

Reduction in Revenue Support Grant (3.5%)

Council Tax Increase (3%)

Projected Gap

Commission on Local Government Finance in
Financing English Devolution has called for the
new UK Government to ‘commit to full and clear
multi-year settlements to enable effective long-
term planning for local authorities and other public
sector services’. In the absence of Government
taking a lead with resilient longer-term planning
how can councils be expected to ‘plan ahead
and make better-informed decisions’ in strategic
planning as suggested by the Wales Audit Office
in its publication Meeting the Financial Challenges
Facing Local Government in Wales?

The daunting challenge comes from the fiscal
plans of the UK Government to rebalance national
debt as a key feature of its economic policy. The
repeated annual reductions in national public
spending can be expected to continue for the
remainder of the decade based on Government
policy and the evaluation of its impacts by
reputable commenters such as the Institute for
Fiscal Studies. Local Government in England
has not had the protection of relative shielding
from public spending cuts as have some other
public services, such as the NHS, a development
which is now being mirrored in Wales with local
government being given less priority.

As explored in Chapter 4 local government in
Wales has a higher dependence on Government
grant than its peer group in England. This exposes
councils in Wales to a greater level of threat of

resource reduction in the absence of parallepaqe

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total
£m £m £m £m
0.9 0.4 0.3 1.6
6.2 2.5 1.2 9.9
4.1 41 4.3 12.5
2.5 9.4 3.7 15.6
6.6 6.5 6.3 19.4
(2.0) (2.1) (2.1) (6.2)
18.3 20.8 13.7 52.8

freedoms and flexibilities such as the retention of
additional National Non Domestic Rate (NNDR)
or ‘business rates’ income through successful
strategies for promoting local business growth.

The accuracy of the forecast set out for Flintshire
will be determined by a number of factors.
Government decisions on funding, trends in
inflation, national employment policy and pay
trends, and pressures on services through
demographic change and Government policy, will
all come into the mix.

The forecast set out in Part 1 of the MTFS will be
regularly reviewed and updated for Council plans
to be reviewed and re-set.




2. Flintshire: An Efficient and Innovative

Council

All public sector organisations should be expected to be efficient, channelling as much of
their resources as possible into services to local communities, and keeping their overhead
and administrative costs to a minimum. Equally, all organisations should be innovative in
finding new solutions to protect and develop their services with fewer and fewer resources.
Flintshire prides itself on being an efficient and innovative council. Whilst there is always
more that can be done, we have done much already. As each year of finding efficiencies to
bridge the budget gap passes by the scope to find new efficiencies narrows. It is important
that we demonstrate to our communities, Government, our regulators and ourselves, what
we have done and what we plan to do to indeed be efficient and innovative.

Councils are, by law, required to set a balanced
budget for each financial year and cannot ‘carry’
ongoing and unfunded deficits. Flintshire has
a successful track record of prudent financial
planning whilst meeting its legal obligations, and of
having its annual accounts passed by its external
auditors, year on year, without qualification.

For many years councils have had to find annual
efficiencies and savings to balance up their
budgets. In recent years the scale of the annual
efficiency and savings targets required have risen
to levels which have taken councils into uncharted
territory.

Flintshire has achieved close to £60m of efficiencies
and savings in the mainstream or ‘Council Fund’
expenditure over the past eight financial years
from 2008/09 to now. In earlier years these budget

progress mar\a%«wwm ‘
0 llence Sol

compeTenc(z value ]—f“(f)[)
improve i@n |l

EffecTiv

abiliTul delevelopw
pxocess Teamwo:
pexformance pe
ﬁ\(owﬂm sy
suCccess  INNne

changes were often made to reinvest money from
one service in another to support the priorities
the Council saw as important. In more recent
years budget changes have been made to fund
the annual budget ‘gap’ caused by the national
reductions in local government finance described
in Chapter 1. The fact that the last two financial
years of 2014/15 and 2015/16 account for nearly
£25m or 42% of this total figure, shows how the
funding position for Flintshire is deteriorating.

It is helpful to avoid using jargon in presenting this
picture of Flintshire’'s recent history. When public
organisations use the term efficiency they actually
mean a number of budgeting changes which,
taken together, fall under this generic term. In our
case the term combines the following:-

¢ Reducing the overall costs of individual services
through reviewing the way they are organised
and making them more efficient as business
operations

Smarter procurement or ‘buying’ and ‘contracting’

Reducing basic costs in the way the organisation
works for example its processing systems

Reducing seniormanagementandadministration
costs

Reducing the size and cost of the workforce

Raising more income through fees and charges
for services



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2 Meeting the Financial Challenge

Table 2 - Council Annual Efficiency Targets 2008/09 - 2015/16

Year 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Budget 226.419 233.335 240.408 239.896 241.203 258.825 253.718 249.979
Target £ 5.654 3.803 6.151 8.920 4.716 5331 11.950 12.874
Target % 2.50 1.63 2.56 3.72 1.95 2.06 4.70 5.15

Throughout the document we use the term
efficiencies and savings to mean all of these
things brought together under one easy to use
heading.

If a tax payer were to say ‘prove to me that the
Council is efficient” then a good answer would
involve showing the volume and quality of a
service against the amount of money spent on
it. To take the answer further the respondent
would show how well the council was performing
in this ‘value for money’ assessment against
comparable councils providing the same types
of services. Therefore, it is important to show
how well Flintshire is performing, not just how
cost efficient it might be to live up to the ‘tag’ of
being an ‘efficient and innovative council’.

Comparators of our performance in our peer
group of local councils are used in Chapter 3
where we explore how well funded the council
actually is.

In this Chapter we demonstrate how cost efficient
the council is against the benchmark of having to
achieve increasingly large targets of efficiencies
and savings to bridge the annual funding ‘gap’
through being innovative.

In recent years the Council has been highly

innovative. The following are some big examples

of this:-

e Reducing senior management posts and their
support by nearly 50%

e Reducing ‘middle’ management by between
25-30%

e Reducing administration and clerical positions
by over 40%

e All services being on track to achieve 30%
cost reduction targets (except education and
social care)

e | argescalevoluntary redundancy programmes
for non-teaching employees.

e Reduction in non-school based employees of
6% over the past 12 months alone

e Sharing buildings by co-locating with partners
including North Wales Police, Job Centre Plus
and Coleg Cambria

e Reducing office accommodation by 16%
through smarter ways of working

e Procuring or bulk buying with other councils
to get a better deal e.g. computer hardware

® |ntegrating services with other councils in the
region to share costs e.g. education

e Trading with other councils in services to
share costs e.g. Occupational Health

e Stopping trading in services where the market
performs better, for example trade waste

e |nviting local communities to take on
treasured local buildings and facilities through
‘community asset transfer’

e Moving a number of services away from direct
Council provision and into new ‘alternative
delivery models’ and reducing their level of
public ‘subsidy’ as a result

Recent ground breaking work shows how the
Council is being innovative to do things differently.
These include setting up a new wholly Council
owned Trading Company “New Homes” to help
provide homes for local people; the SHARP
programme (Strategic Housing and Regeneration
Programme) to build new Council and affordable
housing; switching social services for adults with
mental health issues and learning disabilities to
a new social enterprise, called “Double Click”, to
protect them for the future.

The opportunities for such innovations are
diminishing; the opportunities to save money are

Paqe Ql'_rxiinishing with them.



3. Flintshire: A Low Funded Council

Councils in Wales are funded by Welsh Government through a mechanism called the Local
Government Funding Formula. Within this formula a calculation or benchmark of what each
council needs called the Standard Spending Assessment (SSA) is included. The SSA is
based on factors including demography, population change and deprivation. Whilst being a
theoretical calculation the SSA is significant in determining how much of the share of public
funds set aside for local government in Wales comes to Flintshire. For Flintshire some
65% of our annual funding comes from Welsh Government through the formula. The Local
Government Funding formula is complex and theoretical. Whilst it can be argued that the
formula distributes the available funds fairly across twenty-two local authorities according
to need, the formula was not designed for a situation where the total amount of funding
being pass-ported through it was in sharp decline.

The formula works on theoretical indices of need;
it does not take into account the cost base of
services as provided in each county in real life.
Counties like Flintshire will have needs which are
not sufficiently recognised in a technical formula
which makes no provision for flexibility and
exceptions.

Flintshire, for example, is a semi-rural county with
a number of equally sized county towns where
communities need localised services. The Council
therefore has to manage a network of dispersed
services for example schools, leisure centres,
libraries and household recycling centres. The
point will come when the amount counties
receive though the formula is simply insufficient
to maintain services in a way which is similar
to current configurations. This means that local
services will face major upheaval as the current
pattern cannot be maintained. The cost of running
a secondary school efficiently from one council to

similar regardless of factors such as rurality and
deprivation. The amount of Government grant
we are now receiving is no longer sufficient to
maintain local services to the levels to which local
communities are accustomed. So for councils with
low funding it becomes a question of how many
schools or leisure centres a council can afford to
keep open and run, and not one of how efficient
they can be one by one.

Flintshire has come 19th out of the 22 councils
for the amount of Government funding it receives
through the formula per head of population in
each of the last two years. The Wales Audit
Office (WAQO) noted in its most recent Annual
Improvement Report that in 2014/15 gross
expenditure in Flintshire was £2,064 per head,
lower than in 2011/12, whilst the average across
Wales had risen from £2,250 to £2,312 per head
for the same period. WAO calculated that our
gross expenditure had fallen by some 7% over the
past three years against a Welsh average of 3%.
This analysis demonstrates that Flintshire is a low
funded council through the formula. With such
low funding the scope for making savings and
efficiencies, whilst trying to maintain services in
ways which support and serve local communities,
is very constrained.

To explore and demonstrate whether Flintshire

the next, or that of a principal leisure CentrePiéqe 429 indeed a low funded council we engaged The



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

Chartered Institute of Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) to provide advice. CIPFA tested the
presumption that Flintshire is ‘a low funded council
in Wales with less flexibility and capability to find
sufficient efficiencies under the current funding
system and formula’. The work was conducted
using existing data sets and information and with
no new empirical research. The work looked
at spend and performance in education and
social services as the two main areas of council
spending, and also in highways as a third area as
one of the priorities of the Council and one of keen
public interest.

The report of CIPFA concludes that ‘based on the
research that we have carried out using nationally
published data sets we can form a number of
tentative conclusions. We can conclude that:-

e Flintshire is a low spending authority on both
Social Care and Education;

e Flintshire achieves a relatively high level of
performance on both of these services despite
the low level of expenditure;

e Flintshire spends at an above average level on
highways;

e Flintshire achieves the highest level of
performance in Wales on the performance
measure of roads in poor condition.’

The report goes on to recognise that Flintshire has
a comparatively lower percentage of elderly people
amongst the local population as a demographic,
and a lower percentage of children in ‘care’. It also
recognises that the County has comparatively
lower levels of deprivation under the Wales Index

of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD). The report also
notes that the County has a large volume of daily
road traffic compared to other Welsh counties.

The CIPFA analysis demonstrates that Flintshire is
a low funded and a high performing council in its
two principal service areas, and is both a higher
spender and a higher performer than the average
in highways.

CIPFA then go on to note that from the Council’s
own statistics on demand ‘there appears to be:-

¢ a declining birth rate that could lead to a lower
demand for school places, although this could
also have an adverse effect on unit costs and
the funding formula;

e anincreasing demand for services for the elderly;

e a deteriorating condition of the highways and
footpaths network due to lower spending
under the County’s preventative approach to
maintenance.’

It should be added to the above that Flintshire
has experienced unprecedented rises in levels of
demand for Children’s Services in the past two
years and has had to make extra investment in
this highly sensitive area of social services to cope.

In confirming that Flintshire has ‘a low Standard
Spending Assessment (SSA) due to the demand
statistics in the calculation formula and a low
level of Aggregate External Finance (AEF)" the
independent analysis highlights that Flintshire
receives lower funding under the current system.
Why does this matter? If education and social care
account for two thirds of the Council’s expenditure,
and we already spend relatively lowly on them -
on spend per pupil in schools and on spend per
head of the adult population for social care - then
there is inevitably limited scope to be more cost
efficient. Given that Flintshire performs highly in
both service areas then any significant reduction
in spend will directly impact on performance to
the detriment to pupils and students, and local
people in need of care support. Whilst there may
appear to be scope for a reduction in spend on
highways maintenance, any such reduction will
impact on the quality of local roads people use.
Flintshire roads may be the best maintained in

Page \Qﬁges but the condition of our roads is declining.

9



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

The CIPFA report concludes as follow. ‘Overall,
we may conclude that, although the County has
a low level of funding and expenditure, it is able
to achieve a generally high level of performance.
The low level of funding appears to be due to
a low level of demand for services which is
reflected in the SSA calculation. Where demand
for a service is high, in the case of Transport, the
County is a higher spender and is able to achieve
the highest level of performance. This may lead
to the conclusion that with additional funding and
a higher level of expenditure the County could
increase its current level of performance in other
services. However, the spending on highways
looks set to fall under the County’s preventative
approach to maintenance.

Notwithstanding this conclusion we have been
made aware of a number of local factors that
impact on the County’s ability to deliver services
and which have little or no impact on the funding
formula. Although we have not attempted to verify
or quantify the impact as part of this review the
key points to consider include:-

e the County has a large business base impacting,
for example, on infrastructure investment and

How We Perform

planning and public protection services and this
is not included in the funding formula;

¢ the formula makes no recognition of historic and
current patterns of local provision according to
community need and county conurbations;

e the County’s geographical positioning
with England, in the context of its highway
infrastructure and Gateway to Wales position
leads to high volumes of traffic both in and out
of the County.’

The CIPFA report closes with the final critical point
that ‘the County’s Medium Term Financial Strategy
does not at this stage show a balanced position
and the fact that it is making a national case for
funding relief could be interpreted as suggesting
that the County has reached the stage where it is
no longer viable’.

This stark conclusion to the analysis does
point to the risk of the Council being financially
unsustainable as a unit under the current funding
formula on which we rely for close to three quarters
of our funding. This underpins the rationale for our
three part strategy.

In 2014/15 Flintshire achieved better than the Welsh average in 62% of the national
performance indicators councils use and was in the top three performers in 20% of

these indicators

Our highlights:

e the highest humber of young people engaged in education, employment or training

for the last 3 years

e educational attainment - GCSE level for first language English or Welsh - ranked as

top for the last 3 years

e consistently high school attendance - 1st or 2nd position over the past 3 years
e care plans for Social Services clients been produced on time; the top performer for

2 years

¢ the best condition of roads for the last 3 years

The National Public Survey shows that the Council is ranked 2nd in Wales for providing
good quality services according to the views of residents.

Page 44



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

4. Flintshire: Our Funding Strategy

The Council funding strategy has three parts - service reform, corporate financial
stewardship and working with Welsh Government. The first two parts are based on local
reform and choice. The third is based on choice and decision-making by and within Welsh
Government. The three parts are inter-dependent. For the strategy to succeed, progress

will need to be made in each of the three parts.

As has been demonstrated in Chapter 2 Flintshire
is an efficient and innovative council. As has been
demonstrated in Chapter 3 Flintshire is a low
funded council. Taken together these chapters
show that as a council with arelatively low resource
base we have few opportunities left for bridging
the funding ‘gap’ through local innovation, without
resorting to further and deeper service reforms,
cuts and even closures of a scale unprecedented
in North East Wales.

The three part strategy is based on the reality
that councils and other public bodies are part of
a wider system of public sector funding. Whilst
councils should be expected and be challenged
to be efficient and innovative, and make local
choices to reduce their costs to contribute to
making best use of public funding as part of the UK
‘austerity programme’, they cannot act alone and
governments need to share in the responsibility.

In a funding system where councils in Wales
depend on Government grant for up to 75% of
their annual revenue funding for mainstream
council services, with a sizeable proportion of
it ring-fenced for specific services through the
specific grants system, their capacity to act
flexibly with their resources is constrained. In Part
1 of the MTFS we explain how national changes
introduced by government, whether at a UK or
Wales level, for example social policies or new
legislation, can bring in new financial pressures
on councils as the providers of services direct to
the public. If governments desire social or legal
change then they have a duty to carefully consider
the resourcing consequences; otherwise, the
budgets for existing local services will inevitably
be placed under increasing strain.

Under part one of the funding strategy the Council
takes responsibility for continuing to reform and
modernise local services through its three year
service ‘portfolio’ business plans. All services and
corporate support services, with the exception
of education and social care, have 30% cost
reduction targets to achieve. Under part two the
Council takes responsibility for the prudent use
of corporate finances for example absorbing the
costs of inflation, raising income, and managing
workforce costs. Under part three we set out
realistic expectations of Welsh Government as our
principal funder.

( AN

N . ’ ’
y {
', ’




4a. Funding Strategy Part 1

Service Reform

Council services are organised into portfolios or groups. Year on year each chief officer,
who leads a portfolio, is asked to find efficiencies and savings to help balance the total
Council budget. These savings are found through bigger actions such as making changes
to how services are organised and delivered to local communities, through to smaller
actions such as cutting out unnecessary expenditure and wastage. More recently this work

has broadened into more challenging work such as reducing service provision, charging
for services, and reducing the size of the workforce. All services, other than Education and
Social Services, have been given a target of reducing their costs by at least 30% over this
three year period. The total savings target services are working to is £28.2m over the three

year period.

Council Service Portfolios

The Council has grouped its services into eight
portfolios for the purpose of organisation and
management. In doing this the organisation went
through a major upheaval in 2015 to introduce a
new operating model - or way of working - with
a streamlined and closer working team of chief
officers. Each chief officer is responsible for one
of the portfolios. A major task for each of the new
chief officers has been to develop a three year
business plan for their group of services for the
period 2015/16-2017/18.

Portfolio Business Planning

The new business plans for each service portfolio
take the Council to levels of challenge and planning
which are unprecedented. Services have always
worked to business plans. The motivation for this
new approach was twofold: to make significant
reductions in operating costs in response to
the financial challenge of major reductions in

Government grant income to the Council, and to
modernise and improve the organisation to new
levels of ambition and excellence.

The new business plans fundamentally review:-

e the purpose, priorities and the performance of
the service group

e the costs of the services both in themselves
and compared to other councils

e income levels and the potential for income growth

e the management and administrative structures
and costs of the services

e the service model and whether an alternative
model would be a better option for the future

e the future sizing and allocation of budgets
based on the above

The business plans have to balance the
achievement of Council priorities, for example
those set out in the Improvement Plan, and the
duties to meet statutory, contractual and other
obligations, in addition to presenting options for
saving money. The plans do take the Council into
examination of whether some services are core
business or even needed at all, whether we should
do things differently, whether we are achieving
value for money in providing quality at reasonable
cost, and how customers should be expected to

ge 460ntribute through paying fees and charges.



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

Table 3 - Business Plan Efficiency Targets 2015/16 - 2017/18

Portfolio

Planning and Environment
Streetscene and Transportation
Social Care

Education and Youth
Community and Enterprise
People and Resources
Governance

Organisational Change

Business Plan Efficiency Totals

Setting Budget Targets

All service portfolios have been set a ‘working’
target of achieving a 30% efficiency in their total
budget allocation over the three year period
to 2017/18 as a contribution to the Council’s
total funding ‘gap’. There are two exceptions —
Education and Social Care.

Referring back to Chapter 2 and the Council’s
track record in achieving some £46.5m efficiencies
and savings in the seven years leading up to the
introduction of the new style business plans,
it needs to be recognised that some services
have already achieved significant savings in past
years. Where this has been the case, the scope
for achieving further efficiencies for this next three
year period will inevitably be less.

The 30% is set defined as a ‘working’ target as a
guide to stimulate challenging thinking and review.
For some services achieving a full 30% might
not be possible, for others it may be possible to
exceed the target. The setting of working targets
for each portfolio does not prevent the Council
from setting priorities across the portfolios
according to its overall aims. In other words the
Council may choose to lower or raise the target
for a given portfolio according to how its wishes to
prioritise certain important services above others.

2015/16 £m 2016/17 £m 2017/18 £m
0.941 0.422 0.255

2.570 2.590 3.405

2.068 0.788 1.984

1.459 0.382 1.520

1.565 1.209 0.787

0.385 0.385 0.730

0.248 0.315 0.725

1.306 1.272 0.902
10.541 7.363 10.308

to advise councillors, as the decision-makers,
under our corporate operating model.

Education and Social Care are expected to
achieve efficiencies and savings too but not to the
same extent. Both are highly regulated services,
which are demand-led, and where much of the
expenditure is essential to meet our statutory
obligations.

Over 80% of the budgets for the Education and
Youth portfolio are delegated to schools. Whilst
schools are expected to contribute a 30% efficiency
target is unrealistic. The amount to be invested in
schools as a group through the Schools Funding
Formula is explored in Chapter 4b. The core part
of the ‘local education authority’ where specialist
management and support services for schools
are held back within the Council, and where other
services such as the Youth Service sit, have also
been set a 30% efficiency target.

The large majority of the Social Care budget is spent
on providing or buying care and support services for
vulnerable people based on the assessment of their
needs. The costs of providing residential care for
the elderly, and other vulnerable groups, accounts
for over a third of its budget alone. The demands
on social care are growing year on year, through

This is why the chief officers work as a CollectivePaqe %fging and changing society with more complex



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

recognised needs, a trend which further limits the
potential to make budget reductions.

Education and Social Care account for just under
two thirds of the Council’s net budget - so the
limitations on being able to save money in these
two big service areas in turn limits the capacity of
the whole Council to make savings to bridge the
projected budget ‘gap’.

For 2015-16 the combined total of the efficiencies
and savings from the business plans is £10.541m.
This total is built into the annual budget. Whilst
the Council has a good track record in achieving
planned efficiency targets within the financial year
for which they have been set, there will inevitably
be a ‘failure rate’ as circumstances change
or plans cannot be realised. In 2014/15 the
Council was successful in achieving 87% of the
efficiencies it had set out at the beginning of the
financial year. Detail on the levels of confidence
in achieving the pre-set efficiencies is reported
monthly in our in-year budget monitoring reports.
Where efficiencies are not achieved, as planned,
other solutions must be found to balance up the
annual budget by the close of the financial year.

The planned business plan efficiency and saving
targets set for 2015/16, the outline proposals
under consideration for 2016/17, and the long-
list options for 2017/18 are summarised, by
portfolio, in Table 3. These plans are far reaching
and challenging.

The Council has long been a positive collaborator,
working with other councils and partners in the
region to work together to share costs and people
in the provision of services such as social services,
education, waste and corporate services. The
Council has identified new opportunities to
save more money by working with neighbouring
councils which would protect our investment in
front-line services. These opportunities can only be
seized upon by joint agreement. With the debate
on a possible reorganisation of local government
running, there is uncertainty and anxiety amongst
councils. This is contributing to limiting the
regional ambition for more collaboration, and the
Council is unable to progress some of its own
ideas for extended collaboration.

Managing the Business Plans and
their impacts

The action required to first develop and test
out budget options ready for recommendation,
and then to follow through and implement them
once agreed, is complex and time-consuming.
To do this the Council has set up a number of
‘programme boards’ which bring together senior
officers and Cabinet members.

Budget options are tested out for acceptability
and operability. In other words are we prepared
to take them and would the public be prepared
to work with us? Are they feasible and capable
of being implemented successfully? Each option
is ‘risk-assessed’ against these two tests. We
also separate out those options which are internal
to the organisation and should have low or no
impact on the public and the people who use
the service, such as reductions in management
positions and changes to operating systems,
from those which would have an impact, such as
changing the location of a service or its opening
hours, closing a facility or introducing or changing
a charge for a service. In these latter types of
cases we have to work out what prior notice
is needed, whether there should be a specific
consultation before making a decision, and
whether we need to run an impact assessment or
a specific Equality Impact Assessment because
one or more recognised groups in society may be
affected disproportionately. In the case of some
services there are specified statutory notice and
consultation procedures which must be followed.
The Council is also mindful that it will need to
gauge the cumulative impacts of service changes
within and across communities as change plans
become more challenging and the status quo is
no longer.

Protecting Local Services

All of this work goes on in an effort to protect
services from deep cuts and big closures. If the
Council is exposed to budget cuts of a scale
which it cannot manage through its existing plans
and strategies, many services will no be longer be
able to be protected. These will include schools
budgets, day care services, residential care
homes, roads maintenance, local bus services,

Paqe 48nd leisure centres.



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

4b. Funding Strategy Part 2:

Corporate Financial Stewardship

The Council takes a whole-organisation approach to setting its annual and long-term
budgets and in deciding how to make budget changes to meet changing circumstances.
Over and above how we set priorities which determine where we deploy our resources,
and how we support service portfolios in changing what they do through their individual
business plans as set out in Chapter 4a, there are some big questions of financial decision-
making and stewardship which can only be dealt with at a corporate or whole-council
level as they impact across the board. These questions include how far we give service
portfolios additional funds to meet the costs of annual inflation, how we support centrally
any additional employment costs which we are obliged to meet such as annual pay awards,
and what we expect of services to recover their costs from service users in charging for

what they do.

Managing Inflation

In Part 1 of the MTFS we set out how inflation
impacts on the Council and how we forecast what
rates of inflation we could expect. Councils are
exposed to three types of inflation: pay, price and
non-standard price inflation. Despite a national
trend of inflation being at its lowest level for some
years, councils are still exposed to pay inflation of
around 1% per annum and some price inflation,
particularly non-standard inflation for food, energy
and fuel whose price trends are unpredictable
and volatile. We also face some unavoidable
cost inflation increases, for example in benefit
payments and the costs of purchasing care home
places, which have their own annual cost-based
increases which go unaffected by national inflation
trends.

Our financial forecast makes assumptions about
inflation rates and trends to allow prudent forward
budget planning. In deciding how much to set
aside in our budgets to cushion the organisation
from inflation we make a risk assessment. In
recent years we have set some corporate funding
aside to meet inflation in part, and have expected
services to absorb a proportion of inflation in their
on-going budget management by being cost-
efficient.

Due to national trends currently working in our
favour we plan, based on our risk assessment,
to allow £1m less than we would ordinarily have
done in 2015/16 to meet inflationary uplifts in our
costs. In this way we are absorbing £1m of our
budget ‘gap’ into our budget planning as a form
of operational risk.

Reducing Corporate Overhead
Costs

There are a number of corporate costs and income
sources which sit at the heart of the organisation
where provision has to be set aside to meet
variations in budget provision from one year to the

age Qfg One example, covered in the above section



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

on inflation would be nationally agreed ‘cost of
living” annual pay awards for employees.

Based on recent patterns of the employer
contributions needed to meet our obligations to
the Clwyd Pension Fund, of which the Council
is a member - set against the forecasted annual
contributions required of Flintshire following
the last three yearly Actuarial Review - we can
prudently estimate to have to provide £0.9m less
than the £1.747m contribution first expected
for 2015/16 and into 2016/17. This reduction
is largely due to the managed reductions in the
Council’s workforce on which the total amount due
is calculated. The partial offset of this pressure is
due to deliberate action by the Council to reduce
the size of the workforce.

Following the completion of the Single Person
Discount Review for those receiving a discount of
Council Tax through living alone as an adult, there
is an expected increase in income in the Council
Tax Collection Fund of over £100k. This increase
in income, to help reduce the budget ‘gap’, is due
to deliberate action by the Council to maximise
its Council Tax collection as a high performing
collections authority.

Schools Funding Formula

Education is the Council’'s biggest set of services
at £83m, with the large majority of those funds
being delegated to our 80+ secondary and
primary schools.

This delegated funded is passed out to schools
according to our Schools Funding Formula. This
formula, which was reviewed and then updated
from 2015, takes into account factors such as
pupil numbers, specific pupil needs and school
buildings size and condition in setting out how

much funding each individual school will receive
each year.

The Council has given schools relative protection
from funding cuts in recent years partly because
this has been Welsh Government policy, and more
SO because remaining a high performing local
education authority is a top priority of the Council.

The additional cost pressures coming through
for the schools community for 2016/17 total
£3.490m which would mean a 4% increase on
2015/16 funding. There are a number of options
and choices for handling this challenge. Schools
will have to make their contribution to the budget
‘gap’ and cannot be exempt, noting that any
decision other than to fund the pressures in full
will come with risks. The Council is planning to
meet 1% of the pressures only for 2016/17, an
option which would contribute around £2.5m to
bridging the total funding ‘gap’.

Local Taxation

The Council has had a policy of containing annual
rises in Council Tax in recent years. This has been
based on the view that Council Tax levels should
be as affordable as possible with the organisation
finding efficiencies internally first before asking the
public to pay more to help with the funding ‘gap’.

Between 2008/09 and 2015/16 the average
annual Council Tax rise has been 3.2% with the
highest being 3.75% in 2015/16 and the lowest
2.9% in 2013/14. Other councils have had
different policies.

Council Tax makes up only 22% of the Council’s
total income. As our Government grant funding
reduces more pressure is placed on councils to
find more local income including through taxation.
Council Tax in Wales is generally lower than in
England. Whilst councils in England have had
a special Government subsidy to keep Council
Taxes rises low, Welsh councils have not.

The Government grant councils in Wales receive
is distributed according to the Local Government
Formula as explained in Chapter 3. Within this
formula a calculation or benchmark of what each
council needs called the Standard Spending
Assessment (SSA) is included. The SSA is based

paqe 50>n factors including demography, population



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

Table 4 - Corporate Finance Efficiency Proposals 2015/16

Subject Proposal Efficiency/Growth £m
Inflation Management Part absorption of inflation risk 1.0
Corporate Overheads Selective reduction in provisions 1.0
Schools Funding Formula Controlled schools investment 2.5
Local Taxation Enhanced Council Tax increases 0-1.8
Local Income increases in charging 0.5

Totals

change and deprivation. Whilst being a theoretical
calculation the SSA is significant in determining
how much of the share of public funds set aside
for local government in Wales comes to Flintshire.

The SSA for Flintshire for 2015/16 was set at
£251.806m. The Council’s planned net Council
Fund expenditure for this year is £249.979m,
leaving a gap of £1.827m. The only way
the Council can bridge that gap to reach its
notional spending level, given that no additional
Government grant will be made available, would
be to increase Council Tax. Collecting additional
Council Tax of £1.827M would mean an additional
Council Tax rise of around 3.5%. The Council
has already assumed a Council Tax rise of 3%
in its budget planning for 2016/17 based on its
annual average rise in recent years. The Council
would have the option of reaching the current
SSA over a two year period by setting Council
Tax rises of 4.75% or, given the extreme financial
situation, applying a single year increase of 6.5%.
The Welsh Government has a guiding policy of
councils staying within 5% annual Council Tax
rises although this has not been tested.

Local Income

Flintshire as a County Council has limited scope for
raising income as a non-metropolitan council with
a modest portfolio of land and assets generating
commercial income.

The Council makes charges for some services

5-6.8

policy, and within the limits of affordability and
acceptability to customers and communities.

The service portfolio business plans, set out in
Chapter 5, already include compound income
sources built up from previous years and, in
some cases, new income generation initiatives
for example in planning fees. As part of a more
challenging corporate strategy for cost recovery
through fees and charges the Council will be
seeking to raise a further £0.5m of income in
2016/17 onwards by reviewing current fee levels.

The total reduction in corporate costs which could
be achieved for 2016/17 based on the above
proposals is at a minimum of £56m as summarised
in Table 4.

within the bounds of legality and Governmenpaqe 51



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

4c. Funding Strategy Part G:
Working with Welsh Government

Councils are heavily reliant on Government for grant to fund what they do. For Flintshire
some 65% of our annual funding comes through the Revenue Support Grant awarded
annually by Welsh Government. Whilst councils are independent statutory public bodies
with their own elected councillors, free mind, and right to choose their priorities based on
local need and local opinion, they are also a form of ‘agent’ of government in implementing
its social policy and legislation as directed. Local government and national governments
are part of the same system of national governance of the public services. Governments
must therefore share in the responsibility to fund the ‘agents of delivery’ of their social,
economic and environmental policies and legislative reforms properly and fairly. In Chapters
4a and 4b we have set out the Council’s contribution to managing with less in a tough fiscal
environment. In this Chapter we set out our expectations of Welsh Government as the

Meeting the Financial Challenge

custodian of public finances in a devolved Wales.

In this Chapter we explore five areas where there
is a legitimate case for Welsh Government to
come to the support of the Council to fund cost
pressures which have either been passed on to
the Council through national decisions or meet its
own critical social policy priorities.

Under each of the areas we set out the principle
which underpins the case, the detail of the case,
and the risks to the Council and local services if
Welsh Government did not meet our case and
provide support and relief.

Extension of the Welfare State

The principle here is that councils should not
be subsidising the welfare state through local
resources. Instead, the State should be fully
funding its own universal benefits policies. The
Council currently pays out benefits to local
Council Tax payers who have an exemption from
paying Council Tax in full. This is done under the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS).

The problem is the funding the Council receives
from Welsh Government to make these payments

annual uplift in demand-led benefits costs we
have to meet. By 2016/17 the Council will have
to make up a gap of £625k in the CTRS scheme
as a consequence. The risks are that the scheme
becomes unsustainable; Council Tax has to be
raised to cross-subsidise benefits to recipients;
the Council may have to withdraw from the
national Welsh scheme.

Public Sector Employment

The principle at stake here is that public sector
should employ people with fair reward and rights.
Local government as a large employer, with many
low earning workers, should be properly funded
to meet wage and pension costs and be given
parity of esteem with the NHS, civil service and
others in national funding for workforce costs.
Welsh Government is committed to supporting
uplifts in annual base pay for public sector workers
(with enhanced uplifts in lower pay scales) to give
proper reward and to avoid workers being in a
position of pay poverty. This commitment should
be recognised in national budgeting priorities, or it
cannot be afforded. It is not a sustainable position
to expect councils to meet annual inflationary

is ‘frozen’, and we are not recompensed forlﬁwéqe 52vorkforce costs at a time of reducing resources.



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

Diverting existing funds away from maintaining
‘front-line’ services to meet employment costs
will be difficult to justify to the public. Local
government should be given parity with the NHS
and the civil service where provision is made
for funding workforce costs and, in addition,
achievement of the Living Wage at the lower end
of pay scales.

In 2016/17 the Council will have to absorb wage
inflation of £1.690m from the nationally negotiated
cost of living pay award. The risks are Councils will
have to increasingly review terms and conditions
of employment on the one hand to pay for annual
cost of living pay awards on the other which is
a contradictory position for employers and trade
unions; relatively low pay in the local government
sector will be perpetuated; councils will have to
face difficult choices between maintaining pay and
terms of conditions of employment, and public
service provision; councils may opt out of national
negotiating machinery; impacts on employer-
trade unions relationships and workforce morale;
possible industrial action, whether local or
national.

Health and Social Care as a Single
System Needing Full Funding

Insufficient investment is made in the primary
and community care sectors where quality of life
and preventing dependency on secondary and
acute care is achieved. Social care is part of a
connected system of care and should have parity
of esteem with investment choices in the use of
the national budget. There is ample research and
operational evidence that the social care sector is
facing a funding crisis. At a time when the UK and
Welsh Governments are increasing investment in
the National Health Service (NHS) equal priority
should be given to the social care sector.

Two specific examples of chronic funding
pressures on the Council where national relief is
sought follow.

Demand-led pressures on
specialist social care services:

transition from childhood to adulthood for high
dependency clients. The costs of high-cost

case 14, can have a disproportionate effect on the
total social care budget. We are facing a budget
pressure of £923k just for these cases, a figure
equal to 1/60th of the total social care budget.
Special provision should be made in recognition
of the need to protect specialist services for the
most vulnerable. Parity should be given to the
primary care needs of clients falling under the
responsibility of social services alongside those
falling under the responsibility of health boards in
national funding. The risks of not acting are the
diversion of resources away from other social care
services to meet the cost of such high dependency
cases and their entitlement; aggregated funding
impacts will make the current social care system,
with growing demand, unsustainable.

Inflationary pressures on care
placements and high cost specialist

placements: given rising demand for services
and reducing budgets the pressure on service
supply will be intense. Raised care standards and
entitlements are two of the factors which cause
market inflation as investment needs to be made
here to meet social policy aspiration. We face a
budget pressure of keeping up with market costs
of £948k. Parity should again be given to the
primary care needs of clients falling under the
responsibility of social services alongside those
falling under the responsibility of health boards in
national funding. The risks here are that faced with
increasing demand the supply of service becomes
an unsustainable model; the adequacy of care
might be compromised with a lower volume/
quality of care being provided; councils may be
at risk of commissioning sub-standard care; cost
pressures will compress the terms and conditions
of employment of the sector.

Educational Entitlement and
Attainment

We believe that if school age education is to
continue to be treated as a national social policy
priority it should have parity of esteem with
investment choices in the use of the national
budget. The Council faces a bill for additional
costs for Teacher Pensions of £1.364m, due to
national reforms in employer pensions over which

placements for small cohorts of clients, in thispaqe iS@s had no say.



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

The national agreement to increase the employer
contributions to pension funds for the teaching
workforce could fall on either the local council, as
the local education authority, the local governing
bodies of the employing schools, or a combination
depending on local choice. ‘Pass-porting’ of the
cost to local school governing bodies would place
a new strain on schools delegated budgets and
would be likely to reduce the ability of schools to
employ their current cohort of teachers which,
in turn, would affect teacher-pupil ratios and
ultimately school standards and pupil attainment.

The Teachers’ Pension Scheme is unfunded unlike
the core local government pension scheme. Parity
should be given to the treatment of the Teachers’
Pension Scheme alongside the other unfunded
schemes such as the NHS and civil service i.e.
the responsibility for making good pension fund
deficit positions should be borne by Government
and not intermediate employers such as councils.
Schools may be placed in an untenable financial
position with new cost burdens of employment.

The big risk is that the council will have to reduce
investment in services including education to meet
additional costs of employment in the teaching
sector.

Financial Freedom to Recover
Costs to Make Services
Sustainable

An important principle of local democracy is that
councils should have the freedom to set local
policy to recover costs through charging to help
make services - within bounds of reasonableness
on the affordability of charges with added
protection for those most vulnerable to poverty.

There are several service areas where the Council
is constrained in recovering costs from clients,
who can afford to pay, by Welsh Government

policy.

Domiciliary Home Care: recharging for
Home Care provision used to be discretionary
until the introduction of the First Steps policy
in 2010 and has not been reviewed since, with
charging limited to £60 per week from 2015.

provision and the Council is losing out on income
of £0.945m which could help sustain social
services under huge pressure.

The charging cap makes no recognition of ability
and willingness to pay. The previous charging
system with higher charges linked to cost of
provision was generally accepted and was a
workable one. There are increasing demands from
those able to pay who have switched from private
provision to public provision to benefit from the
heavy subsidy. Given an ageing population with
increasing demands this model of service is
unsustainable. As part of a fair and equitable
local charging policy there is no justification for
continuing with this policy.

Therisks of perpetuating this system are faced with
increasing demand the supply of service becomes
an unsustainable model; an income generating
opportunity is lost; the adequacy of care might
be compromised with a lower volume/quality of
care being provided e.g. short visits with limited
social contact for the client; councils may be at
risk of commissioning sub-standard care; cost
pressures will compress the terms and conditions
of employment of the sector e.g. travel time
reimbursement, salary levels; the non-justification
for a heavily subsidised service for those available
to pay becomes ethically challenged by others
under the Council’s income strategy.

Minor Home Adaptations: Charging for
adaptationsless than £3kin value which fall outside
of the mean-tested charging system would allow
partial cost recovery to subsidise the service. As
part of a fair and equitable local charging policy
there is no justification for charging exemptions for
this service. The Council could recover income of
£100k per year to subsidise the service if it could
charge. The risks in the future are that the service
is not adequately funded to meet demand; funds
have to be diverted away from other services to
subsidise adaptations; the non-justification for a
free service for those available to pay becomes
ethically challenged by others under the Council’s
income strategy.

Blue Badge Scheme: A modest charge
for Blue Badge issue is justifiable and would

Income recovery falls well below the COStsljﬁqe 54)6 comparable to England (£10 per issue)



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

and Scotland (£20 per issue). As part of a fair
and equitable local charging policy there is no
justification for charging exemptions for this
service. The Council could raise income of £33.5k
to subsidise services.

Support and relief from Welsh Government in
these policy areas would make a major positive

impact on the Council’s budget planning as set out
in Table 5 below. The costs shown for Employer,
Social Care Funding and Education are examples
of the pressures for which support is needed. This
is not an exhaustive list and other cost pressures
could be included.

Table 5 - Funding Pressures for National Support and Relief

Subject
Welfare State

Employer

Social Care Funding

Education

Freedom to Charge

Proposal Funding £m
Full cost funding of the Council Tax 0.625
Benefits Scheme
Funding of nationally agreed pay awards 1.690
Funding Health and Social Care as a single 1.871
system with parity
Funding nationally agreed employment 1.364
costs for schools to protect spending
delegated to schools
Removing the charging caps for a number 1.078
of services such as domiciliary care
and returning to a system of fuller cost
recovery from clients (with protection for
those least able to pay)

6.628

Totals

Page 55

21



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2

Meeting the Financial Challenge

5. Conclusions and Way Forward

Flintshire is in unchartered territory in having to
manage budget cuts of this scale. So is Welsh
Government. If councils are to see a way through
these challenging times - with local services on
which communities depend staying in tact - then
close working is needed between councils and
government for common purpose.

Flintshire is shown to be a low funded council.
It is also shown to be a solid performer in the
standards to which it provides local services, with
excellence in key services such as education and
social care.

Flintshire is being recognised nationally as a
council which is being innovative in finding new
solutions to make its services both cost efficient
and resilient, and sustainable for the future.

A fundamental point is that the scale and the pace
of the escalating annual budget cuts does not
allow time for innovation. Our local programme for
working with communities to transfer community
assets to community ownership, and our local
programme to create Alternative Delivery Models
(ADMs) for selected services, whilst being well
advanced, both need time and space to come to
fruition. So do our business plans for the ongoing
modernisation of services. If our plans are not
given time, and are rushed into change, then key
services will be put at serious risk.

Like all counties Flintshire is shaped by its history
and its make-up of communities. We have set
out the challenges of managing Flintshire as a
dispersed county which has a number of proud
and independent principal county towns. The
Council tries to support and protect each county
town by ensuring that their communities have
local services and amenities which can be readily
accessed. We will no longer be able to maintain
our networks of local services without some relief
from the relentless budget cuts.

The list of services which will be exposed to
major cuts if our strategy does not enjoy universal
support is a long one:-

¢ a significant reduction in the budgets given to
local schools

e withdrawal of social services such as day care
e closure or sale of residential care homes

e closure of the welfare rights service

e cuts in support for the local voluntary sector

® a major cut in maintenance expenditure for roads

e cuts in winter maintenance road gritting service
to the bare minimum

e closure of leisure centres
e closure of community buildings

e cuts in countryside and coastal management
services

e less frequent household waste collection
services

e closure of local house recycling centres

e withdrawal of all bus subsidies which support
the less commercial local bus routes

e withdrawal of our grant to Theatre Clwyd

e reduced transport provision for learners to and
from schools and colleges

e closure of the business support service and no
future support for tourism

e closure of the ecology and biodiversity functions

¢ reduced maintenance standards for our rights of
way network

e reduced support for the Clwydian Range Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty

e withdrawal of our financial support for Greenfield
Valley

Councils in Wales are heavily dependent on
government grant to fund what they do. More so
in Wales than in England. This is why, within our
three part strategy, we call for greater freedoms
for the Council to be able to be entrepreneurial. If

paqe 56/Vales is to be exposed to ‘English style cuts’ then



Medium Term Financial Strategy, Part 2 Meeting the Financial Challenge

councils in Wales need to be given English style
powers and freedoms to be able to adapt.

The Council is playing its part and has identified
around two thirds of the funding target needed
for 2016/17. As a mature and responsible Council
we will work with Welsh Government to find joint
solutions. Local government needs to be given
support with social care and health being jointly
funded as a top priority.

This Strategy inevitably concentrates on 2016/17
as the next budget year we need to plan for. Equally,
we have an eye on 2017/18 and subsequent
budget years in planning ahead in a responsible
and sustainable way.

Flintshire is at a ‘tipping point’. A reorganisation
of local government, still some years off, is not in
itself a solution to the financial challenge. Neither
is more talk of making efficiencies in ‘back office’
costs. The decisions to be made by the Council,
by the UK Government and by Welsh Government
in the coming months will define the future for
local public services.

We call on local communities to stand up for their
local services by working with us whether this is:-

® in being understanding and being patient with
the changes we plan to make

e coming forward and working with us on
transferring services to community models or

® in speaking up so that those who have decision-
making power in their hands hear their voice.

Page 57

23



This page is intentionally left blank



6G obed

Medium Term Financial Strategy
Meeting the Financial Challenge

Medium Term

Financial Strategy

Counc" Part 2 - September 2015
N cial Challenge

September 2015

Siry Fflint
_"Eﬂ!_.ie!,ab.ire



09 abed

Our journey thus far \i

»

»

»

»

Part | of the Medium Term Financial Strategy Forecasting
the Challenge was published earlier in the summer

Part Il Meeting the Financial Challenge presents solutions to
meet an estimated budget gap of £52.8M over 3 years

The solutions are based on careful planning bringing
together the organisational change and service business
reforms of recent years

The Strategy sets the context for the 2016/17 budget

Sir y Fflint



19 abed

What do the next three years look

like?

Expenditure

National Pressures
Local Pressures
Inflation

Workforce Pressures

Income

Reduction in Revenue Support Grant (3.5%)

Council Tax Increase (3%)

Projected Gap

F’.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Sir y Fflint

£m

0.9
6.2
4.1
2.5

6.6
(2.0)

18.3

£m

0.4
2.5
4.1
9.4

6.5
2.1)

20.8

£m

0.3
1.2
4.3
3.7

6.3
2.1)

13.7

S

Total
£m

1.6
9.9
12.5
15.6

19.4
(6.2)

52.8




29 abed

An efficient and innovative Councm

»

»

»

»

The Council is already cost efficient; there is limited scope
for more large-scale efficiencies

We have taken out around £35M of cost in the last 4 years

We are working on all efficiency ‘fronts’ with reductions in
management, administration, workforce size,
accommodation and organisational overheads

We are innovating in service transformation, new and
alternative models of working, and community asset transfer

Sir y Fflint



€9 abed

Council Annual Efficiency Targets \I

2008/09-2015/16

226.419 233.335 240.408 239.896 241.203 258.825 253.718 249.979
5.654 3.803 6.151 8.920 4.716 5.331 11.950 12.874
2.50 1.63 2.56 3.72 1.95 2.06 4.70 5.15

Sir y Fflint




9 abed

A low funded Council \i

»

»

»

»

Flintshire is one of the lowest funded councils in Wales and
one of the higher performing

Councils are too heavily reliant on Government grant

The Funding Formula was designed for distributing funds
and meeting additional needs; it was not designed for
distributing cuts in grant of this scale

The Council might not be financially sustainable in the
medium term under the current funding model

Sir y Fflint



G9 abed

Our three part strategy \i

» The Council and Welsh Government working together
» Part 1: Service Reform and Business Planning
» Part 2: Corporate Financial Stewardship

» Part 3: Working with Welsh Government

» The Strategy will only work if all three parts work in tandem

Vv

Sir'y Fflint



Q9 abed

Business Plan Efficiency Targets

2015/16-2017/18

Portfolio

Planning and Environment
Streetscene and Transportation
Social Care

Education and Youth
Community and Enterprise
People and Resources
Governance

Organisational Change

Business plan Efficiency Totals

0.941
2.570
2.068
1.459
1.565
0.385
0.248
1.306

10.541

Flintshire

F_Slr y Fflint

0.422
2.590
0.788
0.382
1.209
0.385
0.315
1.272

7.363

2015/16 £m 2016/17 £m 2017/18 £m

0.255
3.405
1.984
1.520
0.787
0.730
0.725
0.902

10.308




19 abed

Corporate Finance Efficiency Proposals

2015/16

Inflation Management
Corporate Overheads
Schools Funding Formula
Local Taxation

Local Income

Totals

Part absorption of inflation risk

Sel

ective reduction in provisions

Controlled schools investment

Enhanced Council Tax increases

¢

increases in charging

Siry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

1.0

1.0

2.5

0-1.8

0.5

5-6.8




g9 abed

Funding Pressures for Support and Relief

Theme ___________Proposal | ___ Fundingfm ___|

Welfare State Full cost funding of the Council Tax Benefits 0.625
Scheme

Employer Funding of nationally agreed pay awards 1.690

Social Care Funding Funding Health and Social Care as a single 1.871
system with parity

Funding nationally agreed employment costs 1.364
for schools to protect spending delegated to
schools

Freedom to Charge Removing the charging caps for a number of 1.078
services such as domiciliary care and

returning to a system of fuller cost recovery

from clients (with protection for those least

able to pay)

6.628




69 abed

Balancing ambition and risk \'

»

»

»

»

Councils are being challenged to meet their legal duty to set
balanced annual budgets on the one hand whilst meeting
their social and ethical duties on the other

A Medium Term Financial Strategy should not just be about
‘balancing the books’. Fulfilling our ambitions and meeting
our duties is an equal point of principle

Are we here simply to manage decline or to support and
serve our communities?

We have to do our share; national reform is needed too

Sir y Fflint




0. abed

Recommendations

»

»

»

&

1. the second and concluding part of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) titled meeting the Financial Challenge is adopted
(on recommendation of the Cabinet) for consultation and
development as the first step towards setting balanced budgets for
2016-17 and 2017-18;

2. the specific proposals set out by Cabinet, for service reform,
corporate financing options, and national support and relief are
subject to detailed consultation and development; and

3. there is early engagement with Welsh Government, with cross-
council support, and with the support and the involvement of the
Welsh Local Government Association as our representative body, on
the case for national support and relief as set out in Meeting the
Financial Challenge.

Sir y Fflint




|, 8bed

What next?

»

»

»

»

»

S

Work together on Parts | and 2 for example through Overview and
Scrutiny Committees

Support open discussion with Welsh Government on Part 3

Work with the Welsh Local Government Association to promote the
granting of urgent freedoms and flexibilities to local government,
manageable grant reductions, and parity of funding esteem between NHS
and Social Care

Communities to stand up in a call for action and support our strategy to
protect and sustain their local services

Community Engagement Strategy

Sir y Fflint




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Sir y Fflint
("!i!imo%!z.ire

CORPORATE RESOURCES & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting 8 October 2015

Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 4) and Capital
Programme Monitoring (Month 4)

Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Lead Member for Finance

Report Authors Corporate Finance Manager

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4) Report and the Capital Programme 2015/16
(Month 4) Report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

(1)

(2)

That the committee considers and comments on the Revenue Budget
Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for attention
will be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it considers
the report.

That the committee considers and comments on the Capital
Programme 2015/16 (Month 4) report. Any specific matters for
attention will be noted and reported verbally to the Cabinet when it
considers the report.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

REPORT DETAILS

Page 73



1.01

The Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4) report will be
presented to Cabinet on 13 October 2015. A copy of the report is
attached as Appendix A to this report.

1.02 | The Capital Programme 2015/16 (Month 4) report will be presented to
Cabinet on 13 October 2015. A copy of the report is attached as
Appendix B to this report.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month
4) and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2015/16 (Month 4).

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | None.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | As set out in Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month
4) and in Appendix B; Capital Programme 2015/16 (Month 4).

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A; Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4).
Appendix B; Capital Programme 2015/16 (Month 4).

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | None required.

Page 74




7.00 | GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 | Budget — A statement expressing the Council’s policies and service
levels in financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest
sense it includes both the revenue budget and capital programme and
any authorised amendments to them.

7.02 | Revenue — A term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running
Council services and income deriving from those services. It also
includes charges for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may
include direct financing of capital expenditure.

Page 75




This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

T i Y Filint
Flintshire

CABINET MEETING
Date of Meeting Tuesday 13 October 2015
Report Subject Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4)
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report Author Corporate Finance Manager
Type of Report Operational
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This regular monthly report provides the latest revenue budget monitoring position
for 2015/16 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account. The position is
based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 4, and projects forward to
year-end.

The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 4 is as follows:
Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.425m higher than budget
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2016 of £4.111m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.002m higher than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2016 of £1.235m

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 Note the overall report and the projected Council Fund contingency sum
as at 315t March 2016.

2 Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue

Page 77



APPENDIX A

Account.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00 | EXPLAINING THE REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING POSITION FOR
MONTH 4 - 2015/16

1.01 | Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast
The table below shows the projected position by portfolio.

In-Year
TOTAL EXPENDITURE Original Revised | Projected | Over/
AND INCOME Budget Budget Outturn | (Under)
spend
£m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.696 59.669 59.596 | (0.073)
Community & Enterprise 12.598 12.706 12.524 | (0.182)
Streetscene &
Transportation 27.782 27.770 28.664 0.894
Planning & Environment 4.887 5.332 5.499 0.167
Education & Youth 13.760 13.573 13.575 0.002
Schools 82.670 83.169 83.169 0.000
People & Resources 4.595 4.644 4.679 0.035
Governance 8.689 8.728 8.866 0.138
Organisational Change 9.569 9.635 9.525 | (0.110)
Chief Executive 3.296 3.195 3.062 | (0.133)
Central & Corporate
Finance 23.915 23.036 22.723 | (0.313)
Total 251.457 251.457 251.882 0.425

1.02 | The reasons for the projected variances occurring to date are summarised
within appendix 2 with movements between periods summarised in appendix
1.

1.03 | Significant budget movements between original and revised budget
Changes in the revised budget are due in the main to the transfer of budget
from Social Services to Central and Corporate as a result of the one off
efficiency reported in Month 3 in relation to the Independent Living Fund
(ILF).

1.04 | Social Services

The overall underspend within Social Services has reduced from a projected
£0.573m at Month 3 to £0.073m. _ This in part is due to the transfer of

Page 7o




APPENDIX A

£0.300m to Central and Corporate in relation to (ILF) as referenced above in
para 1.03. A number of further changes mainly within Adult Services are as
a result of additional care packages. Full details of movements are explained
in Appendix1.

1.05

Streetscene and Transportation

There is a significant overall projected overspend within the service of
£0.894m due in part to the delay in the implementation of a number of
efficiencies as reported to the Programme Board. In addition fluctuations in
recycle sales due to a volatile market has led to an increased pressure on
income projections which have resulted in a shortfall of £0.236m.

1.06

Following a request for further information a report on the overall position in
relation to the service will be presented to Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on 8 October.

1.07

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2015/16 budget contains £12.874m of specific efficiencies which are
being tracked through the relevant programme board.

1.08

Appendix 3 provides detail on the latest position where there is a variation to
the level of efficiency achievable compared to the budget.

1.09

This shows that it is currently projected that £10.878m (84%) will be achieved
resulting in a net underachievement of £1.996m. The position will continue
to be monitored and reported throughout the monthly monitoring process.

1.10

Inflation

Included within the 2015/16 budget are provisions for pay (£1.304m),
targeted price inflation (£0.421m), non-standard inflation (£0.102m) and
income (£0.254m).

For 2015/16 the amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) include an
allocation for food (£0.064m) and an allocation for Non Domestic Rates
(£0.038m).

1.12

There is also an amount of £0.240m remaining from 2014/15 which is
currently also being held centrally. Areas subject to NSI increases will be
monitored throughout the year and allocations made to portfolio areas only
where a critical funding need is evidenced.

Reserves and Balances

1.13

Unearmarked Reserves

The 2014/15 outturn reported to Cabinet on 14" July 2015 showed

Page 79




APPENDIX A

unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2015 (above the base level of £5.769m)
of £4.746m.

1.14 | Taking into account the current overspend at Month 4 the balance on the
contingency reserve at 315t March 2016 is projected to be £4.111m.

1.15 | This now takes into account the expenditure of £0.210m approved at Month
3 for the costs of the Speed Limit Review.

Earmarked Reserves

1.16 | The Council has developed a reserves protocol which was considered by
Audit Committee and approved by County Council on 24" September 2015.
This sets out the principles around how the council will determine, manage
and review the level of its reserves and includes reference to regular
reporting of the latest position to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

1.17 | As such, from Month 4 the revenue monitoring report will now include an
additional section on earmarked reserves and will continue to be provided on
a quarterly basis.

1.18 | The table below gives a summary of earmarked reserves as at 1t April 2015
and also provides an estimate of projected balances as at the end of the
financial year.

1.19 | This will continue to form part of regular monitoring discussions with Senior
Managers to ensure regular review and challenge thus ensuring that any
reserves that are no longer required, can be made available for other
purposes, subject to the agreement of Cabinet.

1.20 Actual

31/03/2015

as r

Reserve Type Fital | Estimated

Accounts | 31/03/2016

£ £

Schools 3,540,315 1,153,000
Specific Reserves:
Single Status/Equal Pay 12,864,332 | 7,337,269
General Reserve - Review of Reserves 4,666,025 | 3,871,630
General Reserve - Investment in Organisational
Change 855,391 0
Self Insurance Funds 813,486 794,486
Benefits Equalisation Reserve 213,044 213,044
Supporting People Reserve 1,511,083 | 1,511,083
County Elections 154,310 154,310
North East Wales Community Equipment Service 178,991 0

Page 80




APPENDIX A

Winter Maintenance 250,000 250,000
Waste Disposal Sites 367,475 217,475
Car Park Reserve 217,494 0
Building Control Trading 97,697 97,697
Planning Control Gain NEWTS 190,510 190,510
Flintshire Enterprise Reserve 96,932 96,932
Design Fees 120,000 120,000
Other Specific Reserves of less than £0.025m 64,965 60,886
Service Balances 4,047,375 1,061,355
Total 30,249,425 | 17,129,677
1.21 | The reserves protocol is included as appendix 6 to this report as additional
information on the types of reserves.
Housing Revenue Account
1.22 | On 17 February 2015 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2015/16 of £30.776m.
1.23 | The budget provided for a closing balance of £1.396m which at 4.5% of total
expenditure, satisfies the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%.
1.24 | The 2014/15 Outturn Report to Cabinet on 14 July 2015 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2014/15 of £1.510m.
1.25 | The Month 4 monitoring report for the HRA is projecting in year expenditure
to be £0.002m higher than budget and a projected closing balance as at 31
March 2016 of £1.235m.
2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
2.01 | The Budget Monitoring Report reflects the planned use of the financial
resources of the Council for the current financial year and details the
variations occurring to date.
3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT
3.01 | None Required
4.00 | KEY RISKS AND MITIGATION
4.01 | Recycling

The recycling market (paper in particular) is going through a volatile period

Page 81




APPENDIX A

with fluctuating re-cycle sale values. This is likely to impact on 2015/16
recycling income levels for the Council. This is now reflected in the Month 4
projections but will need to be monitored throughout the year. Status:
unstable/amber risk.

4.02

Car Parking

Due to car parking charges being introduced in some Flintshire towns later
than anticipated during 2015/16, it is likely that there will be an increased
shortfall in achieving the increased car park income targets. Therefore, work
is currently ongoing to take account of the revised implementation dates and
the subsequent affect this will have on revised income projections so an
updated outturn position will be reflected in Month 5 monitoring.

4.03

Out of County Placements

The risk is the volatility in demand and the impacts on service costs which
cannot be predicted with any certainty. Therefore there is always a risk of
significant variances occurring although this area will continue to be closely
monitored. Status: unstable/amber risk.

4.04

Former Euticals Site

Monthly costs for ongoing security and maintenance of the site are in the
region of £0.030m and will accumulate throughout the financial year until site
disposal. Status: unstable/amber risk.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 3 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget Variances — Appendix 2

Council Fund — Programme of Efficiencies — Appendix 3

Council Fund — Movement on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

Reserves and Balances Protocol — Appendix 6

6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

None required

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson

Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702287
E-mail: sara.duison@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Budget — A statement expressing the Council’s policies and service levels in

Page 82




APPENDIX A

financial terms for a particular financial year. In its broadest sense it includes
both the revenue budget and capital programme and any authorised
amendments to them.

7.02

Council Fund - The fund to which all the Council's revenue expenditure is
charged.

7.03

Financial Year — The period of twelve months commencing on 1 April.

7.04

Housing Revenue Account — The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a
local authority account showing current income and expenditure on housing
services related to its own housing stock. The account is separate from the
Council Fund and trading accounts and is funded primarily from rents and
government subsidy.

7.05

Projected Outturn — Projection of the expenditure to the end of the financial
year, made on the basis of actual expenditure incurred to date.

7.06

Reserves — These are balances in hand that have accumulated over
previous years and are held for defined (earmarked reserves) and general
(general reserves) purposes. Councils are required to regularly review the
level and purpose of their reserves and to take account of the advice of the
Chief Finance Officer.

7.07

Revenue — A term used to describe the day-to-day costs of running Council
services and income deriving from those services. It also includes charges
for the repayment of debt, including interest, and may include direct financing
of capital expenditure.

7.08

Underspend — When referring to expenditure the actual expenditure incurred
is less than budget. Shown as a —ve. When referring to income the actual
income achieved exceeds the budget. Shown as a —ve.

7.09

Variance - Difference between latest budget and actual income or
expenditure. Can be to date if reflecting the current or most up to date
position or projected, for example projected to the end of the month or
financial year.

7.10

Virement — The transfer of budget provision from one budget head to
another. Virement decisions apply to both revenue and capital expenditure
heads, and between expenditure and income, and may include transfers
from contingency provisions. Virements may not however be approved
between capital and revenue budget heads.

Page 83




Page 84



Appendix 1

COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
vitn . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
F Sir y Fflint
H"]tSh'rC Budget Monitoring (Month 4)
Summary of Movement from Month 3

£m £m
Month 3
Partfolios 0.021
Central and Corporate Finance (0.233)
Variance as per Cabinet Report (0.212)
Month 4
Portfolios 0.738
Central and Corporate Finance (0.313)
Variance as per Directorate Returns 0.425
Change Requiring Explanation 0637

Social Services

Services For Adults
e Locality Teams (Localities) - Movement due to increase of +(£0.145m) in South Localities, social 0.141
workers and manager vacancies filled. Further increases in Residential care management costs
+(£0.085m), reduction in free nursing income +(£0.014m), offset by increase in property income -
(£0.032m) giving overall net increase of +(£0.067m) within Residential Care. Increases of Costs
within South Localities and Residential Care offset by reduction of costs committed within Day Care
of -(£0.043m). Other minor variances amount to a net -£0.028m.

» Resources & Regulated Services (Disability Services) - Decrease of -(£0.172m) within LD 0.367
supported living in-house in relation to reduction in pay projections, offset by an increase of
+(£0.256m) in Independent sector domiciliary care Further movement of +(£0.300m) due to return of
former Independent Living Fund budget pressure to corporate balances as per M3
recommendation.. Other minor variances amount to a net -£0.017m.

e Vulnerable Adults & Disability Services (Disability Services) - Increase in transition domiciliary care 0.410
package costs for School leavers of +(£0.370m) and further domiciliary care cost package
increases of +(£0.040m) reflecting additional clients.

¢ Resources & Regulated Services (Intake and Reablement) - Increase in LHB income -(£0.060m) in (0.131)
addition to a reduction in staffing costs due to Transport manager vacancy -(£0.044m). Other minor
variances amount to a net -(£0.027m).

e Hospital Social Work (Intake and Reablement) - Movement due to staff moves - Team Manager and (0.059)
Senior Practitioner.
e First Contact (Intake and Reablement) - Movement due to movement of Senior Practitioner to other (0.084)
area within localities -(£0.044m) and further reductions of -(£0.040m) in committed care costs.
e Forensic (Mental Health & Substance Misuse Service) - Movement due to Forensic client package (0.068)
moved to Residential funding.
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults. 0.063
Subtotal: Services for Adults 0.639
Development & Resources
Finance (Deputyship team) - Reduction in customer care income. 0.032
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.019
Subtotal: Development & Resources 0.051
Children’s Services
Professional Support - Increase in court costs within resources In addition increases in CYAST 0.079
support costs.
Out of County Placements - Movement reflects current care packages for 2015/16. (0.200)
Early Years - Shortfall of recovery against NOVUS ESF grant. (0.032)
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.037)
Subtotal: Children's Services (0.190)
Total: Social Services 0.500

Page 85



Appendix 1

Community & Enterprise

Customer & Housing Services
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.011

Subtotal: Customer & Housing Services 0.011

Supporting Services
® Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.015

Subtotal: Supporting Services 0.015

Regeneration
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.010

Subtotal: Regeneration 0.010

Revenues & Benefits

e Additional surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund. (0.063)
e Increased underspend on Council Tax Reduction Scheme expenditure. (0.021)
e Housing Benefit Subsidy projected shortfall against budget. 0.193
Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits 0.108

Customer Services

e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.018)
Subtotal: Customer Services (0.018)
Total: Community & Enterprise 0.127

Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Ancillary Services & Performance

e Under achieving in the recycling market is due to a volatile period with fluctuating re-cycle sale
values. 0.236

o No income due in 2015-16 for compost from DCC. 0.060

Subtotal: Ancillary Services & Performance 0.296

Highways Network
e Speed Limit Review now approved from Contingency as per M3 recommendation. (0.210)

Subtotal: Highways Network (0.210)

Total: Streetscene & Transportation 0.086

Page 86



Appendix 1

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Business
* Animal Health & DEFRA shortfall 0.026
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.004
Subtotal: Business 0.030

Development

e Planning Enforcement - Vacant post following Retirement, Business Case to fill post (0.018)

o Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.002)
Subtotal: Development (0.020)
Access

e Countryside - Vacant Post transferred to specific Admin vacancies 0.033

o Greenfield Valley - Vacant Post transferred to specific Admin vacancies 0.039

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.008
Subtotal: Access 0.080

Shared Service

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.004)
Subtotal: Shared Service (0.004)
Strategy

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.001)
Subtotal: Strategy (0.001)

Administration

e Admin Vacant Posts - budget transferred from Access (0.083)

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.005)
Subtotal: Administration (0.088)
Total: Planning & Environment (0.003)

Education & Youth

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

Primary & Early Years Education
o Primary School Services (0.003)

Subtotal: Primary & Early Years Education (0.003)

Inclusion Services

« Out of County (0.020)
Subtotal: Inclusion Services (0.020)
Other

e Regional Services. 0.004

e School Planning. (0.002)

e Youth & Community Service. (0.002)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.000
Total: Education & Youth {0.023)

Page 87



Appendix 1

People & Resources

HR & OD
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.002
Subtotal: HR & OD 0.002

Corporate Finance

¢ Minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.003)
Subtotal: Corporate Finance (0.003)
Total: People & Resources (0.001)
Governance

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

= Legal Services. 0.005

e Democratic Services. (0.002)

+ Internal Audit. 0.001

+ Business Support. 0.010
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m 0.014
Total: Governance 0.014

Organisational Change

Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.004
Subtotal: Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events 0.004

Leisure Services
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.004

Subtotal: Leisure Services 0.004

Valuations & Estates
s Minor changes of less than £0.025m. (0.008)

Subtotal: Valuations & Estates (0.008)

Property Design & Consultancy

£31K windfall income secured in Administrative buildings has been used to offset an efficiency

within Property and Development 0.031

Subtotal: Property Design & Consultancy 0.031

Facilities
e Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.014
Subtotal: Facilities 0.014

Total: Organisational Change 0.045
Chief Executive
e £0.015m additional workforce savings due to a transfer of salary costs from Council Revenue

Funding to grant funding. £0.013m due to minor variances. (0.028)
Total: Chief Executive (0.028)

Central & Corporate Finance

® One-off in-year efficiency of (£0.300m) in relation to the Independent Living
Fund (ILF) transferred from Social Care.

® £0.215m additional Euticals site running costs. Projected costs have been 0.215
extended until the end of the financial year. ’

® Minor changes of less than £0.025m. 0.005

Total: Central & Corporate Finance (0.080)

(0.300)

Total Changes 0.637

Page 88



‘saunssasd
SSaJppe 0} 9dIAIBS U] BI8YMas|d spuadsiapun
asn 0} syjuaw)sn(pe Juswubijeas J@6png puswiwosay

‘sainssaid
SSaIppE 0} 82IAI9S Ul 9Jaymas|e spuadsiapun

*S3OIAISS 2JBD AB(] UIUNIM WSZO 03 18U e 0] jJunowe

SBOUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIQD "BaJE Jayjoue woly 12bpng jo uswubijeas

10 Aem Aq passalppe s| ainssaid S|y} Jey) papuajul st )| “sjgeasiyoeun
8q 0} passpisuod mou s| yoeosdde Bupsal sueaw e o) Bunejas

126pnq ay} ul panoidde sem wGQ | QF J0) 8INseaWw ADUBIDI8 UB 31aym
suoneidepy Jouly S| puadsiano jo eale Juedyubis jo eale jayuny
PYyjo

*S9IOUBDJEA JOYJOA

|e100s 0} anp Buyjels o) saiejdl yoiym (Wees0 03) Jo puadsiopun
pajoalold B0} B S| 219y "Swea} Saeso0] eale ay) uiyim yoddns
jeuoissajoud ay) s| puadsiapun Jo ease Juedsyiubis Jo ease Jsyunj vy
poddng [euoissajoid

*Buisinu aaJy 1o} (WOgo'03) Buipnious 196png anoge awooul

Ul sasealou] Jayuny snid ‘awodul pajejal Auadoud Jo [aa9) ayl ul
asealoul ue 0} anp (W 8H 03) J0 puadsiapun ue ‘siapinold swoy ales
0} sjuswAed uo (WeGeg 03} 40 puadsiapun ue ‘Sapnjoul yolym ‘sses
|enuapisal uo (Wy9/°03) Jo puadsiapun pajoaloid e Aq Jesyo uey)
aJow Bulaq si aseo Aegjoiwiog uo puadsiano payosfoad yueoytubis ay )
ales |enuapisay

‘abexoed xajdwoo auo Jo uonessad ay} Aq pasuanjul Ajped uasq

Sey yoiym ‘w/gg°03 4o uolsod LINRNO G/ LOZ SU) WO paonpas
Apueoyubis sey yaiym waey 03 SI puadsiano pajosfoid Jo [pas)
juaLnd ay| ejuawsap yum aidoad jo siaqunu Buisealoul pue pasu
Jo Ayxaiduwioo paseasou ‘ajoid onessowsap Buibueyo ay) ‘yuswalgess
sed |nyssaoons Buimo|joy adiaas ay) 0) Buiinial syuald Aq pasuanjjug
Buiaq |Ins si yaiym ‘ase) Aejoiwoq st ainssaud jo eale ulew

ay] -"eaJe sy} uj saoueueA Bunesuadwos Jueoylubis awos ale asay ]

(saniieson)

asn 0) syuswysnpe juswubijea. 186png pusWWOoaY aied Keyoiwoq|(zey0)  |(162°0)  |656°EL 0sZ ¥l swea ] A)edo
SIS [B120G
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
£ Yjuop wnyno 1ebpng
b
pasninbay uopoy aoueue Jofey jo asne) souepeA asueleA poioefold posiAoy [LITVET

Z Xipusddy

AHVYNINNS - ¥ HINOW

Page 89



‘WGE0'03

Buiuiewsal ay) dn Bupjew SSoUBLEBA JOUIW JBYI0 YIM WL L 03

10 puadsiano pajoafoid [ejo} 3y} Jo WggD 03 10} SJUNOIIE SIY |
‘sjuawAed 10auip Jo 10adsal Ul sja1apuad Aq papiacud sjuswebuene

(seons ANgesiq)
s801MeS AYligesiq

‘M3IAB) Japun daay) uoddns ayy 40 1509 ay) 0} anp Auiew si puadsiano pajoaloid syl |9LL 0 L0 VAWA) 1650 pue uonisuel |
*S90IAIas a1eD Aeq

uIyum (WL E0°03F) 18U B 0} JUNOWIB S9JUBLIBA JOUIW JBUIQD "SSISUBDBA (uaws|qesy

0} anp Buie)s o} sajejas yoiym jo (wggo 03) Jo puadsiapun pajosfosd pue ayeju|)

|10} B S| 318y | "SWes) sadias pajeinbay @ s80In0say eale S301AI9G pajeinbay

‘mainas Japun daay ayl uIyIm aseD) SWOH a3y} S| puadsiapun Jo eale Juedyiubis jo Baiy|Z10°0 (611°0) 2186 1€6°G B S20IN0S3Y
"panalyoe aq Jjouued yoiym sjesodoid
Aouatoyya Jo yoadsal ul sjusunsnipe Juswubieal 1a6pnq jo ped se

"MalIAal JBpun daay]|  pasn ag o) papuajul a1e Yoiym - sysod Juedea 0) anp sbuiaes buyers |(9v0:0) {$01°0) €280 12y 0 HOAN [B120S [eydsoH

‘WEZO'0F 19U 0} JUNOWE SIDUBLIEA JOUIW JaY}0 Aq 19sHo (Juaws|qeay pue

"MalAaal Japun dasyl|  (w/01°03) JO SWoou [eUONIPPE 0} Snp S puads Japun pajoafosd ayy |(zy0'0)  |(#80°0)  |SEFO 6150 3Yeju|) 1oejuog isii4

(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
paiinbay uoyoy asueueA Jofel jo asnen Mo_p__um.“wﬂ_‘\‘, asueuep uﬁ”w_ﬂm”_ WMMWMM_ ERITVETS

Z Xipuaddy

AYVWAINS - ¥ HENOW

Page 90



‘sainssaid
SSaippe 0} 82IAI9S Ul 81aYymas|a spuadsiapun

‘yoam Jad 093 0} yoam Jad g6 woyy des abieyd wnwixew

awoou|
Aoljod Buibieyn

asn 0) sjuaw)snipe yuswubijeal Jobpng puswiwoday|ay) JO [9A3] 3y} Ul JUBWUIBA0S UsioM Aq aseasoul ue Jo joedw|(L52°0) (zsz'0) (sz6'L) (€29°1) - S90IAIDG ssauisng
(e1eba.66e)
S32UBLEBA S)NPY
‘JUaLINJ3J 8q 0} Pajoadxa Jou INg M3IA3J 0} BNURUOD "Sa0UBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA [(220°0) {050°0) 687 6EST 10} S9IINIBS JBYIO
(somuag
*SUN02 10 uosud woly 8o1ou EL S VERITEE hIN
Hoys }e spuewap pue siaqunu juajo ul sabueyo 2 UlESH [2IUBN)
0} anp Ajnejona |eiuajod - maiaal Japun dasy) '91/510Z 10} sabeyded a1ed Juannd sysyad|(611°0) (681°0) 8210 /10 19bpng o1sualo
(CRINVELS
asnsIyy aduelsqns
' UNESH [BIUSIN)
‘s}so2 abeyoed mau jeuonippe ao1nag Aeioiwog
‘mataail Japun daay apis Buoje sabexyoed Aeioiwoq pue [efuapisay ul saseasou]| /L 0 010 £86°0 £18°0 pue |enuapisay
(CERIVELS
‘yeys Aouabe jo asn Buipnjou Ayngesic) voddng
‘malnal Japun daay ‘'s1500 saakojdwa uo sainssaid o} anp Ajulew s puadsiano SIYL|LLLO ARA] 120 ¥0€°0 aAlensIuIWPY
(saowuag Ayiqesiq)
"SJUBIO uonIsuBH |BUOHIPPE UM ao1nes Ayjiqesig pue
‘M3IAS) JBpuUn doay|  JUSWHWIWOD Palewnsa ‘gl/510z 40 sabeyoed ated Juaund s19)eYy|(512°0) S61°0 (o] lard 1222 S)NpY 3|qeJauNA
‘sJ1a1e9 Aojdwa oym s1asn
@o1s 10} syuswAed aouelnsul Aiqer) Jakojdwa puny o} suonebiiqo
104 pue s1asn 821AS 0} sjuswAed ay) abeuew o} papasu Ayoedes
'sainssald| ‘uiwpe {euonippe ay) 0} Uoie|al Ul S juaws|d Buluiewsal ay | “Aousiiys (s@oiuag Ayjigesiq)
SSalppe 0} 90IAIaS Ul 819ymas|a spuadsiapun| 1o auo e se ajelodio) pue |[enua) o} (47)) puny Buiag uspuadapu) Sa21AI9g pajeinbay
asn 0 syusunsnipe juswubiyeal 196pnq puswwoday| 3y} o} uonelsl ul 186png Jo Jajsue ay) Bunoa|yas mou st 91ABS SIYL|(P2 L 0) €610 686'Sl 96/°G1 Y S92IN0SaY
{w3z) (w3) (w3) (w3)
€ Yiuoy wnyno jebpng
asnbay uolo asueue Jofep jo asne asueue, CRITNEY
pasnbay uopoy e tofel J 2 souBLEA HeA | poreford | pesiey LAVE

Z Xipusddy

AYVWWNS - ¥ HINOW

Page 91



(£25'0) |(€20°0) |965°6S 699°65 Sa9jA19g 21908 [Bj0L
(e1eba1668)
S3OUBMEA UBIP|IYD
‘Juaundal aq o} pajoadxa Jou INg M3IAL 0} aNURUOD ‘SSOUBLEBA JOUjW SNOWEA[(1Z1 0) {ov10) £€ee elve Joj s91nes JaYl0
Sjuawsoe|d
"M3IAaJ J9pun dasy 91/G10z 10) sabexyoed aieo jJuaund sjo8)94|000°0 (ooz'0) |9ize 9Lv'E Aunog Joinp
‘aoueuUljUlew pue sjeadde snjels ajbulg Buimoj|oy
sainssaid|  suoneoo|e }26png [euonppe 104 PaBU 3L} 9pN|aUl SaJUBN|U) JaYUN4
SSaJppe 0] IAISS Ul 2IUMas|a m_u:mam._mv:: .mco_umm_umm>c_ mo__oa mc_omco Jo toaa:m Ul SISNJOAA [BI00S |euoi}ippe
asn 0} wEman:.:um ucmE:m__mmh umm_uzn puswIwIoday J0j pasu ay) mEU:_UC_ >m«mou mcEm«w 0} sajelad ainssaid SiYy} JOISON|[LEL O g8cL0 GGL'g 1667 tonn:w |BuoisSSajold
‘slajed ay)
‘saouaIoIe ajqissod| 10) aouemoje buiobuo ue joeie Algeleau; yaiym siapio diysuelpiens)
pue Bujuue|d ainyny WUOJUI ||IM PUB PaJaPISU0D |e1oadg pue aouapisay J0) SI9PI0 UNOI Jo Jaquinu Buisealoul
Buiaq s Yoiym JO SW0IN0 Y} UDNEUSPUN|ay} 0) anp OS|e SI SiU} JO Hed "a21AIas aU) ulylim sjuawaoe|d a1ed 19)so) (sao1nag s,ualpiiyD)
ua2aq sey wea| JUawWade|d Ajwed ay) Jo Maiaal 1O JaquInu 3y} Ul 8SeaJou| UB JO Jnsal e Si puadsiano Woe L 03 auL|v6L 0 9610 gere 12272 Juswade|d Apwe
(e1ebai166e)
SOUBLIBA S22IN0STY
‘JusLINJal ag 0} Pajoadxa Jou JNg MaIASI 0) SNURUOD ‘SadUBLIBA JOUIW SNOUBA|/220°0 9500 viv'e gLy'Z 3 yswdopaaq Jayl0
‘palinbal
|2A8] 8y} 0} dn Qou 0] S3JIAJBG |BIJ0S UM Jaymas|a Wolj ume:n ay}
ubijeas 0} alojpiayy Auessaossu aq |im ) (daMDS) wels swwelbold
JjuawdojaAsq 92IOPUOAA BIBD) [B1D0S 8y} Joj suonipuod juelb
ay) 192w 0} pasnnbal |aA3] ay) mojaq ua|ie; sey 18bpng ay) Jo JuswaP
‘'sainssaud|Buipuny yojew ay} aouanbasuod e sy ‘suoneuluwlsdep YA/MEAT
SSaJppe 0} A2IAIBS U] 319Yymas|a spuadsiapun|pue sawoono sniels 9jbulg jo joedwi pauiquod ayy jo souanbasuod
asn o} syuswisnipe yuawubieal 196png puswwooay|e se paonpal Ajeinjeu sey 30eS SIUl Joy 196png aseq ayl|LELo $G1°0 10Z2°0 1$0°0 Buiuies |
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
T € Yjuop wnyno 19bpng
pad) Y uonIYy asueue Jofep jo asnen souBpEA aJjueUeA peyoefoig posiey 8J1Aag

Z Xipuaddy

AYVAWNS - ¥ HINOW

Page 92



asudiajugy

(6070}  [(z8L°0) |veEs-elL 90L°ZL 9 Aunwwo) [ejo)
"(wg10'03) J0 seduBLeA JOUIW JBYIO (WBY0'03)

‘M3IA3J PUE JOJUOW O] SNUNUOD(J0 uoIsIncid 82119 S]oBUUOD  aaysiul4 3Yyy uo  puadsiapun{(5H00) (£90°0) 190 0120 S30IAIBS JBWOoISNYD
‘WEL0'03F JO SRDUBLIBA JOUIM JBYID ‘WEEL 03
10 |lejuoys pajebpng Apisqng Jyaueg BuisnoH “(WQpz03) awayds
“1eak ay) 1noybnoayl{uononpay xe] [1ounog ay) Joj uoisiaoid payebpng ayy uo puadsiapun
abueys o} Aj9y) a1e suonoaloid pue ajejoA|pajosfold ‘pajewnsa  Alemul ueyy Jsybly (wyZl'03) 1B Sspuels

Alyby ase seale asay) Se A|9S0|2 JOJUOLW 0} ANURUOD [AJUBIND pund UORI3J0D XBL |1Bunod syl uo snidins pajedionuy|(19Z°0) (z51°0) €050l 55901 sjijouag g SaNUaAY
"8)el SWeS ay) Je pasealoul
Jou aney sabieys aseym ‘Jeak yoea uonejjul yum aul ul Buiseasoul

"MaIASJ PUE JOJIUOL O} anupuo) [s1abie} awodul 0) anp S}Ex}JEwW Ul WOgQ'03 JO |lejuoys pajewns3l|0s0°0 0900 6250 69%°0 uonesauabay
"W/ 10°03 JO SaoueueA Joulw JayiO (Wei0°03) 40 Aousiole sanua)

"M3IASI PUB JO)UOW 0} anunuo) {Ayunwwo) ‘w9003 Aq paledidijue ueyl Jamoj SWOdUl 3182918 1¥1L0°0 6200 ¥ZL'0 5600 9|doad Bupoddng
"W/ 0003 JO SIIDUBIDIYS Joulw JBYIQ "W LE0 0F JO Judwainooxd

dYVHS Jo 10adsas ul ainjipusdx3 (Wpe0T03) UOHEPOWWOIDY S30IAIRG

"MaIAB) PUE JOJUOW 0} aNUnuUog[ssejpwioq §o joadsas ul paynuapr Aousoiys seaA-ul  |euomppy|(£90°0) (950°0) 1220 12270 Buisnoy g Jawoysnd

asiadiayug

2 Qunwwo)

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
€ yjuoy wnyno 1abpng
paiinbay uonoy asueue Jofepy Jo asne) soueLEA aouepep pojosfoid pesiney ERITVETS

Z Xipusddy

AIVWAINS - ¥ HLINOW

Page 93



uopepodsues |

808°0 ¥68°0 $99°8¢C 0LL'le '3 3UaISsIPANg [BI0L
S3JUBLEA Jayj0
"M3IABI 0) BNUIRUOY "saoueneA Joun|((z1o'0)  |(2L00)  |LOb'9 gly'9 - siomyaN AemybiH
"WOQL 03 40 Aousidiya ay} ul ||ejHoys
Javoel) PaJBWINSS UB Ul }jNsal [[IM Yoiym g10¢ Auenueris|, aq o) pajedionue
Aouaioiyg pieog awwelboid ybnouy) pauoday MOU S| spJepue)s Buisuea|o paonpal ay) jo uonejuswaldwl sy
-Javoel )
Aouaioy)3 pireog swwesboid ybnoiyy pauoday ‘WSO 03 @oiuas Buiyno sselb jo uonesijeuss)xs ||ny ay) ul Aejeq|09g 0 0GL°0 ¥50°1L v06°0 ABajens sAemybiH
S30UBLEA
Jayoel | 130 - sopsibor
Aouaioiy3 pieog awwesbold ybnoly) papoday ‘SaoUBLBA JOUIN|SZ0°0 5zZ0'0 8e8°2lL €182l 9 uojeyodsues |
S39oUBLEBA
Jovoel | JaU}0 - 3dUBWIONSd
Aouaioiy3 pieog awweibosd ybnoiyy papoday ‘Sa0uBlEBA JOUIN|GE0°0 €00 €20°1L 8860 g sa01M3S Aue|jIouy
‘saiioe)
Bunsodwod uno Buisn Jabuoj ou ale A3y} se DO wouy }sodwiod
10} 91-G10Z Ul 8NP WQYQ 03 JO N[BA ay} 0) SWOodU| ON "SSN|eA
‘€ YIUOW 1B XSu B Se pasiey ajes 8|9As-a. Bunenonjy yum pouad ajije|oA e o) anp si (Jeinojued
‘91/510Z Inoybnaiuy Ajasop jexsew BuloAaas Jopuopy ul saded) 1oxiew BuipAoal ayy ul wgge 03 0 Buinalyoe Japun
“J9voel ) "WGZ0 03F ulg isem puodas 10) abieyd Jo uononposul pue WS 03
Aousoiyg pieog awwelsboid ybnouy) pspoday SJaUIRU0D B)SEM JOJ 32IA1as AuaAljap Jo uoieuswajdw paielpq
WG/ 103 Jo Aoustoiys pajabpng ayy uo
llesuoys pajoaloid (eJ0) B Ul }NSas |[Im SBUS JuUlj4 pue AenD) S Ueuuo)) e
sawy Bunesado mau jo uononpouiu; pajoadxa uey) Jaje) ay) 0} sabueyd
Jayoel] | ‘uonippe u| "anuad 6uipAoas adoH jo ainsopo pasodoid ay) 0) uonelds
Aouaoiy3 pieog awwelboid ybnoiyy pauoday| ur usseuapun uope)nsuod pue palspisuod Bulag ale suondo Jayuny
uswabuele Juswabeuew Mau pue s||am UORIBIIXS ‘wQG L 03 uonoenxa seb Jo sjaaa| Bunenjonjy pue umopyeaiq uo1}99||00) BISBM
Mmau jjejsuyapelbdn o) Juswisanul 1oy [elusiod Juswdinba Bumoy|oy sauibua seb woly sajes A)ou0aje paonpay |00y 0 9690 8re L 2599 B |esodsiq] a1sep
topepodsued |
9 dUdIS)PANG
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
£ Yjuoy wnyno 186png
pasinbay uopoy aoueuep Jofep Jo asne) souBLEA asueueA poyosfoig posiney E:Rl TN TS

Z Xipusddy

AHVINAINS - ¥ HINOW

Page 94



juswuoaug

0LL0 1910 66¥'S [4%%°] g Bujuue|d jejol
SadUBLIBA JBUJO JO
"MaIABI 0} ahuluod ‘SadueleA JoulNi1100 {+r00°0) 6S0'€ £90°€ @)ebai66y ollopiod
S2OUBLEBA
1310 j0 ajebaibby
"MBIAB) 0) BNURUOD "s90uBleA JOUN[(800°0)  |(800°0)  |Z2L°0 €EL0 - JuawdojaAag
b pouad e juawsaaoidwi Jybys e yum Juswa2ioju]
paioyuow A|9s0j0 a9 ||Im S|9A3| 8w odU| 894 Buluue|d G10Z '48g0)o0 |nun Buisealoul Jou s33) ddy Buluue|d woly jjejuoys| 8eL 0 GLL0 (810°0) (ec10) g |ouo) Buluueld
SaoUBLEA JaY)0 JO
"M3IAB) 0} BNUUOD ‘aoueueA ON|{(#00°0) 0000 ovyL ovyL a)ebaibby - ssauisng
Juawubijeal 196pnq (enusiod ybnoiyy 'G10Z 21e| ul Buipus elaQq
19611 awodu) Juels) aanpal o) shem ajebisau| weyxaipn yum diysieuped oy anp j1abie) awoduj JUBIS) uo ([BUOYS|000°0 €€0°0 6510 9zZ10 Q Uy)eaH [ewiuy
SIOUBLEBA
Jayo jo ajebalbby
"M3lAa1 0} anuuoy ‘saoueueA Jouln|(800°0) (900'0) 2990 8990 - Ayunwwon
‘glendoidde se juawywwod
awodul isnipe pue papirocid S80IAISS JO [9A3] JoJILOW ‘uolisod Bujoueuy J|as ay} ul J[BJUOYS [BNUSI0H|Z20°0 €200 Si00 {800°0) Buisuao]
‘ajeudoidde se Juawpwwod uspiepn
BWodul Jsnfpe pue papircid SSOIAISS JO 93] JOJIUO "uolpsod Bujoueuy Jas 2y} Ul |lejuoyS [BRUA1OH(910°0 cLoo G500 £v0°0 Bog |05u0) 3sad
JUBWUOIIAU]
w9 Bujuueld
(w3) (wz) (ws3) (w3)
€ Jjuop wnpno j9bpng
pasnbay uopoy asuepeA Jofep jo asned soueLEp asuelEA pejsfoid posiney TN ETS

Z xipusddy

AYVIWNNS - ¥ HLNOW

Page 95



000°0 000°0 691°€8 691°€8 sjooyag |210
"MBIABJ 0} anuiuo) ‘3Juelie/\ ON|000°0 0000 2000 2000 S80IAIBG SAIYIIY
“MalABI 0} shuhjuoly ‘93uBHEA ON|000'0 0000 ¢88'€ 288'¢ $82IAJ8g uoIsn|ou|
uonesnp3 Buinuguo)
"MBIAB ) 8nujuo) ‘adueleA ON|000°0 0000 509'GE c09'se ® 6111 ‘Aiepuosag
uofeINp SIESA
"MBIABJ 0} anuhjuo) ‘3Juelie/ ON|000°0 0000 089tV 089°¢cy Ape3 g Aewud
s|00Y2g
yinop
5200 ¢00°0 GLG°El €LGEL 9 uopesnp3 [e10]
wea | uoljeuloju) g
"M3IA3I 0) 8nuURU0) “saouBLeA JOUIN|(900°0) (800°0) 9810 2610 Juawsabeuepy |ooyas
aouewsopad
"M3IAR) 0) BnuURU0) ‘@duelieA ON|000°0 0000 veZ0 LA g Buluoissiwwon
"M8IABJ 0} anuhjuo) "saoueneA JOuN|(z00"0) (000 881’1 4943 S30IAIBS YINOA
"M3IAB) 0] anunuo) ‘SdueleA ON|000°0 0000 68¥°0 68¥°0 sjooyog Ainjua) 1stz
(uoisinoid g Buuue|d
*MBIABI 0} BNUNUOD) ‘S|eapy |00UDS 2314 10} puewap ui aseaou| ay} o} sajelal siyl (9200 $20°0 2850 8050 JOOYoS) SS300Y
puewsap jo Ayjgejaipasdun pue syuswaoeld
1502 ybiy Joy jenuajod sy} pue ad1AJBS BY) JO aINJeU S[IJe|OA BU)
'MBIA3J 0} BNUNUOD| 0} anp Ajuoying ay) 0} ¥ysu Jo eale ue ale sjuawadseld Huno) Jo INO|(0LO D) (0£0°0) 1€9°8 1998 S32|AIBS UOISN|oU|
uoneonp3 Buinuguo)
"M3iAaJ 0] anuuo) ‘SadueueA JOUIN|S00°0 6000 LEL'L Z2cl’L 2 6171 ‘Alepuodag
uofeonpy sieap
"MBlA8l 0) snujuo) ‘SSduelieA JOUIN|Z10°0 6000 880 6980 Apeg g Aewud
YInoA g uojieanpy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
uo wn abpn
painbay uonoy asueueA Jofew jo asnen Moﬂ__ﬂth aJueuep uﬁuw_.“.un_ wwm_ﬂom_ -RITNETS

Zxipueddy

ALIYNNNS - ¥ HINOW

Page 96



y2Z1L°0 8€L°0 998°8 8cL'8 3JUBLIBAOY) |Bjo |
"JUa1IN2a1 aq o} pajoadxa jou S| puadsian) 'SaouUBUEA JOUIN| 0000 0100 oEl'V Y AR 191
yswabeuepy
‘U228l 8q 0} pajoadxa Jou S| puadsianQ 'saoueue/ JOUIN 0200 0200 ¥61°0 vi10 spJoday
‘JUaLINDaJ aq 0} pajoadxa Jou S| puadsiapun ‘saoueue/ JOUN|(S00°0) (s00°0) 6€2°0 w0 poddng ssauisng
JUS1IN231 3q 0) pajoadxa Jou s puadsianQ ‘saouene A JOUIN 0200 0200 8510 8€1L'0 jusWwaInooId
"Jua.indaJ aq 0} pajoadxa Jou s| puadsiapun ‘saoueleA JouN[(€00°0)  [{(€00°0)  |22b0 SZr'0 UPNY [BUISIU}
‘S30UBLIBA JOUIW 0} 3Np Si (WZ00 03)
Jjeak|jo puadsispun uy 1896pnq SLAZLOZ S uym paaibe sem youm
XBU [N} Ul paAaIYoe aq o} payoadxa S| Aouaioie ay) (wpl L 03 Jo Aouaiye ue Buinaiyoe ul Aejap B anp sI puadsiano a8yl |oLL'0 8010 6102 1161 S30IAI3S dljeIo0Wa(q
"Jua.INdal aq 0} pajoadxa Jou si puadsiapun *saoueuep JOUIN|(810°0) (z1L0°0) 8650 0190 saoinag jefa
ajueuIdAon
$92.N0S3aYy
9£0°0 S€0°0 6.9V o'y % 9|doad jejoL
(wgZ°03) J0 spuadsiapun 3210)410M
*Aluo Jeak-ul ale spuadsiapun a2JOOAN 189K 1xau|Aueiodwa) Ag Josyo Bulaq si Siy] “WEe0 03 JO llefoys B yim passiyoe
liny U1 paAsIyor aq 0) pajoadxe ale saouaioye ay] [Aleped Buleq se pauodes Buisq st Aousloye 186png 91/5102 V|(2£0°0) (0+0°0) L9€°C 10¥'2 @oueul{ ajesodio)
"(woe003)
‘Auo Jesh-u| ale spuadsiapun a2JopopA JBaA 1xau {jo spuadsiapun adloppom Aq 1asyo Ajlented Buiag s siy) "s|qeasiyoe
lIny Ul paAsIyoe 3q 0} pajoadxe aie sausIdle 3y L |jou se pauodal Buleq si wgpl 03 Jo Acuatoiye 186png 91/5L02 V(€200 G.0°0 8lee £vee aoegyH
s92inosay g ajdoayd
(w3z) (w3z) (w3) (w3)
€ Yluow wnyno 196png
paiinbay uopoy aosueuep Jofey jo asned eouelEn aouBLIEA peroafoid DESIAGY ERITNETS

Z xipusddy

AHVYNNNS - ¥ HLNOW

Page 97



abueyn

(sst0)  [(orr0)  [szs'6 596 {euonesiuebiQ [210)
"MalABJ O] anuuo) ‘saouelen Jouln|(5zo'0)  |(LL0'0)  |€99°L ¥29°L $30IAlG saploed
*M3IASI 0} BNURUOD ‘asueueA ON|000°0 0000 0000 0000 sa01eg Buuaauibug
Aoueynsuo)
"M3IAR] 0} BNUNUOD "aoueleA ONJ{LE0'0)  |000°0 889'C 8892 i ubisag Auedouid
‘puads.iapun [|eiaA0 ay} 0} Bunnquiuod
(Wi L0"03) JO SoUBLIEA JOUIW JBYIQD "BAIE 32IAISS SIU} UIYIM 3SES(D)
"M3IARI 0) BNURUOD He1s sy Buimoljoy paasiyoe (w/60"03) JO SBI0UBI0YIS B2IOPHOM|(E0L'0)  |(LLL'D)  |(BL6'D) (£08°0) sajejs] g uonenjep
"M3IA3] 0} BNURUCD "90UBLEA ON|000 0 0000 8100 8L0°0 sjessy Ayunwwon
‘w0003
10 sasuelLEeA Joulw JaYO (weop03) Jo sbuines 1soo salddns
*M3IA3] 0] BNUIU0Y) 3 sasiwaid Ag Jesyo ainssaid awodu| jul 89 3pIsaag Wo.L0'03|600°0 €100 £86°¢ 0/6°€ S32IASS AINSIDT]
"M3JAB) 0} BNURU0Y "saoueMen JoUuIN|(100°0)  [(100°0)  |8SZ'0 6520 S8AIY2LY AJuno)
"M3JA3J 0} BNUUOD ‘soueLeA ON|000'0 000°0 900 900 90IAI3G SWINAsN
SJuaAg
g 8JMNY ‘sUy
‘M8iAB) O} aNuuo) ‘9oueMeA ON|{(+00°0) 0000 6971 692°1 '@ Sauesqi aqnd
abueyn jeuopesjuebig
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
pasinbay uopoy aoueyep Jofey Jo asne) Mo.__.ﬁwh asueMeA v_“”w_”wm WMM”H_ ERITNETS

Z Xipuaddy

AUYYNNNS - ¥ HLNOW

Page 98



(zLZ0) SZY'o 288°LSe LSY'1LSC Iv1i0L
asueui4 ajes0dio)
(eez0) |[(e1e0) [ezlTe 9E0'€Z B [enua) jeloL
‘malnal Japun dasy (W 10°03) JO S8oUBLEA JOUIN
*3)Is JoIoApues - Py S[e2NT JauLIO)
*‘malnal Japun deay 0} Uonejal ul wooy 03 Jo S1s0d payabpnqun ‘paywy awn / o auQ
“(47) pund Bun
‘malnal 0} anunuo)| Juspuadapu) ayy o} uonelas ul (WS 03) JO Aouaiyye Jeak-ul Jo-auQ
Jeak
‘suondo Jayjo Je Bupjoo) Apusung| ur sjgeaaiyoeun paapisuod WOGL 03 ‘Aousiol)] 92I0PHOAN palewnsy
‘suopdo 'SUOINGLILOD [BUONIPPE. JO SI1S0D pajedidiue
yuswubijeal Japisuo) suondQ Bupueuly syeiodio) uey) Jamoj 0} anp (WZ L6 03) MaIny [eLendy uoisuad "(Woyz 03)
‘ABajess asueulq wia) wnipay Jo Yed se mainay Jeak snoinaud wouy uoheyu] pJepuels UON pasnun Jo aouejeq
‘w0903 Allewixoidde Jo sa1oudIIYd
‘uonebmw sjqissod{ Ul uononpad e o) salenba siy) suondwnsse [eulbuo e uo paseg ‘19s aojueuly
10j uolisod ||BJaA0 Auspl |iim 110 JO mainay |sem 1abpng ay) Jsye pabueyod Junowe juswaas sy - Bupueuld vyH|(€€2'0) (€1£°0) [ XA 44 9e0°€c ajeiodio] B [ENUAD
aJjueulqd
ajeiodio) B [euUI)
(sor'0) |[(eer0) |z90¢€ S6L°E SaARN23X3 Ay [E10L
*S9OUBLIEA JOUIW O} anp S| (WQE0 03)
‘Aluo Jeah-ul aqljo 2oueleq ay]) (wgzo 03) j0 suawaaiby Buipun4y 8100 ul uononpal
0} payoadxa ale (wag'03) Jo sbuiaes aakodws ay] [e osje pue (wg/0'03) Jo sBuiaes asiopuom 0) anp si puadsiapun ay] |(S0L°0) (ec170) 290°¢ G6L'E SaAN0aXJ JaIyd
SaANIaXg JaIyd
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
T (TS € Wuop wnyno 196png
pasnnbay uopoy aosuepep Jolew jo asne) soueLEA asueuep pojosfoid posiAey 92IA19G

Z xipuaddy

AIYWAINS - ¥ HLNOW

Page 99



Page 100



2015/16 Efficiencies Month 4 - Under or Over Achieved

Portfolio

People & Resources

Review of specialist finance functions to identify efficiencies in
process

Ensure continuation of grant maximisation opportunities
identified in 2014/15

Review of specialist human resources functions to identify
efficiencies in process

Total People & Resources

Central and Corporate Finance
Workforce efficiency proposal

Central Loans and Investment Review
Total Central & Corporate Finance

Social Services

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House day care is
provided

Develop means testing approach for minor adaptations

Review model/costs contracts for catering

Rationalise the number of sites where In-House short term care
is provided

Review commissioning with Action for Children

Regional approach to advocacy

Review and realign funding to voluntary sector

Total Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Welfare Rights Team Review

Community Centres

Community Based Accommodation Support Service
Telecare Charging

Total Community & Enterprise

Streetscene & Transportation

Introduce non-generic Streetscene roles (3 year plan)
Develop Energy Production at Landfill
Rationalise HRC Sites

Removing the Waste Containers delivery service
Introduce Charge for 2nd Garden Waste Bin

Car Parking Charges

Cancel Real Time Info System

Charge Maintenance of Bus Shelters

Review subsidised bus routes

Externalise grass cutting service

Reduced Street Lighting resource

Remove second grass cut for highway verges
Reduce Cleansing standards zero tolerance litter
Part night street lighting in residential areas
Winter Maintenance (Car Parks and standard)
Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment

Staffing & Management Restructure (incl. all vacancies)
Staffing & Collaboration

Animal & Pest Control

increased Planning Fees (15% WG increase)

Increase in number of Planning Applications

Additional elements of charging (discharge of conditions)
Pre-Planning Advice PDM111952P

Total Planning & Environment

Total 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Underachieved
Total Projected 2015/16 Budget Efficiencies Achieved

Appendix 3

- . . . (Under)/Over
Original Efficiency Revised Efficiency Achievement
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16
£(m) £(m) £(m)
0.170 0.166 (0.004)
0.100 0.066 (0.034)
0.105 0.000 (0.105)
0.375 0.232 (0.143)
0.300 0.150 (0.150)
1.830 1.230 (0.600)
2.130 1.380 (0.750)
0.130 0.095 (0.035)
0.100 0.000 (0.100)
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.075 0.110 0.035
0.075 0.015 (0.060)
0.053 0.005 (0.048)
0.203 0.070 (0.133)
0.686 0.295 (0.391)
0.020 0.035 0.015
0.048 0.096 0.048
0.030 0.060 0.030
0.200 0.139 (0.061)
0.298 0.330 0.032
0.080 0.115 0.035
0.050 0.000 (0.050)
0.400 0.225 (0.175)
0.150 0.100 (0.050)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.400 0.380 (0.020)
0.020 0.025 0.005
0.005 0.000 (0.005)
0.075 0.050 (0.025)
0.075 0.025 (0.050)
0.050 0.038 (0.013)
0.030 0.025 (0.005)
0.150 0.050 (0.100)
0.020 0.030 0.010
0.150 0.170 0.020
1.705 1.258 (0.448)
0.295 0.178 (0.117)
0.024 0.036 0.012
0.030 0.005 (0.025)
0.135 0.050 (0.085)
0.060 0.030 (0.030)
0.050 0.025 (0.025)
0.020 (0.006) (0.026)
0.614 0.318 (0.296)
% £
100 12.874
16 1.996
84 10.878

Page 101



Page 102



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2015

Less - Base Level

Total Reserves above base level available for
delegation to Cabinet

Less - Allocation from the Contingency
Reserve for the costs of the speed limit review

Less projected overspend as at Month 4

Total projected Contingency Reserve as at
31st March 2016

Page 103

£m £m
10.515
(5.769)
4.746
(0.210)
(0.425)
4.111



Page 104



0,00 200°0 9¢€2°0 ¥€C0 c|ejol

(eyebaibbe)

"*MalAal Japun dasy "S80UBLIEA JOUIW SNOLBA|SLO0 (¥90°0) Hor' L) (oo¥1) SaouUBLIBA JBYI0
SSOUBHEA JOUTW W L0 0F
‘pajeoo)e Buiaq 196pnq
jusiolnsul 0} anp abesn auoyd s|iqow
pue abeajiw YJeis uo ainssaid Wz 03
uswabebus yeys Aouabe
0] anp saue|es uo ainssaid WgLQ'03
‘sainpasoid
199p peq uo paseq asiaAal 0} Buiuels
sa0l0AUl S1eak snojaald o) anp SHOM

*MaInsl Jspun doay ajqeabieyosy uo ainssaid wg L0 03F|SS0°0 990°0 00.L°L X juswabeuepy ale)s3

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
asinbay uono aosueleA JO asne —:MM " asueue SN0 196png JJIAID
paiinbay uonoy MeA ¥ J woﬂm_..__m> LeA pejosfoid pasinay ARG

G xipuaddy

¥ polad - yoday asueuep Joleiy ViH

Page 105



Page 106



Appendix 6

RESERVES AND BALANCES PROTOCOL

1.00

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

2.00

2.01

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

The purpose of this protocol is to set out how the Council will
determine, manage and review the level of its Council Fund Balance
and Earmarked Reserves taking into account relevant legislation and
professional guidance.

Sections 32 and 43 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
require local authorities to have regard to the level of reserves needed
to meet estimated spending when calculating the budget requirement.
Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires:-

> the Chief Finance Officer to report to members on the budget
including the adequacy of reserves; and

> Members to have regard to the Chief Finance Officer's (Section
151 Officer) report in making their decisions.

Revenue reserves are an integral part of ensuring sound financial
management in an organisation and it is essential that they are
considered as part of its medium term financial planning
arrangements and its consideration of preparing the annual budget.

The Council's Financial Procedure Rules which were updated in July
2015 refer to the Council's arrangements in relation to the
maintenance of reserves and this protocol sets out more detail as to
the Council's requirements to ensure that the Council's Financial
Procedure Rules are supported and adhered to.

TYPES OF RESERVES

The Council maintains the following ‘usable’ revenue reserves:

Council Fund Reserve

The purpose of the Council Fund Reserve is to manage the impact of
any significant unforeseen events and historically the Council’s policy
has been to maintain a level equivalent to 2% of its annual budget.

Any resources in excess of this base level are referred to as the
contingency reserve and are available for delegation to Cabinet. The
Contingency Reserve is increased by way of any overall underspend
at the end of the financial year (or reduced by way of an end of year
overspend)

Cabinet make decisions around the use of the contingency reserve

following the principle that ‘one-off reserves should be used either to
fund; ‘one-off and time limited’ expenditure or to provide transitional

Page 107



2.02

2.03

2.04

Appendix 6

funding in relation to the part year effect of any efficiency saving that
cannot be implemented in time to enable a full year efficiency saving.

The Council fund reserve, including the contingency reserve, is
reviewed for adequacy annually as part of the budget setting process
and is reported monthly to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Scrutiny
Committee through the revenue budget monitoring cycle.

Earmarked Reserve

The purpose of earmarked reserves are to meet known or predicted
future requirements and are held corporately or within individual
service portfolios for specific purposes. These reserves are typically
established to address temporary need and considered on a risk basis
and also include funding required to be carried forward to the following
financial year as approved through the monthly monitoring report by
Cabinet. As with all reserves they should only be established to meet
one-off and time limited expenditure.

The Council's Earmarked Reserves includes an Insurance reserve
which provides for past and on-going costs of the Councils insurance
arrangements. The Council self insures to some extent and as
required sets money aside to meet its share of claim costs.

Schools’ Reserves

School reserves are funds released under delegated budgets unspent
at year end and held by the Council on schools behalf. The
Governing Body of a School is tasked with ensuring their school
maintains an adequate level of reserves. Guidance is issued to all
schools through the Scheme for Financing Schools.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Reserve

The HRA reserve is ring fenced in the same way that the HRA budget
is a ring fenced account and can only be used for activity in relation to
the management and maintenance of housing. Historically Flintshire’s
policy has been to maintain the HRA reserve at a prudent level which
is currently a minimum of 3% of total HRA expenditure.

The HRA reserve is reviewed for adequacy annually as part of the
budget setting process and is reported monthly to Cabinet and
Corporate Resources Scrutiny Committee through the revenue budget
monitoring cycle.

Page 108



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.06

4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

Appendix 6

PROTOCOL FOR EARMARKED RESERVES

It is the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151) to
advise local authorities on the level of reserves held taking into
account the strategic financial context that the council will be
operating in over the medium term as detailed in its Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS).

For each Earmarked Reserve there needs to be a clear protocol which
sets out:

The purpose and amount of the Reserve

How and when the reserve will be utilised (drawn down)
The process for the reserve’'s management and control
A process and timescale for review.

o o o o

The creation of a new earmarked reserve will require Cabinet
approval which will be actioned through the monthly budget
monitoring report at the relevant point in the financial year. Cabinet
will approve the amount, the purpose and an estimated timeframe for
when the reserve is expected to be drawn down.

The Earmarked Reserve must be used for the specific purpose
approved by Cabinet. Should the Chief Officer wish to amend the
purpose then further approval by Cabinet through the monthly budget
monitoring report is required.

Once the estimated timeframe approved for the reserve has elapsed,
there will be an expectation that the balance of the reserve will be
transferred back to increase the level of contingency reserve
available. Any subsequent request to retain the reserve would be
subject to approval by Cabinet.

MONITORING AND REPORTING OF RESERVES AND BALANCES

In considering all reserves, the Section 151 Officer will have regard to
relevant matters in respect of each reserve, and will advise the
Council accordingly. The process for the determination of all reserves
will be based upon the principles of transparency and effective overall
financial management.

All earmarked reserves are recorded on a central schedule held by
the Accountancy Section which lists the various reserves and the
purpose for which they are held. The schedule includes the opening
balances for the year, planned additions/withdrawals and the
estimated closing balance.

Any appropriations to or from Earmarked Reserves are controlled in

accordance with Finance Procedure Rules during the vyear.
Appropriate working papers for each reserve are produced at year-

Page 109



4.04

Appendix 6

end and provided to the External Auditor to support the disclosures
within the Statement of Accounts.

A summary of the latest position in relation to reserves will be reported
quarterly to Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee through the monthly monitoring report.

Reserves can only be used once and so should not normally be held

to fund ongoing expenditure. This would be unsustainable at the point
a reserve is fully exhausted.

Page 110



T ity Flint
Flintshire

APPENDIX B

CABINET MEETING

Date of Meeting Tuesday 13 October 2015
Report Subject Capital Programme Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4)
Portfolio Holder Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance
Report By Corporate Finance Manager
Strategic / Operational
Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Para Ref

The Capital Programme has increased by £75.438m in the period,
largely due to the impact of:-

HRA Subsidy Buyout (£79.248m):

Rollover from 2014/15 (£5.767m);

Additional WG grant funding (£4.223m);
Community Asset Transfers (CAT's) (£0.500m)

Offset by:-

e A decrease in funding required for 21st Century schools
(£13.850m); and

e Savings in the allocation to Flintshire Connects projects
(£0.521m).

Current expenditure stands at 15.42% of budget (excluding HRA
Subsidy Buyout).

Resources available for funding future capital expenditure currently
c£2.476m.

1.03

1.12

1.21

Page 111



APPENDIX B

RECOMMENDATIONS

(1)
(2)

Approve the Report.

Approve the rollover adjustments at 1.16.

REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING POSITION
FOR MONTH 4 - 2015/16

1.01

1.02

1.03

Items marked with an asterisk * are included in the Glossary of Terms
at the end of this Report

Background

The Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)* capital
programme* for 2015/16 of £21.200m and a Council Fund (CF)* capital
programme of £50.359m at its meeting of 17" February, 2015.

For presentational purposes the capital programme is shown as a whole, with
sub-totals for the Council Fund and HRA. In reality the HRA programme is
ring fenced and can only be used for HRA purposes.

Changes since Budget approval

Table 1 below sets out how the programme has changed during 2015/16.
More detailed cumulative information relating to each Portfolio is provided in
Appendix A:-

Table 1

Page 112




APPENDIX B

REVISED PROGRAMME Original | Rollover |Changes- | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget from This to Budget
2015/16 2014/15 Period 2016/17 2015/16
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Chief Executives 0.020 0.006 0 0 0 0.026
People & Resources 0.075 0.086 {0.018) 0 0 0.143
Governance 0.170 0.753 0 0 0 0.923
Education & Youth 45.022 1.942 {13.585) 0 0 33.379
Social Care 0 0 0 0 0 0.000
Community & Enterprise 2.841 0.857 2.960 0 (0.521) 6.137
Planning & Environment 0.551 1.147 0.020 0 0 1718
Transport & Streetscene 0.860 0.104 1.022 0 0 1.986
Organisational Change 1 0 0.042 0.045 0 0 0.087
Organisational Change 2 0.820 0.318 0.500 0 0 1.638
Council Fund Total 50.359 5.255 (9.056) 0.000 (0.521) 46.037
HRA Subsidy Buyout 0 0 79.248 0 0 79.248
Housing Revenue Account 21.200 0.512 0 0 0 21.712
Housing Revenue Account Total 21.200 0.512 79.248 0.000 0.000 100.960
Programme Total 71.559 5.767 70.192 0.000 (0.521) 146.997

1.04

1.05

Rollover from 2014/15

Rollover* sums from 2014/15 to 2015/16, totalling £5.767m (CF £5.255m,
HRA £0.512m), were approved by Cabinet.

Changes during this period
Changes during this period have resulted in a net increase in the programme
total of £70.192m (CF (£9.056m), HRA £79.248m). A summary of the

changes, showing major items, is in Table 2 below:-

Table 2

Page 113



1.06

1.07

APPENDIX B

CHANGES DURING THIS PERIOD
£m
COUNCIL FUND
Increases
Introduction of WG Grant for Vibrant & Viable Places 2.960
Introduction of WG Grant for Recycling Vehicles 0.519
Introduction of WG Road Safety Grant 0.255
Introduction of WG Safer Routes in the Community Grant 0.248
Introduction of WG Flying Start Grant 0.241
Community Asset Transfers 0.500
Other Aggregate Increases 0.089
4812
Decreases
Reduction in Funding required for 21C Schools (13.850)
Other Aggregate Decreases (0.018)
(13.868)
Total (9.056)
HRA
Increases
Introduction of Prudential Borrowing for HRA Subsidy buyout 79.248
79.248
Decreases
0.000
Total 79.248

Specific grant allocations for both new and existing capital grants are often
announced by Welsh Government (WG) early in the new financial year and
therefore the figures were not available when the budget was set. This is the
case with the majority of the Council Fund increases listed above.

The introduction of Community Asset Transfer ‘pump priming’ funding was
approved by Cabinet at its meeting of 15 June, 2015 (£0.500m in 2015/16
and £0.500m in 2016/17).

1.08

1.09

The decrease in the 21C Schools funding requirement reflects the revised
spending profile pending the final decision on John Summers High School.

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy

Agreement was reached between the UK Government and the Welsh
Government to change the financing arrangements for council housing in
Wales from April 2015. Prior to this a negative subsidy system was in
operation which required Flintshire to make annual payments of c£6m in
negative subsidy to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, along with
the other 11 stock retaining authorities in Wales.

Page 114




1.10

1.11

1.12

APPENDIX B

The introduction of self-financing will end the negative subsidy system and
annual payments. The subsidy payments are replaced with interest
payments on Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans that the Council must
borrow to exit the subsidy system. The PWLB loans, in the sum of £79.248m,
called the settlement payment (a one-off lump sum payment classed as
capital expenditure), was paid to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury
in April 2015.

The agreement is expected to generate revenue savings of ¢£0.500m per
annum, allowing the Council to increase its investment in its existing housing
stock and support the delivery of additional housing. It will also provide more
local accountability to tenants.

Capital Expenditure compared to Budget

Actual expenditure as at Month 4 (end of July 2015) across the whole of the
capital programme is £89.692m. The breakdown of expenditure is analysed
in Table 3 below, along with the percentage spend against budget. This
shows that 15.42% of the budget has been spent (CF 17.95%, HRA 10.05%).
Corresponding figures for Month 4 2014/15 were 16.16% (CF 14.45%, HRA
20.38%). The HRA capital programme is significantly larger than in previous
years, requiring more initial planning and therefore the bulk of expenditure will
occur later in the year. This excludes the HRA Subsidy Buyout (£79.248m)
which was paid in its entirety early in the financial year.

Table 3

Page 115



APPENDIX B

1.13

1.14

1.15

EXPENDITURE Revised [ Cumulative | Percentage Projected | Variance
Budget |Expenditure; Spendv Outturn Budget v
Month 4 Budget Outturn
{Under)/Over
£m £m % £m £m

Chief Executives 0.026 0 0 0.026 0
People & Resources 0.143 0.000 0 0.143 0
Gowemance 0.923 0.421 4561 0923 0
Education & Youth 33.379 5.291 15.85 33.034 (0.345)
Social Care 0 0 0 0 0
Community & Enterprise 6.137 1822 29.69 6.462 0.325
Planning & Environment 1.718 0.191 1.1 1.750 0.032
Transport & Streetscene 1.986 0172 865 1.986 0
Organisational Change 1 0.087 0.149 170.96 0.087 0
Organisational Change 2 1.638 0.217 13.26 1.638 0
Council Fund Total 46.037 8.263 17.95 46.049 0.012
Housing Revenue Account 21.712 2.181 10.05 21.7112 0
Programme Total (Excl HRA Subsidy) 67.749 10.444 15.42 67.761 0.012
HRA Subsidy Buyout 79.248 79.248 100.00 79.248 0
Programme Total 146.997 89.692 61.02 147.009 0.012

The table also shows the projected outturn of £147.009m. This indicates a
projected overspend of £0.012m on the Council Fund and a projected
breakeven position on the HRA.

Details of the variances for individual programme areas are listed in Appendix
B, which includes the reasons, and required remedial actions which may be
required where those variances exceed +/- 10% of the revised budget. In
addition, where Early Identified Rollover (EIR) into 2016/17 has been
identified, this is also included in the narrative.

Rollover into 2016/17

As at Month 4 rollover of £0.345m has been identified which reflects reviewed
spending plans across all programme areas; these committed amounts have

been identified as now required to meet the cost of programme works in
2016/17.

Page 116



APPENDIX B

1.16

1.17

1.18

Information relating to each programme area is contained in Appendix B and
summarised in Table 4 below:-

Table 4
ROLLOVER INTO 2016/17 Month 4 Total
£m £m
Education & Youth 0.345 0.345
Council Fund 0.345 0.345
Housing Revenue Account 0 0

Identified Savings

An update on the latest position with regard to Flintshire Connects sites was
reported to Cabinet in March 2015 which advised that costs were likely to be
lower than previously anticipated. The financial impacts of this have now
been included in the Capital Programme and have resulted in savings of
£0.521m being identified.

Financing

The capital programme is financed as summarised in Table 5 below:-

Table 5
FINANCING RESOURCES General Specific Total
Financing1 Financing? Financing
£m £m fm

Latest Monitoring

Council Fund 6.216 39.821 46.037

Housing Revenue Account 5110 95.850 100.960
11.326 135.671 146.997

Total Financing Resources 11.326 135.671 146.997

1 Supported Borrowing / General Capital Grant / Capital Receipts / MRA*

2 Grants & Contributions / CERA*/ Reserves / Prudential & Other Borrowing

Given the continuing uncertainty over the realisation of asset disposals, no
capital receipts were assumed for 2015/16 budget setting purposes.
However, any assets realised in year would be available for capital investment
(see Sections 1.21 to 1.23 below).

Page 117



APPENDIX B

1.20

1.21

1.22

Funding of 2015/16 Approved Schemes

The position as at Month 4 is summarised in Table 6 below:-

Table 6
FUNDING OF APPROVED SCHEMES
£m £m

Surplus from 2014/15 (1.314)
Increases
Community Asset Transfers 0.500
Security Works @ Deeside Leisure Centre 0.045
Wepre Park Development match funding 0.020 0.565
Decreases
Actual In year receipts (0.873)
Identified Savings (0.521)
Unallocated Headroom (0.333) (1.727)
Funding Available (2.476)
Prospective Schemes
Brookhill / Standard PV Sites 1.450

1.450
Projected shortfall / (surplus) to 2016/17 (1.026)

The final outturn surplus from 2014/15 was £1.314m (£1.322m as per outturn
report to Cabinet 14 July, 2015).

Additional allocations in year amount to £0.565m.
Savings identified in year amount to £0.521m.

Actual receipts to Month 4 amount to £0.873m and unallocated headroom
remains unaltered at £0.333m.

Taken as a whole this indicates that c£2.476m is available to fund capital
schemes.

Portfolios through their business plans have identified significant capital
investment needed to improve services and achieve revenue efficiencies.
Business cases are in the process of being written, the intention being to bring
additional capital schemes to Cabinet for approval in the current and/or future
financial years.

Page 118



APPENDIX B

1.23 | A report requesting support for the installation of photovoltaic (PV) arrays at
ex landfill sites in Buckley was approved by Cabinet at its meeting of 16 June
2015. The provisional costs are included in the table above and a further
report will come to Cabinet once all the details are finalised.

2.00 | RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01 | Financial implications - As set out in the body of the report.

2.02 | Personnel Implications - None directly as a result of this report.

3.00 | CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 | No consultation is required as a direct result of this report.

4.00 | RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 | At this stage in the financial year and given the size and complexity of
schemes within the programme, it is considered that the level of spend
against budget is appropriate and poses no risk or negative impact for the
Council e.g. loss of external funding.

4.02 |As stated in Section 1.12, the 2015/16 HRA Capital Programme is
significantly larger than in previous years and so may present a risk in terms
of achieving spending levels. As such this will need to be closely monitored
during the year.

5.00 | APPENDICES

5.01 | Appendix A: Capital Programme - Changes during 2015/16

5.02 | Appendix B: Variances

6.00 | LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 | Capital Programme monitoring papers 2015/16.

Contact Officer: Andrew Elford

Accountant
Telephone: 01352 702291
E-Mail: andrew.elford@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 119



APPENDIX B

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

Capital Programme: The Council's financial plan covering capital schemes
and expenditure proposals for the current year and a number of future years.
It also includes estimates of the capital resources available to finance the
programme.

CERA: Capital Expenditure charged to Revenue Account. The Council is
allowed to use its revenue resources to fund capital expenditure. However
the opposite is not permissible.

Council Fund (CF): The fund to which all the Council’s revenue and capital
expenditure is charged.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA): The fund to which all the Council's
revenue and capital expenditure relating to its housing stock is charged.

MRA: Major Repairs Allowance. A general capital grant from WG for HRA
purposes.

Rollover: Rollover occurs when schemes due to be completed in a given
financial year are delayed until a subsequent year. In this case the relevant
funding is ‘rolled over' to meet the delayed expenditure.

Page 120



APPENDIX A

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2015/16

Council Fund :
Chief Executives
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

People & Resources

Corporate Finance

Governance

Information Technology

Education & Youth
Education - General
Primary Schools

Schools Modernisation
Secondary Schools
Special Education

Minor Works, Furn & Equip
Community Youth Clubs

Social Care
Partnerships & Performance

Community & Enterprise
Flintshire Connects

Town Centre Regeneration
Vibrant & Viable Places

Private Sector Renewal/lmprov't

Travellers' Sites

Planning & Environment
Engineering

Energy Services

Rights of Way

Planning Grant Schemes
Ranger Senvices

Townscape Heritage Initiatives

Original | Rollover | Changes | Changes | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget from |(Previous)| (Current) to Budget
2015/16 | 2014/15 2016/17 2015/16
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
0.020 0.006 0 0 0 0 0.026
0.020 0.006 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.026
0.075 0.086 0 (0.018) 0 0 0.143
0.075 0.086 0.000 (0.018) 0.000 0.000 0.143
0.170 0.753 0 0 0 0 0.923
0.170 0.753 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.923
1.950 0 0 (1.950) 0 0 0
0.040 0.293 0 0.829 0 0 1.162
42,987 0.942 0| (13.594) 0 0 30.335
0 0.254 0 0.341 0 0 0.595
0 0.444 0 0.548 0 0 0.992
0.045 0.009 0 0 0 0 0.054
0 0 0 0.241 0 0 0.241
45.022 1.942 0.000 |  (13.585) 0.000 0.000 33.379
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
0.250 0.451 0 0 (0.521) 0.180
0.130 0.349 0 0 0 0 0.479
0 0.005 0 2.960 0 0 2,965
2.311 0.052 0 0 0 0 2.363
0.150 0 0 0 0 0 0.150
2.841 0.857 0.000 2.960 0.000 {0.521) 6.137
0.115 0674 0 0 0 0 0.789
0.100 0 0 0 0 0 0.100
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.027 0.347 0 0.020 0 0 0.394
0.309 0.126 0 0 0 0 0.435
0551 | Page| 121000 0.020 0.000 0.000 1718




APPENDIX A (Cont,)

CAPITAL PROGRAMME - CHANGES DURING 2015/16

Original | Rollover | Changes | Changes | Rollover | Savings | Revised
Budget | from |(Previous)| (Current) to Budget
2015/16 | 2014/15 2016/17 2015/16
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Transport & Streetscene
Sustainable Waste Management 0 0 0 0.519 0 0 0.519
Highways 0.860 0.089 0 0 0 0 0.949
Local Transport Grant 0 0.015 0 0.503 0 0 0.518
0.860 0.104 0.000 1.022 0.000 0.000 1.986
Organisational Change 1
Leisure Centres 0 0.034 0 0.045 0 0 0.079
Recreation - Other 0 0.008 0 0 0 0 0.008
Play Areas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0.000 0.042 0.000 0.045 0.000 0.000 0.087
Organisational Change 2
Administrative Buildings 0.820 0.318 0 0 0 0 1.138
Community Asset Transfers 0 0 0 0.500 0 0 0.500
0.820 0.318 0.000 0.500 0.000 0.000 1.638
Housing Revenue Account :
HRA Subsidy Buyout 0 0 0 79.248 0 0 79.248
Disabled Adaptations ] 0512 0 1.000 0 0 1512
Energy Schemes 0 0 0 3.900 0 0 3.900
Major Works 287 0 0 0 0 0 2871
Accelerated Programmes 15.040 0 0 (3.900) 0 0 11.140
WHQS Improvements 2.289 0 0 0 0 0 2.289
Disabled Adaptations 1.000 0 0 (1.000) 0 0 0
21.200 0.512 0.000 79.248 0.000 0.000 100.960
Totals :
Council Fund 50.359 5255 0 (9.056) 0 (1 46.037
Housing Revenue Account 21.200 0.512 0 79.248 0 0 100.960
Grand Total 71.559 5.767 0.000 70.192 0.000 (0.521)] 146.997

Page 122




winynQ pajoafoid A jabpng = asueuep

Page 123

0000 0000 0000 £ 0000 £vL0 leloL
0 0 0 evLo 0 £p1°0 aoueul sjesodio)
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
18n0
o Addd abey, H(42pun) wnpno ‘dx3g yabpng
paiinbay uonoy aojueuep Jo asne) asueuep | soueuep | eoueuep | payoaloid jenoy |elol ealy awwesbosd
¥ YUo - 91/510Z Bunoyuoly Jabpng epde)
S324NOS3Y ® 317d03d
0000 0000 000°0 9200 0000 9200 leloL
0 0 0 9200 0 9200 nIWAD feay L pAmio
wy % wy w3 w3 w3
JOAQ
o Aaud abey, f(13pun) wnpno dxg yabpng
paiinbay uonay aoueleA Jo asne) soueuep | aoueuep | soueuep pajasfoid |enay |ejoL galy awweiboid

8 XION3addV

¥ YIUO - 91/510Z Bulojiuoly yo6png |epded

S3AILNJAX3 43IHO




winnQ payaafold A 3abpng = asuelep

000°0 000°0 00070 €26'0 1zv'o £26'0 lejo),
0 0 0 £26°0 LZvo €260 ABojouyoa) uoneuuo)u|
wy % w3 w3 ury wz
18AQ
0 Adld abey, Jaspun) wnpno ‘dx3 1abpng
palinbay uonoy sJuBMEBA JO asne) soueuep | asueuep | soueuep | payoaloid jenjoy 1ejo1 ealy swwelboid

Page 124

(3u09) g XIANAddV

¥ Yuol - 91/5102 Buuopuoly 1ebpng jeyded

JONVNYIA0O



wnynQ pajosfoad Ajyabpng = asuenep

0000 () (sve0) yeoee L6Z'G 6.£°€E lejoL
0 0 0 ¥50°0 1000 ¥50°0 dinb3 p uing *si0p Jouwy
"/ 1/910Z Apea uopajdwod pauueld
ym ‘abeys ubisap je Apuaund awayos
‘WegZ 0F 10040S YBIH unpy J1sised
L1/910Z 0y WY6Z 03 'S8WwayasyQ Snoueh o} sejeey
Jo Buipuny arow o} |ercidde jsanbay - 19n0jj0y paynuapi Aaeg| o (0g) (962°0) 9690 LLLO 2660 uogeanpy |eads
sawayog
L1/910Z OYWZLO03 'Y ,S100ydS Auepu0dag SNOLEA
Jo Buipuny anow o) jeaodde jsanbay - 1an0)j0y paynuap) Al1e3] o (2) (zLo0) €850 8610 G650 sjooyog Aiepuodeg
0 0 0 0 2600 L¥20 sqn(D YNoA Ayunwwo)d
11/910Z 01 W9L0'03|  ewayos yui| jooydg abej|n uspiemey
40 Buipuny anow o} [eroudde sanbay - 1ano||oy paynuap] Auex| o (0) (9100 6LE0E 818¥ Gee'0e uones|uIBpoA S[00Ydg
L1/910Z 01 W1Z003( sawayds Ry S|00yos Alewud snouep
j0 Buipuny anow o} [erosdde jsanbay - 13n0[joy paynusap| Aueg| o (@) (Lzoo) Lyl'l 901°0 2911 s|ooyog Atewnd
0 0 0 (se00) 0 |BJAUIS) - LOREINPT
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
J8AQ
NP Adid abey, J(43pun) wnpno ‘dx3 yabpng
paiinbay uopoy 9oUBLIBA JO 35NE) soueuep | aoueuep | adueMBA pajoaloid |lemoy |ejoL ealy awweiboid

Page 120

(u09) g XIONIddVY

¥ Yuo - 91/510Z Butioyuol Jobpng jeyded

H1NOA ® NOILLYONA3



uinynQ pajoalold Ajafipng = asueuep

0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0000 ejol
0 0 0 0 0 souewiauad g sdiysiauped
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
1870
1D Adld abey, J(13pun) wnng dxg jabpng
paiinbay uopay aJuBlBA JO asne) aoueuep | aoueuep | soueuep | pajosfoid |enjoy elol ealy awweiboid

¥ YUol - 91/510Z Buuioyuoly yobpng [epde)

JYVYI TVID0S
(uo9) g XIAN3ddY

Page 126




uinyng pajasfoid A }abpng = asueuep

000°0 S 62’0 r4 A" el LELV9 lejoL
PBAIS08I 80 MOU JOU [[IM UIIYM
Buuoyuow g yuoy 1oy 186png snowsy| Buipunyjueib pajediogue Jo) sem)abpng| 0 ()] (051°0) 0 0 0510 SRINCIETEIT
Juswanroidwl/jemauay
0 0 0 £9€'¢ £68°0 £9€°¢C J0)03S 8leAld
0 0 0 696'C (¥90°0) 696'C S80e|d 8|qBIA B JUBJGA
ainjipuadxa ysjew o) pawiep
uaaq sey Buipuny jueib jeuoyippy 0 66 S/¥°0 #566°0 ¥66'0 6.0 uonesauabay anua) umo)
0 0 0 0810 0v0'0 0810 sjosuu0g alIysjull4
w3 % w3 w3 uy w3
J8AQ
P Aaud abey, J(aspun) wnpnQ dxg jabpng
pasinbay uogoy aJuelBA JO IsNE) aoueuep | ssueuep | asueuep | pejrsfoid |emoy |e1o1 ealy awuweiboid

Page 127

(u09) g XIONIddY

¥ Yuo - 91/51.0Z Bunioyuoly yabpng [epded

ISIYdYILNT ? ALINNWNOD



uinynQ payaaloid A yebpng = aouenep

00070 €98’} ce0’0 0sl't 16L°0 8LLL lejol

0 0 0 GEY'0 €200 GEV'O saafeniu) abejuay adeasumo]

0 0 ¥6£°0 ¢800 ¥6€°0 saopiag Jabuey
ainjipuadxa

puny 0) saoue|eq Bunsxa asn poomsaped Buiuaalog sail | 0 6100 6L00 6L00 0 sawayog juels) bBuluueld
ain)puadxa

ay) puny 0) sadueleg Juely asn sspom [eas Aunjs Aem o sybiy | 0 £10°0 €100 €100 0 Aep Jo spybry

0 0 0 0010 ¢c00 0010 saonag ABiaug

0 0 0 6820 ¢e00 6820 Buuaauibug

wz % wy w3z w3z w3z
13A0
np Aald abey, J(s9puny) wnpnQ dx3 yabpng
paiinbay uonoy 3JUBMEA JO 3sne) aoueuep | soueuep | assueuep | pajoalfoid |enjoy |ejol paly awwelbold

(u09) g XIAN3IddVY

¥ Yuol - 91/5102 Buuojuoy 1ebpng |eyde)

INJWNOUIANT B ONINNV1d

Page 128



winyng pajasloid A 3abpng = asueuep

0000 000°0 0000 986'1L L0 986'L lejo}
0 0 0 8150 (2200 8150 Juess) podsuel| 8907
0 0 0 660 2500 660 shemybiH
0 0 0 6150 LWL 0 6150 wawabeuey sjsep 8jqeulelsng
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
J9AQ
[0 Aaid abev, faspun) wnyno ‘dx3 yabpng
painnbay uonoy aJuelEA Jo 8sne) ajueuep | aJuelep | dJueLieA pajoaloid jenjoy jejol ealy awwesboid

Page 129

(uo9) g XIAN3IddVY

¥ Wuo - 91/510Z Buuiojiuo 3abpng [ejide)

IN3OS13FYULS ? LUOdSNVIL



winynQ pajoaloid A jabpng = asueuep

00070 0000 0000 1800 6v1°0 180°0 |ejol

0 0 0 €000 0 s100d Buiwuwimg
pus seak je umop umelp Buipuny
yolew 9O pue SUORNQLUILCD 90

UO[O8S WOy papuny si ainjpuadxa |y 0 0 0 €010 0 seaxy fed

0 0 0 8000 1000 8000 1340 - uojealday

0 0 0 6200 100 6.0°0 sauag aInsia

w3 % wy w3z wy w3
1anQ
1P Aaid abey, J(aapun) wnynQ dxg yabpng
paiinbay uopoy BJURLIBA JO asne) aoueuep | @oueuep | asueuep | pajoaloid |enjoy |ejol paly awweiboid

(u09) g XIaN3ddY

¥ YIUO - 91/51.0Z Burioyuopy 3eBpng jeyde)

I IONVHI TVNOILVSINVOYO

Page 130



-

uinyng payaaload Ajabpng = soueuep

0000 000°0 0000 8€9’L L1170 8E9'L lejoL
0 0 0 0050 0000 0050 sigjsuel Jassy Agnwwog
0 0 0 8eEl’l L1120 8el’l sbuip|ing aApensiulwpy
w3 % w3 w3 w3 w3
18n0
Y TR abey, J{sapun) uingnQ dx3 3abpng
paiinbay uoyoy adueMEA JO 3sne) ajueuep | asueuep | aoueuep | pajdaloid jenjoy [ejol ealy awweiboid

Page 131

(u09) g XIaN3ddV

¥ puol - 91/51.0Z Bunopuoly yabpng |eyded

¢ 3ONVHO TVNOILVSINVOYO



winynQ pajoaloid A 3abpng = ssueuep

0000 0000 0000 096001 6cv'L8 096001 |ejol
0 0 0 682¢ 8160 68¢°¢C sjuawianosdw| SOHM
0 0 0 orL'LlL 161°0 orLLl sawweiBboid pajess|ey
0 0 0 148°C 9040 118°¢ Sypopm Jolew
0 0 0 006'€ L02'0 006'¢ saonag ABisug
0 0 0 4303 SviL'0 cls’lL suoneldepy pajqesiq
0 0 0 8vC'6. 8vC6. 8vC'6L InoAng Apisqng vVyH
wz % w3 w3 w3 w3
18AQ
1O Adid abey, J(aapun) wnpno ‘dx3 }abpng
painbay uoyoy aouelBA JO ashe) eouenep | @sueuep | asueuep | pajosfoid |jenjay [ejol ealy awweibosd

Page 132

(3u09) 9 XIANIddY

¥ YWUO - 91/510Z Bunojuopy jobpng jeyde)

INNOJJV INNIATY ONISNOH



winpnO pajoaloid A 3abpng = asueuep

0000 0 ZL00 600°LVL Z69°'68 166'9%L 1e10L
0 0 0 096001 62v'L8 096°001 Junoody anuanay BuisnoH
0000 0 zZL0'0 6v0'9v £9Z'8 LEOSY pund [12uno) - 2104 qns
) 0 0 8e9'L 2120 8e9'L g ebuey) jeuogesiueblo
0 0 0 1800 6710 2800 L 8buey) |euonesiuebio
0 0 0 986'L ZLL0 986'L ausdsisans g yodsuel|
0 4 Ze00 0sL'L L6L0 8LLL yuswuoinu3 g Buluueld
0 ] SZE0 Z9v'9 zes’L L€1°9 asudisjuz g Aunwwon
0 0 0000 0 0000 aled |epos
0 (1) (sve0) vEO'EE L62'S 6LEEE YInoA g uoneanp3
0 0 0 €260 12ro €260 20uBUIAN0D)
0 0 o EYL0 0 £¥1°0 s@2unosay g 9|dosd
] ] 0 92z0'0 ] 9200 s,annoax3 JaIyo
w3z % w3z w3z w3z w3y
PL:7Y6)
noy Adid abey, H(s8pun) wnpno dx3 yabpng
pasinbay uopoy ajueUEA JO asne) asueleA Isueuep ajueMEeA pajoaload jenjoy jejo ) easty sawwesboid

Page 133

(1uod) g XiaN3addv

¥ YUOW - 91/510Z Bunojuoy 196png [ended

AUdVINNNS



Page 134



Agenda ltem 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW __AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 8™ OCTOBER 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND RESOURCES)

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT - QUARTER 1

2015/16

1.00 | PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 | To provide Members with an update for the first quarter for 2015/16.
This report provides details of the following:

Headcount and Full Time Equivalent

Organisational Age Profile

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early
Retirements)

Attendance (Including 100% Attendance)

Performance Appraisals and Development

Resource Management (Agency Workers)

Equality and Diversity

2.00 | BACKGROUND

2.01 | The format of this report and the accompanying Workforce Information
has been redeveloped to focus on the organisational performance and
trends, with the information being presented in a dashboard format.
The dashboards are designed to be a visual presentation of data,
showing the current status and historical trends of the Council’s
performance against key performance indicators.

2.02 | The report provides a brief narrative on the overall performance. A
more detailed explanation is provided on an exceptional basis where
performance is falling below organisational performance indicators or
where there has been a significant movement, either upwards or
downwards, in the reported trends. The narrative will include an
explanation for the movement in trend and details of the actions that
are planned to improve or maintain performance.

The performance information for the whole organisation is split to
show Schools and Non-Schools data separately.

Page 135



2.03

The dashboards created are an interim measure before the
implementation of new Business Intelligence software. The software
will further enhance the visualisation of data and also provide an
opportunity to use interactive dashboards which will enable Members
to focus in on more detailed information.

3.00 | CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 | Headcount and Full Time Equivalent
The Voluntary Redundancy Scheme and the implementation of
organisational service changes across the Council has meant the total
headcount and full time equivalent has seen an overall decrease.
Quarter one figures for 2015/16 show an overall decrease of 45 FTE
across the Council, where the non-schools show a decrease of 35
FTE, and Schools show a decrease of 10 FTE.
The trend for Schools and Non-Schools shows a considerable
decrease (Schools) and increase (Non-Schools) in April 2015. This is
due to transferring 262 catering staff from Schools into Facilities
Services in order to reflect an accurate structure.
As Vacancy Management remains a key priority within the Council,
robust information around vacancies will be provided in future reports.

3.02 | Organisational Age Profile
The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable
the Council to provide a guide to the future number of potential
retirements and succession plan by identifying any skill gaps that may
arise. Without an analysis of age profile, no workable long term
planning can be made.

3.03 | Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and
Early Retirements)
Early Retirements and redundancy schemes across the Council
continued to be applied.
The Flintshire County Council turnover percentage for quarter one is
2.37%.
For the comparative figures for last year, the turnover percentage for
quarter one was 2.54%, which shows a decrease of 0.17%.

3.04 | Attendance (Including 100% Attendance)

Reducing absence and improving performance is continually
measured and tracked. The Flintshire County Council absence FTE
days lost for quarter one is 2.48. Therefore, the cumulative absence

Page 136




FTE days lost forecast for 2015/16 is 9.92, which is just short of
achieving our annual target of 9.60.

The majority of portfolio services are within, or slightly above, the
quarterly target except for Social Services and Streetscene and
Transportation, who continue to show higher volumes of absence.
That said, there continues to be an ongoing improvement within those
areas.

Identifying and monitoring trends, and applying consistent attendance
management practices should ensure that absence levels continue to
decrease.

3.05

Performance Appraisals and Development

The ongoing collection of Appraisals and Performance Monitoring
information continues to be a high priority. The collection of this
information will enable more effective monitoring of potential training
needs for future planning.

Senior Manager competency based appraisals were carried out by
June 2015. Senior Managers will now begin to undertake competency
based appraisals for their staff.

The undertaking of appraisals will be tracked against target
completion dates in future reports. However, issues with the current
software have given cause for concern in terms of comprehensive and
accurate data relating to appraisals. The issues within the software
have been identified and consultancy arrangements are in place to
rectify the issues.

3.06

Resource Management (Agency Workers)

Business Partners continue to work with Chief Officers and Service
Managers to ensure that the use of agency workers meets a
legitimate business need and that steps are taken to reduce, where
possible, the number of agency workers engaged at any given time.

The agency figures show that quarter one spend is £805,000. This
has exceeded the quarterly target of £0.7m. The majority of the
agency spend is within Social Services (£313,000), and Streetscene
and Transportation (£300,000) respectively.

The use of agency workers within Streetscene and Transportation
continues to be attributable to the number of vacancies at operative
level which have yet to be filled pending the roll out of the various
business planning proposals.

Social Services are currently carrying a large number of vacancies in
some areas due to gaps created as a result of an influx of staff leaving

Page 137




employment of the authority and also a number of dismissals made in
relation to ongoing long term absence. We have a number of areas
currently under review and posts have been held back for staff
redeployment and due the roles being within front line care, agency
has been engaged to minimise risk and maintain the services we
provide and do so safely.

Overall, there were 151 active agency placements on 30t June 2015.
From the 151 placements, 132 have exceeded the 12 week AWR
threshold.

3.07 | Equality and Diversity
The importance of collecting equality and diversity information
remains a high priority.
Regular measures and ongoing monitoring audits are being carried
out to ensure that the data we hold is accurate. Understanding the
“make up” of the Council in terms of gender, ethnicity etc. allows us to
identify any inequalities and to take action to remedy these.

4.00 | RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 | Members to comment on Workforce Information Report for quarter
one

5.00 | FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 | Increased accuracy for reporting of the employed workforce and
agency workers will allow the Council to better understand and
therefore both plan and manage the largest single cost of service
delivery.

6.00 | ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01 | None

7.00 | ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01 | None

8.00 | EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 | None

9.00 | PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 | None

Page 138




10.00

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01

None

11.00

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01

None

12.00

APPENDICES

12.01

Appendix One — Glossary of Terms
Appendix Two — Dashboard Report Quarter 1

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sharon Carney
Telephone: 01352 702139
Email: sharon.carney@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 139




This page is intentionally left blank



WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT QUARTER 1 (2015/16)

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Headcount and FTE

This will provide information on the current levels of the Council’s workforce.

Organisational Age Profile

The purpose of providing the Organisational Age Profile is to enable the Council to provide a
guide to the future number of potential retirements and succession plan by identifying any
skill gaps that may arise. Without an analysis of age profile, no workable long term planning
can be made.

Employee Turnover and Stability (Including Redundancies and Early Retirements)

This information will provide the awareness of trends in turnover rates within the Council
for potential measure to be put in place for high turnover rates, if applicable.

Attendance

Attendance remains a high priority in the Council and will provide detailed information on
the areas for improvement for absence/attendance.

Performance Appraisals and Development

Reporting on performance appraisals and development will enable more effective
monitoring of potential training needs for future planning.

Resource Management

This information will include the usage of agency workers within the Council.

Equality and Diversity

Information will be provided to implementation measure to prevent inequalities within the
Council.

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATEDASHBOARD

REPORTS
(FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL)

2015716 - QUARTER 1
(APRIL - JUNE)

¢yl ebed

r. Sir y Fflint
Flintshire



2015/16 DASHBOARD
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL TOTALS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT LEAVERS / TURNOVER
6,910: /. . | ‘
TOTALETE 164/ 2.37%

§ 5’23 1
5 Q1 AGENCY SPEND Q1 DAYS LOST PER FTE
£0.8m | [ 2.8
Q1 TARGET Q1 TARGET

£0.7m 2.40

r Sir y Fflint
= =4 - o
Flintshire



CORPORATE:DASHBOARD
REPORTS
(NON SCHOOLS)

2015716 - QUARTER 1
(APRIL - JUNE)

G| 8bed

= S;rmy Fflint
. Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - NON SCHOOLS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT -TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT
3,615 2,873
01/04/2015 Dfsc'l;e:;&gf 30/06/2015 01/04/2015 DeweRsc of 30/06/2015
3,661 (-1.27%) 3,615 2,908 (-1.22%) 2,873

oy | abed

HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND

3700 - 6
3615
3500 93

3300 ~4-Headcount
3100

=-3631—n-2904 ~u-FTE
2900 . =-254i—u 29“—.%'#.%'%'%'%!7873

2700
2500

Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15

¥ Sir'y Fflint
' Flintshire



.y abed

QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Chief Executives

Community and Enterprise

12 + 10 10 100 -+
10 80 - 7
8 - 60 +
!
6 - 40 ;
4 -+ il - *=
2 ;70 _— ‘/
-- 0 ™™ | ' T T T T T T T
0 I T r - 1 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
25-34 35-44 45-49 50 -54 55-59 60 - 64 65-69 70 - 75 75 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 75 and
over Over
Education and Youth Governance
80 - 35 ﬁ :
70 30 &
60 - 25 ¥
50 - 20 £
40 15 7
30 i6
20 [
10 57
0 T T T T T 0 + T

35- 55 - 65 -

16- 25- 45- 50- 60 - 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over

4 49 54 59 64 69 74

16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34

and
Over

CYNGOR

Sir y

Frlint

Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL




8| abed

QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

Organisational Change 1 Organisational Change 2
93
100 100 91 84 86
80 80
60 60
40
40 +
20 -
0 20 %
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 0 T T T T T T T T ‘ T
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-49 50 - 54 55 - 59 60 - 64 65 - 69 70 - 74 75 and
Over Over
People and Resources Planning and Environment
40 - 50
35 1 1
30 | 40 //7
25 30 -+
20 -+ o
15 - 20 7 |
10 7 10 - 2 2 o
3 - o A A
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75 16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and 24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over Over

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COLMNCIL




671 ebed

QUARTER 1 2015-16 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - NON-SCHOOLS

250

200

150

100

50 -

Social Services

1 1
1
16- 25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70- 75
24 34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74 and
Over

Streetscene and Transportation

120 1

100

80 -

60

40 -

20 -

25- 35- 45- 50- 55- 60- 65- 70-
34 44 49 54 59 64 69 74

75
and
Over

CYNGOR

Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COLUMNCIL

Sir y




QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
TURNOVER AND STABILITY - NON SCHOOLS

| LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2015/16

106 106

LEAVER REASON - Q1

051 obed

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

COUNTY COLSNCEL




QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - NON-SCHOOLS

DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/2015

30/06/2014 2 8 6 30/06/2015
2.50 s 2.86

Increaca af 0 27

https://encrypted-tbn3.gstatic.com/images?g=tbn:ANd9Gc5
-nVYNemVYMEY]-XNIuYdze_AR_VDab2rhVn-i80yLIWUBSsanxvy

U -zuY9U
8
5| TOP 4 REASONS | :
1. MUSCOLOSKELETAL
2. STRESS;DEPRESSION;ANXIETY n.gl_
3. INFECTIONS
4. STOMACH, LIVER: VOMITING
{T}i\ hﬁf ﬁ::femﬁﬁ Jp‘g} ﬁ I Cirectorate Days Lost
Target FTE [Days Lost)

blr Fflint

Flintshire



¢S abed

QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE CONTINUED - NON-SCHOOLS

100% ATTENDANCE BY PORTFOLIO

B6.00%
84.00% - 81
} wTamk N
82.00% https://encrypted-tbn3.gstatic.com/images?g=tbn:ANd9GcS
80.00% - -nVMemVMEY)-XNIuYdze_AR_VDab2rhVn-i80yLk/WUBSsanxy
TE.D0% -ZuyaL o
T76.00%: —
74.00%
72.00% -
70.00%
6E.00% -
66.00% - T T T T T T T T T i
i ﬁ ép & .e:" 2 E"’ -:'F.
L
fe e h""‘dﬁ é&' ﬁ{* Gﬁ& t"ﬁf ;}é& ¢?
& N o & 3 a - & o &
& d & & & &
& _,,:t,,m' i Hmﬂp Eé} ffb Qbﬂ
& i.‘bﬂ W -ﬁ"‘" I!;-.:..“71' @ P
< P ef’&
L_‘.&P

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

CHFLISITY O e




QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT - AGENCY

Agency Tenure Management 2015/16

® placements as
20 | at 30/06/15

5 4

0-12 weeks 13-26 27-52 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5+years
weeks weeks

S}ry Fflint

Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - NON-SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY

ETHNICITY BREAKDOWN

' BME- 14 5
MALE || F =is L

https://encrypted-tbn3.gstatic.com/images?q=tbn:ANd9GcS - 1,103 i
-nVNemVMtYJ-XNIuYdze_AR_VDab2rhVn-ig0yLkJWUBSsanxv i Wiike

!-DU 1 174 -zuYSU | Not Stated

= g B Noﬁ_lT TATED - 1,109

o |l § B2a7%) (67.53%)

o

B

GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) SEXUAL ORIENTATION

E 55.6 12 M Bisexual - 6
§| —10 ¥ Gay Man - 12
M Female ’ : .
" Gay Woman/Lesbian - 8
H Male B Heterosexual/Straight - 1,079
M Not Stated - 2,448
¥ Other - 6

" Prefer Not To Say - 55

r'. Sir y Fflint
Flintshire



CORPORATE)DASHBOARD
REPORTS
(SCHOOLS)

2015716 - QUARTER 1
(APRIL - JUNE)

GGl ebed

Sir y Fflint
' Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
HEADCOUNT AND FULL TIME EQUIVALENT (FTE) - SCHOOLS

TOTAL HEADCOUNT

3,417

TOTAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT

2,358

01/04/2015 oecreaseof 30/06/2015 01/04/2015 ~ oecreaseof - 30/06/2015
v 3,437 (+0.58%) 3,417 2,368 Co.ar 2,358
©
= —
91 HEADCOUNT AND FTE - 12 MONTH TREND
3500 Tl Iy 3417
i;x +F:Ea count
2500 - & [ =t e 2125

I I I I I
Jul-14 Aug-14 S5ep-14 Oct-14 Mow-14 Dec-14 Jlan-15

Feb-15% Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15

\

Sir y Fflint
Flintshire




QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
AGE PROFILE - SCHOOLS

1000 +

https://encrypted-tbn3.gstatic.com/images?q=tbn: ANd9Gc5
-nVMNemVMEY)-XNIuYdze_AR_VDab2rhVn-i80yLIJWUBSsanxv
-zuYoU

——

LG} abed
g 8

|

|

|

|

16-24 25-34 35-44 45 - 49 50-54 55-59 60 - 64 65 - 69 J0-74 75 and
Over

L Wi i W

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire

LEFUASIEY O o



QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
W—.

LEAVERS - Q1 LEAVERS - 2015/16

58 58

LEAVER REASON - Q3

8G| ebed

K

Sir y Fflint

Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
ATTENDANCE - SCHOOLS

| DAYS LOST PER FTE AT 30/06/15

30/06/2014 2 0 0 30/06/2015
1.70 » 2.00

Increase of 0.30

-~ FTE DAYS LOST BY DIRECTORATE

TOP 4 REASONS |

1. INFECTIONS
2. MUSCOSKELETAL
3. STOMACH;LIVER;DISGESTION &

VOMITING
4. STRESS;DEPRESSION;ANXIETY ey secongary | nuery | Specin

Schools Schools Schools Schools

65| ebe

I Directorate Days Lost

====Target FTE [Days Lost)

Sir y Fflint
- Flintshire



QUARTER 1 2015/16 DASHBOARD
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY - SCHOOLS

GENDER BREAKDOWN ETHNICITY

MALE | FEMALE | |/ oed DL
soeMilaeon N o A

09) obed

NOT STATED - 1,471
(15.39%) (84.61%) ‘ ..
GENDER BREAKDOWN (%) SEXUAL ORIENTATION
2 31 4 M Bisexual - 1
M Female \\-\'[,1 o’ '
¥ Gay Woman/Lesbian - 1
H Male

M Heterosexual/Straight - 680
m Not Stated - 2,700
W Other-3

Prefer Not To Say - 30

r' Sir y Fflint
= = -
Flintshire




Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY 8™ OCTOBER, 2015

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number
of sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview &
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items
can be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County
Council or Chief Officers. Other possible items are identified from the
Cabinet Work Programme and the Strategic Assessment of Risks &
Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of
significance’ to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
Is it an area of major change or risk?

Are there issues of concern in performance?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators / Internal Audit?

abRhwn =

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to
determine the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they
are Members. By reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme
Members are able to ensure it is Member-led and includes the right
issues. A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1
for Members’ consideration which has been updated following the last
meeting.

Page 161



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme
attached as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

8.01 None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

9.01 None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

10.01 N/A.

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: robert robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 162


mailto:robert_robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2015/16

DATE

SUBJECT

O&S Focus

REPORT FROM

cQl| abed

\"Av A 4

Thursday 12t

North Wales Fire & Rescue Authority — Consultation:

November 10.00 “Your Services, Your Choices’

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 5 )

Workforce Information Q 2

Forward Work Programme

Consultation

Assurance and comment

Monitoring

Monitoring

Approval and development

Robert Robins

Chief
Executive/Gary
Ferguson

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Thursday 10t
December
10.00

Police & Crime Commissioner: consultation on the
Crime & Policing Plan for 2016/17

Medium Term Financial Strategy

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 6 )

Forward Work Programme

Consultation

Assurance and comment

Monitoring

Approval and development

Robert Robins

Chief
Executive/Gary
Ferguson

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Page 1 of 3



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2015/16

Forward Work Programme

Approval and development

Budget
Consultation
Meetings
December and
January
Thursday 14t
January 2016
10.00 Medium Term Financial Strategy Assurance and comment Chief
Executive/Gary
Ferguson
Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 7))
Monitoring Sara Dulson
Forward Work Programme
- Approval and development Robert Robins
Q) Thursday, 11t
8 February 2016 Medium Term Financial Strategy Assurance and comment Chief
—.10.00 Executive/Gary
gz Ferguson
Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 8) Monitoring Sara Dulson
Quarter 3 Workforce Information Monitoring Andrew Adams

Robert Robins

Thursday, 17t
March 2016
10.00

Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 9)
Q3 Improvement Plan Monitoring

Forward Work Programme

Assurance and comment
Monitoring

Approval and development

Sara Dulson

Robert Robins

Robert Robins

Page 2 of 3



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme 2015/16

Thursday, 14t Sara Dulson
April 2016 Revenue Budget Monitoring (Month 10) Monitoring
10.00 Robert Robins
Forward Work Programme Approval and development
Items to be Health and Well-being update Information Helen Stappleton
scheduled
Customer services and Call-handling update
o
QO
Q
(0]
—
(®))
&)

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Medium Term Financial Strategy
	Appendix 1 - Published Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015-2018 Part 1: Forecasting the Challenge.
	Appendix 2 - Published Medium Term Financial Strategy 2015-2018 Part 2: Meeting the Financial Challenge.
	Appendix 3 - Powerpoint slide presentation used at County Council 24.09.15.

	5 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2015/16 (Month 4) and  Capital Programme 2015/16 (Month 4)
	Enc. 1 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 4)
	Enc. 2 for REVENUE BUDGE MONITORING 2015/16 (MONTH 4)

	6 Workforce Information Q 1
	WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT QUARTER 1 2015-16  - GLOSSARY OF TERMS (APPENDIX 1)
	DASHBOARD - WORKFORCE INFORMATION REPORT Q1 2015-16 (APPENDIX 2)

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme (Corporate Resources)


